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OPENING STATEMENTS

left, what happened in the interim and what happened when
they came back and you have to decide does it make sense
that if these allegations were made and are true and were
taking place during the early timeframe when these children
were there, if those allegations were true then why in
heaven would-you bring them back? Why would the éhildren
want to go back into the same situation? And I think.you're
going to find that's going to be the crux of the case. So I
ask you to pay attention, Irknow you will., T appreciate you
being here. It's a lot cooler in here today tﬁan it was
yesterday. I just want to tell you I appreciate you being
heré, we 1ook forward to trying the case with you}and at the
end of the case we'll hévé an opportunity, bqth the State
and me, to kind of summarize for you what we would like for
you to consider in the case and we-will be able to do it in
a little bit more detailed fashion because at that time you
will have heard all of the evidence. We appreciate you
being here. |

. THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Swerling. Solicitor, you

- may call your first witness.

'MS. SUTTON: Thank you, Your Honor. The State calls
Susan Rowles to the stand.
The witness, SUSAN ROWLES, was first dulyisworn

and testified as follows, on:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

BY MS. SUTTON:

Q. Ms. Rowles, where do YOu currently live?
. In the Great Falls area.
Q0. That's here in Fairfield County?
A. TIt's actually -- I live in Chester County now.
0. How lohg have you lived at your current residence?
A. I'#e been aﬁ my current residence since January, I've
been in the Great Falls area since 2000. |
Q. Where are you originally from?
A. Pennsylvania.
Q. You were born and raised there?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. And where is most of your immediate family?
A. My immediéte family.liVés in Pehgsylvania.
Q. Do you have any family in South Carolina?
A.  Just my children. _
Q. What brought yéu to the charming state of South
Carolina? ' | '
A. In 2000 I got married and we moved to Great Falls.
Q. Who did you marry in 20007?
A. Jeffrey Rowles, .
Q.'_ And did y'all have any children?
A. We did. I had my oldest daughter froﬁ a previous

THE CLERK: State your name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Susan Rowles.
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

relationship, and then him and I together had my
daughter, and our son,

Q. And when was QU born? |

A. Eﬁﬁ!ﬂl was born

Q. So right now she's currently , going on '?
A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And what is her birthday?

A, i

Q. And now is ?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Were they born here in South Carolina? -

A. was born in Chester. |

Q. Where are you currently working?

A. I work in Charlotte. |

Q. What company?

A. With Wells Fargo.

Q. How long have you been working there?

A. I have been employed there. since 2008.

Q. Prior to that where were you employed?

A. I worked for a company called Equifirst, I worked there
from 2003 to 2008 when I got laid off.

Q. Let me kind of back up. When you first got married and
were living -- and moved to South Carolina, were you working
at that time? |

A. No. I got married and then I found out I was pregnant
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

so I stayed home until. was about a year and a half
and then we had family members. Jeff and I would alternate
when we would.work and stuff, and then I got my jbb at
Equifirét and when I started there in 2003 is when the kids
started going to daycare. |

Q. When they started going, was it just the two youngei
ones or was it all of the children? _

A. I don't really remember at first if all of them went,vI
know the younger ones definitely did. I was divorced in
2004 and at that time I know that all of them were going -
there.

Q. When you placed your children in daycare I think you
said around 2003,-whére did they go?

A, They went to Mike and Dorothy.Williams' home.

Q. How did they come to go there?

- A. I was looking for a daycare, I don't remember if I saw

an advertisement or if it was a referral through word of
mouth, there'é not a- whole lot of daycares in Great Falls so
I was calling around and I went and met with DQrothy and.
they began going there at that time. A |

Q. Let me kind of -ask for.clarity, was it just

and CNEENE or was it [SHGE and SHKE

A. I don't remember at very flrst if all of them were

going. But I know when I got divorced in 2004, I separated
in December of 2004, all three of my children were going to
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

Mike and Dorothy Williams at that time.

Q. And so you've known, I guess, Dorothy and Mike Williams
since about 20032

A. Yes, ma'am. _

Q. How would you describe the nature of your relationship

with them?

"A. Well, they were my daycare providers but they were

also —— I considered them very close friends especially -- I
didn't have anyone and I really appreciated them. Whenever
something would break at my house Mike would be the one that
would help me énd I really considered them like second
parents to me. _

Q;r Sd your relationship went beyond that daycare proﬁider
and parent, but ybu éonsidered'them‘friends?

A, I did. Dorothy and I would have dinner, I would stay
and talk to her after I picked up the kids because I didn't
have anyone there. I knew their family, the kids knew their
family, they called her Me-maw and he was Mike Mike and they

were the people I counted on.

‘ Q. - At some point your oldest daughter, stopped

going there. What time was that?

A. In late 2005 and 2006.. Being a single mom the daycare
expense was kind of burdensome and another lady offered to
do it for almost half as much so we switched daycares at

that point and never went back to Mike and Dorothy's
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES:

at that point. Because by the time -~ what happened with my
other daycare, the lady passed away and at that time
said, "Mom, I'm old enough, I can stay by myself, I don't
want to go back there," and so that's what I did. I just
put the youngest two in daycare then. |

Q. So between 2005 and 2006 none of your children were
attending daycare. - |

A. No. But I would Stop and see Dorothy every now and
then, and I know that on occasion she watchéd . for me
one weekend when I went away for the weekend and the little

kids were with their dad.

Q. So there was one -- explain to us: about that weekend

that she watched Child 1

A. It was when they were going to Donna's so it would have
been 2006, I was goihg away for .the weekend for a personal
thing and‘ Dorothy had told fne that her granddaughter would
be there so she would watch her. So I paid her to watch
for me over the weekend because the other ones had
gone with their dad. ‘ ,

Q. So she actually -- spent more than just the day,
she speht the night there? o |

A. Yes. |

Q. But outside of the 2006 at that time she didn’'t go

back?.

A. N6«
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

Q. And what about S} did she go back after 20062
A, When Donna passed away she -- her and started
doing that full-time again. |
Q. When did stop going to the déycare?
A. stopped cjoing‘ to the daycare in 2008. We
were -— I had picked them u§ one evening and there was a
comment made about some inappropriate touching, and at that
time Dorothy was driving my kids to school. So the next day
I had hér drive them to school, I called my ex-husband and I
told him he needed to find out what that meant.
Q. Well, you said it was iriappropriate touching. Who told
you that? '
[ NChild 2 IR
Q. Did she tell you where that occurred?
A. She made the comment that he --

MR. SWERLING: Your Honor, I'm going to have to ask

“they limit it to time and place..

THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. Just tellz us where and at what time.
A. It was in my living room. She was actually on the
floor in front of me at the time and' was with me at
the time, too. |
Q. &nd she told you -- where did she tell you the
inappropriate tduchihg occurred?

A. She made the comment to me —-- well, SUUNEM started,
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES
OXIBW t01d me I shouldn't take my children there anymore.

MR. SWERLING: Your Honor, I object to the hearsay.
THE COURT: Sustained.

'Q. I guess —-

-THE COURT: Try to narrow your questions.

MS. SUTTON: Yeah. |
Q. Did‘she say that it occurred at the street or in the
home, where did say that she was inappropriately
touched? Where was she when she was inappropriately
touched? |
A. She was at the daycare.
Q. . And you stated that at that point you contacted your
ex-husband, Jeff. |
A. Yes.
Q; And you told him to find out more information.
A. Yes. ' |
0. And did you contact the police'or did somebody else
contact the police?
A. .Jeff.contacted the police. |
Q. And after things were reported to the poiice, what
things did you do with the children to assist I guess in ﬁhe
investigation? What actions did you do?

A. Once the police were contacted I had to take [QUILEM to

Columbia to the ARC Center where she met with a psychologist

and some forensic psychologist at that time to interview her
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

and go through -- hear her story.
Q. * Since 2008 have you had any contact with Mike Williams?
A. No, ma'am.

Q. Just one follow-up question, Mrs. Rowles, Susan. You
stated that when disclosed that she was fondled, that

at that point you didn't ask anymore questions, you

‘contacted your ex-husband.

A. Yes, ma'am. '
Q. Why didn't you ask her anymore questions?
A. I didn't want to believe that it was true, I didn't
want to believe that about Mike and Dorothy.
MS., SUTTON: No further questions.
 CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. SWERLING: |

Q. Good morning, Ms. Rowles. I wanted to ask you -- go

back over some of the questions that -- well, maybe I'll
stand over here and make it a little bit easier so you can -
look at the jury. There's no question I think from your
testimony thaﬁ y'all established a very close relationship
with the Williams family.

A. Yes. _

Q. And it started I think you would say 2003, is that when
you'pinpoint the time?

A. Yes.

Q. And what was your marital situation at that time? - Were
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

- you married or were you divorced, separated?

A. The end of -~ in 2003 I was still married.

Q0. So when they went over there you were still married? |
A,  ~Yes.

Q. And so that would be somewhere around 20037 -

A. Yes. ' |

Q. At that time would have been three years old?
A, Yes.

Q Three or four years old, in that range, she was born in |
200072 -

A. Yes, sir.

0. 2And then GHEEM was born in '95 so she would have been

eight?

A. Yes.

Q. Eight to nine year timeframe; is that cbrrect?

A. Yes. ‘ .

Q. And then you had another child,

A. Yes,

Q. Now, there were other children' at that daycare center

as well.

A. Yes, on and off there were different children.

Q. And they were there I guess for what, about three
years? |

A. The first time they were there for almost three years.

Q. And during that interim -- during that period of time
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

you and your husband separated and then got a divorce.
A. Yes, in 2004.

Q. So in that time -- did you move to another house,
another location at that time?.

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And you weré a single mom at that point.

A. Yes.

Q. From what you're saying for three years you had

. absolutely no concerns about what was going on; isn't that

true?

A.' No. I had no -- I.loved Mike and Dorothy.

Q. And they loved you.

A. Yes. .

Q. And the children loved them as well.

A. Yes.

Q. Is it fair to say that the kids, all three of your
children were very excited when they would go over there for
déycare?

A. They loved Mike ahd'Dorothy.

Q. And when we say that they loved Mike énd Dorothy, they
would go up and-they would hug them and they were very warm
to them, specifically Mike and Dorothy were warm to them,
they were warm to Mike and Dorothy.

A. Yes. '

0. Is that correct?
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

A, Yes.
Q. And I guess what -- I was trying to follow-up on one of
the questions, if I could follow-up, is when they would come
up or when Mike would come home and you would observe they
ran fo Mike, didn't they?

A, Yeah.

Q. And they called him Mike Mike.

A. Yes.
Q. And they called Dorothy —- what did you say they called
Dorothy? ’ ‘ '

- A, Me-maw.

Q. So it was actually more from what you're describingA
than a daycare/client relationshipr it was actually a
familial relationship.

A, Yeé.

Q. 1Is it fair to say, or isn't it fair to say, that the N

Williams, their family, Mike and Dorothy, basically almost

- acted as surrogate grandparents to the children?

A. In some ways. .. |

Q. As far as I'm talking aboutvthe relationships.

A. Yes. | | |

Q. And the kids looked at them in that way too, ‘did they
not? |

A. Yes.

Q. They from -- let me ask you this, from time to time
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES
they would -- they didn't necessary want to leave there when
you would come and pick them up, they would like to stay,

correct?

" A. To play, yes.

Q. To play. And you would go over to the house when you

would pick up the children and you felt very welcome there

and actually stayed for dinner on a number of occasions and
sat and talked with Dorothy in the house.

A. ~ Yes.

Q. Mike would be there sometimes and it would have been ---

Mike was working -- do you know where Mike was working at
that time?
A. He was a paramedic.

Q. For EMS, Chester County EMS?

A. Yes, sir. | - N

Q. And he’alSO'had a couple of oﬁher jobs that he was
working as well.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. BAnd so your relationship not really was just with
Dorothy, you had a relatibnship with him as well, a very
close relationship.

A. Yeé. ,

Q. When the divorce came'aboutror'the separation came
about things got financially difficult, did they not?
‘A. Being a single mother it was financially difficult,
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

yes.
Q. - Bbsolutely. And when you heeded something Mike was the
guy who was there to give you some assistance; is that - |
right? |

A. Yes.

Q. If you needed a hot water ﬁeater -

A. Yes.
Q. -- Mike got you a hot water heater.
A. Yes.

" Q. And he put it in. As a matter of fact that was one of

the part-time jobs he'had, isn't that true, he worked
heating and air conditioning.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. He had been doing that for years and.yeais in addition
to doing EMS. You heeded furniture and the Williams gave
you'scme furniture. . |

A. Yes. _

Q. The kids sometimes would need clothes and they would
get the kids clothes. |

A. Yes, sir.

Q.‘ They would take the kids'shopping for clothes.

AJ Yes, sir.

Q. Both of them,

A, Yes. '

Q. The:e wérehtimes when your automobile needed fixing and
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES -

Mike would fix your automobile.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. He would come over to the house and fix your -
automobile.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. There were times I think you needed some siding on your

house or some repairs to the house and Mike did those.

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. So whaf we're describing here is a very close
relationship not only with the children but with you trying
to help you through this very difficult time.

A. Xes.

Q. Correct?

A. Yes,

Q. And this was in the first period when the kids were
there; is that correct?

A. Well, it went on.

Q. It went on, but it started in that first three year

period when ybu got divorced when you were a single mom. -
A. Yes.

Q. - At some point in time I think you described when Mike
would come home the kids would run to him and they would
play with him.

A. Yes. _

Q. And he would —-- they would jump in the pool. Didn't




18

W W N oY e W N

NN NNN R R R B R s s s s
LR W R O W Oy e W N Rk O

52

TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES

they
A.
Q.
A,
Q.
what
A.
Q.
A,
Q.

have an above the ground pool?

Yes.

He would get on the computer.

Yes. ’ |
They would roll around on the floor and wrestle and QO
fathers or grandfathers do with their kids.

Yes.

And that was all three of them.

Yes.

At no time from what I understand did you pick up on

~ anything that was wrong with the relationship between the

children and Mike or Dorothy.

A.
Q.
A.
Q.

left

No, sir.

Is that right?

Yes, sir.

So when you left and took the kids ocut, the reason you

as I understand it was financial reasons, another woman

in town was doing the daycare for a little bit cheaper.

A,
Q.
A.
Q.

- It was a lot cheaper, yes.

A lot cheaper.

Yes.

‘The kids when they were at Dorothy's, what,weré the

hours? And I know this may sound silly but what were the

hours they were.there? And I'm talking about the first

time.
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TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES
A. I had my husband and -- I worked in a car lot so I
would drop them off between 7:00 and 7:30 and I would work
from like 8:30 to 5:30, sometimes 6:30 if we had to do
overtime and I wouldn't get home until 7:30 at night
sometimes.
0. So it could be -- during the summer it would be all
day. o
A. Yes.
Q. And during the school year the kids would go to school,
the onés that were going to school.
A. Yes. _
Q. And'Dorothy or Mike would drop them off at the bus stop
énd they would take them to the\échool.
A. Dorothy the last couple of months was driving them.
Q. And picked them up as well. |
A. The bus would drop them off, yes.
Q. The bus would drop them off and she woﬁld pick them up,
or was it right there at the house?
A. It was right there at the house.
Q. So there was a lot of time that the kids were at the
house. And on the weekends, of course, you had the
children.
A. Yes.
Q. And you didn't need daycare on the weekends unless you

were working.
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TESTIMONY. OF SUSAN ROWLES

A, Correct. | _

Q. So you went to, is it Donna McManus?

A. Yes. _

Q. And the kids did not want to leave Dorothy and Mike;
isn't that true?

A. actually didn't care if we left.

Q. - She never said anything like that to you about Mike and
Dorothy, did she?

A. No.

Q. She‘just.—— she was getting older. In 2006 she was,
whaﬁ,-ll years old already?

A. She was, but she knew that -- she had actually through

a friend heard about Donna, Donna offered to watch at

. substantially less, she was like, "Mom, I have a friend

there, you know, that -- I think you should consider
switching." -

Q. But again, here is the point of my question, they --

none of the kids said they wanted to leave for any

inappropriate reasons.

A. No, sir.

Q. And she may have - just said that, "Let's go over to
Donna McManus," but that was already a decision to bé made

because of the financial situétion.

. A, Yes, sir..

Q. She never expressed to you at that point in time that
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there was anything going on or anything inappropriate.

A. No, sir. -~

Q. And so for a period of time -- and again, let me get
back to the original question, let's just say the two
younger, they didn't want to leave, they enjoyed Dorothy and
Mike and so did correct? |

A, True.

Q. Even when they left to go to Donna McManus' they were
still havincj that affectionate relationship between Mike -and
Dorothy, and Mike and Dorothy were having an affectionate
relationship with them.

A. Yes.. |

Q. Even at that time.

A. Yes.
Q. And the Williams didn't want them to leave.

A. No.
Q. But because the kids were there so long it was a
question of what was going to be a fair charge, correct?

A. It came down to I was a single mom, yes.

Q. SuJ-:e,A financially. It was just strictly a financial
decision is what I'm trying to say.

A. Yes. ‘

Q. At that point in time —- and I don't remember hearing
it on diféct examination so I just wanted to followup, when
you went and took the kids to McManus we know that ' .
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never said anything happened inappropriately with her,
never said anything inappropriate to her, ‘correct?
A. Correct. | |

Q. - But did Iﬁention to you something about
Mr. Williams and Mrs. Williams' grandchild, correct?

A. Yes. |

Q. And she told you that had said that she did not
like going over to her grandfather and grandmother's house
because the defén_dant touched her; isn't that correct?

A. Not those words, no, sir.

Q. Well, what words were they? _

A. She said something about said that Mike touchéd
her bottom. |

Q. Touched her?

A, Her bottom.

Q. And that was éomethin'g that she thought was worth
telliﬁg you about? _ '

A. Honestly I didn't réally -- T just ~- I overlooked it.
Q. Pardon? \ .
A. I overlooked it.

Q. Well, you overlooked it, but I mean, if that was said
that's sort of a little bit of a red flag if that's correct,
isn't that true, that he was touching his 'granﬁddaughter'.;
A. . No. Because tov me I didn't know .- I‘don'-t know
her and I had a really close relationship with them. That
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comment wasn't made until I think later and I had seen Mike
énd Dorothy around the kids.

Q. When youvsaid it was not made until later, what were
you talking about? -Because my understanding, you correct me
if I'm wrong, it was when you left to go over to Mr. and

Ms. McManus' that she mentioned this thing that dUN@E had
told.her, thought it was important endugh to tell her.

A. It wasn't when we first left, it was after 2006 when
they spent the weekend at their house.

Q. But you were not going there that period of time.

A. No, sir.

Q. The kids were not going there.

: A’, No.

-Q. You were saying that she told you that after she épent
the weekend at the house.

A. It was a little while after she spent the weekend at

the house, yes.

Q. And UNEN s3id she didn't like going there because the
grandfather -- | '

A. Well, I don't remember the thing about (VIR didn't
like going there. She just made a comment that she didn't
really care for Mike, that said something .about him

_ touching her butt.

Q. All right. Not withstanding that, you never made any
inquiry about that, did you, according to what you're

23




24

O O N ooy U W N e

I N N T S T T N T e S e S S T S = S =R =
GO > W N P O W ® 3 60 U > W N B o

58
TESTIMONY OF SUSAN ROWLES
saying? |
A- NOn . - N

Q. It wasn't -- certainly the State didn't ask you about.
that -on direct examination.

A.  No.

Q. Ms. McManus died.

A, Yes.

Q. Now, let me ask you, during the period of time between
you left the Williams and the time you went back to the
Williams the kids would go over there periodically, correct?

A. Yeah, T went with them. We -—-

Q. You went with them. The relationship wasn't broken, it "

was just a finaneial reason for you to go to _the other -
place. |
A. Yes.
Q. . But the relationship continued during that period of
time and all of the actions that we just talked .about, the
affection betw‘een' the kids and them and them and the kids.
A. Right. |
Q. And you personally observed it?
A. Yes. .
Q. And even you said went over there and spent the
night With X
A. Yes, and Dorothy. v

' and she are about - the same age, close in age?
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A. I think so, yes.

Q. And she did that on more than bne occasion as I
understand it. No?

A. I don't really- know.

Q. At some point you decided to go back to -- Ms. McManus
died and then there was another babysitter that you went to
for awhile. |

A. Not very long, just in the interim.

Q. But Ms. McManus, obviously you left her because she

. passed away, you had to find somebody else. Who did you go

to next?

-A. A lady named Thery.

Q. And why did you leave her?

A. Just her situation. She had a bunch of kids and they
all played together, just the situation. Mike and Dorothy
had openings and I was close to them.

Q. Was there something about her house, too, you'didn't

like or somethiﬁg like that? '

A. Yeah, he had some issues.

Q. Well, what kind of issues?

A. He would drink a cbuple of beers.

Q,' Were they just alcohol or was there sexual related

issues or anything like that?

A, No.

Q.  Just alcohol?
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A. It.was alcohol.

Q. So you decided to go back to Mike and Dorothy's?

A. Yes. | A

Q. And they took you. Of course, thé relationship never
ended except business wise, but the friendship never ended
and you went back. “

A.  Yes. ‘

Q. Not withstanding -+ now, as I understand it whatever
said about, what said, you just
disregarded. | .

A. Yes.

Q. That was of no concern to you whatsoever?

A. I really didn'tlthink'about it because I didn't know
Q. But the fact that someone would say someone was
touching someone didn't concern you at that point, you
brought the kids back. |

A. I didn't think anything of it.

Q. And so the kids went back and they were there for about
a year before the allegations arose.

A. I think a little over a year maybe, yeah.
Q. Little over a yeai. And at that po;ﬁt wds not -

~going back, she was staying by herself.

A, Correct.

(OR And she was that would have been about 11l or 12,
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somewhere around that range?
A. Yes.

Q. Did she stay by herself?
A. Yes.

Q. Did she go to some other house and live during that

period of time?

A. No.
Q. Did she do that later?

A. SUCHE has never not lived with me.

Q. Okay. I just wondered if she went to live somewhere.

Okay; And so she would continue to go over there, even
though she was not a client anymore or a member of the
daycare she would go over periddically(to see the Williams,
correct?

A,v If I wanted to see the Williams sometimes shé would go |
with me, yes. |

Q. And same relationship, same feelings, same everything;
is that right?

A. Yes. . .

0. And during that period of time and GHEFPN had

the same relatidnship, same feeling, same affection and it

was mutual both ways.
A. Yes.
Q. And during that period of time Mr. Williams would

continue to help you whenever he could or whenever you
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needed some assistance; is that right?
A. Yes. |
Q. Whatever happened hgppened on -- or the disclosure was
made somewhere around September 8th, September 9th of 2008;
is that correct? ,
A, I don't know the date.
Q. If you accepted that that's about when it was. Did you
ever discuss with what she contended happened?
A. No. , | | v ,
Q. So between September of '08 and the time she went to
the interview in Columbia on October 3rd you and she had no-
discussions about it?
A. I honestly —- I.let my husband deal with that, my
ex-husband, because I couldn't wrap my head around it. I
couldn't see Mike as the person he was to me and the little
bit that I got vaanted it to be investigated.
Q. You couldn't see it happening based upon the ‘
relationships you all had. r |
A, I didn't want to believe it, not because I couldn't see
it -- hindsight is 20/20, but I didn't want to believe it at
first. But my little girl, I believed her.

MR. SWERLING: Well, I would move that be stficken,
Judge, and the jury instructed fhét that is just not an
issue, whether she beiieves them or not, -it's not the

matter.
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THE COURT: It's not responsive to the question. I

would order you to disregard the last remark of the witness

and order it be stricken from the record. Your next
question.

Q. Did you ever discuss with between September 8th
and October 3rd what happened, what she contended happened?
A. We had a couple comments made and that was it.

Q. So it doesn't sound like you were doing any in-depth

questioning of these children yourself?

A. It was -- no. I never went in-depth with the
questioning.
Q. You were —- when she went down to the ARC, which is in

Columbia, the forensic interview, that was October 3rd, if

you would justAaccept that is the date you went with her; is.

that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. You were what they call the reporter back then, you
were the one giving the backgreund information about

A, Yes.

Q. Because she was the one that was being interviewed.
A. Yes.

Q. No one ever -- there was never any forensic interview

done of [CILE isn't that true?
A. That's true.

Q. No ARC interview. She may have spoken to an

29
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investigator, she may have spoken to somebody from DSS but
nobody ever thought about doing an ARC interview with her;
is that correct?
A. Well, I'm not the one who -- I didn't know what they
were.
Q. I know. Nobody'suggestéd that an ARC interview be done
sor SN |
A. Correct.
Q. And she was only -- at that point she would have been
13.
A, Correct.
Q. - When you went down there you sat down and gave
informaﬁion to the people, you filled out some applications
or filled out some assessment formsf'correct?'
A. I don't remember.
Q. 2nd let me show you one and see if you remember this
form;

MR. SWERLING: May I approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Sure.

-

Yes.

. That's your handwriting?

Yes.

This is what they call an intake form questionnaire for
the forensic interview, correct? |

A, Yes.
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Q0. And did you answer all of these questions accurately
and truthfully?
A. Yes. |
MR. SWERLING: Judge, can I approach the bench with
Ms. Hickman for a moment and discuss something with you?
THE COURT: Sure.
(Bench conference was held.)
THE COURT: You may continue.
MR. SWERLING: Thank you, Judge.
BY MR. SWERLING:
Q. The form that I just showed you, you recognize that
form as the assessment and resource center caregiver

questionnaire for a forensic interview?

"A. Yes.

Q. And this is the form that you filled out on October 3rd
when you went down for the ARC interview, where your
daughter went down for the ARC interview; is that correct?
A. Yes. |

Q. And directing your question to number five, "Has there

ever been a child abuse investigation involving this child

- or the family before,” your answer that you checked was no;

is that correct?

A. There was never any investigation on SUUUPEE before.

Q. . I didn't ask you that. You said has there ever been a
child abuse investigation about the child or the family
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before and you checked no. -
A. Yes. | |

| MR. SWERLING: Just a couple of more questions, Judge.
‘Q.' Do you remember also at some point speaking with the
fblks from DSS when you were what they would call the
reéorter filling out information for DSS?
fA. I don't really know.
Q. Do you remember meeting with somebody named Shanay
Moore?
A. I don't really rémember all of that, I'm sorry.

MR. SWERLiNG: If the Court would just indulge me for a
second. - -
| Break'in'broceedings.)

'MR. SWERLING: No further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any redirect solicitor?

MS. SUTTON: Not from the State.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am, you may step down. You

may call your next witness.

MS. MINGO: Your Honor, the State calls SiCE
 The witness, Sl was first duly

sworn and testified as follows,ion:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. MINGO:
THE CLERK: State your name.

THE WITNESS: My name is [SHER -
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Q. How old are you,

A. I'm 11,

Q. Are you doing okay today?

A. Yes. |

Q. Who are your parents?

A. Susan Rowles- and Jeffrevaowles.

Q. Who do you live with?

A. I live with Susan Rowles.

Q. Where do you go to school?

A. Great—Falls Elementary.

Q. ‘What grade are you going into wheﬁ school starts back?
A.  Sixth.

Q. ' What are you doing all summer long?

A. Excuse me?

Q. What have you been doing all summer?

A. I have been swimming and stuff like that.

Q. Are you ready for school to start back?

A. No. |

0. Do you have any siblings? , .
A. Yés, ma'am. I have a sister, I have a
brother named , and T have two other brothers
named énd én'd I have another sister
named (IR | |

Q. You've got a lot of siblings.

A. Yes.

33
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Q. Which of the children are your mom's children, her

bidlogical children?

et R

Q. You're 11. Do you know the difference between a truth

and a lie?
A. Yes.
Q. So if I were to tell you, " you are wearing all
black today," is that the truth or a lie?
A. A lie. |
Q. If I said you are 11 years old, is that the truth or a
lie?
A, | Truth,
Q. I'm going to show you a photo.

MS. MINGO: Your anor, permission for the:witness to
step down?

THE COURT: ‘Certainly.
Q. Ifm just going to ask you a few questions about body
parts so I will understand what you call certain things,
let's step over here so the jury can see. What do you call

these?

" A.. Boobs.

Q. Is this a girl or a.boy?

A. It's a girl. }

Q. Andlspeak'up‘louder. What are these?
A. Boobs.




NN NN RN H R s | B R s s
e W N RO Y ® 9y e W NP O

TESTIMONY OF (Sillig

69

THE COURT: Let me interrupt you, Solicitor. You may
end up having to askAthe witness to come around this side so'
that she will be facing the jury so they can hear her
responses. I think they're going to have a hard time
understanding her if she has her back to the jury.

MS. MINGO: Yes, Your Honor.

Q. Let's start over.

A, Call those boobs.

Q. What would you refer to this as?
A. Vagina. _ -

THE COURTQ' You're going to have to try to get her to
speak up louder, the court reporter can't hear her.
Q. Talk up a little bit louder. Okay?A
A. The belly button. '

Q. Bnd how about this?

A. Priyate part.

Q. And how about this?

A. Butt.

Q. And the same on a boy, what do you call these? You
don't know? |
A. No.

Q. That?

A. Belly button.

Q. What do you call this?

A. Private part.'

35
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- Q. ~ What do you refer to thisvas?

A. Butt.

Q.- All right. You can go have a seat back up there. I'm

going.to ask you another question. Has anyone ever touched
you in any way you didn't like?

A. Yes, ma'am. |

Q. And can yoﬁ tell me who did that?

A, Mike Williams.

Q. How do you know Mike Williams; or how did you come to
know Mike Williams?

A. He his wife, Dorothy, baby-sitted me.

0. Do you know about how long she baby-sitted you?

A. I think it was a couple of years. ,

Q.  What did you do normaliy when you are at Dorothy and
Mike;s house? | | |

A. I would play on the computer, when they had the pool
out we would go swimming.

Q.  Did he also -- or did Dorothy also keep your siblings?
A. Yes. | '

Q. Were thefe other children there as well?

A. Yes. ‘

Q. You indicated that he touched you in a way you didn't

like. Where were you touched?

" A. I was touched on my private part.

Q. Did he do this one time or more than one time?
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A. More than one time.

Q. Are you able to recall_where'these incidents occurred?
A. They occurred in the computer room and once in a while
in the bedroaom.

Q. Teil me about the computer room. Do you remember about
the first time —- well, how old you were the first time he
touched you approximately? |
A. No, ma'am, I don't remember.

Q. Can you tell me about the time he touched you in the .
computer room?.

A. - The time he touched me in the computer room was I had
told him that it hurt and he said, "It's supposed to feél
gobd." And I said; "If you don't stop I'm going to go tell
Dorothy," and I got off his lap to go and he pulled me back
in the chair.

Q. Iet's stop'for a minute. You were in the computer
room. Do you remember what all was in this computer room?
A. There was a'tanning bed, there was a closet, there was’
a compuﬁer with a stand like that it sat on ahdAit had a
chair that pushed in.

Q. Now, this specific incident that you started telling us
about, were there other children in the room?

A. Yes, there was one girl. |

Q. Other than the other girl, you and the defendant, no

one else, correct?
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A. Yes,

Q. - He touched you in the computer room. How were you
postured in relation to him?

A. I was on his lap.

Q. And how did you:get on his lap?

A. He would be sitting down and I would walk over and sit
on his lap.

Q. What was he doing while he was sitting down --

A. He -~

Q. -— before you goﬁ on his lap?

A.  He was playing on the computer.

Q. Did you go over to his lap and sit on his lap

- voluntarily or did he ask you to come and sit on his lap?

A. I went over there voluntarily.

Q. Once you got on his lap what did he do?

A, Well, it was a couple . of minutes, then he put his hand

down and touched me and it hurt.

Q. Did he touch you on your skin or on top of your
‘clothes?

A. On my skin.

Q. Did he touch you inside your private part or just on
the outside? Does that make sense? | |
A. Yes, He mostly did it outside, there was only a few
times when he did it iﬁside.

Q. Did he say anything while he did it or after he did it?
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No, ma'am.
Was the door opened or closed to this computer room?
Opened. |

. Do you know where Dorothy was at the time?

L S S

i'm.pretty sure she was either in the kitchen cooking
or she was in the living room watching TV.

MR. SWERLING: Judge, can we approach the bench for-a
side bar?

THE COURT:  Bear with us, ladies and gentlemen.

(Bench éonference was held.)

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, we're going to take a
ten minute recess. I'll aék you if you would please step in
the ju:y room and remind_You it's too early to begin
discussing the case, be back with you shortly.

(The jury left the courtroom.)

THE COURT: The witness may step down. Any objection?

MS. MINGO: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well let's -- the reason for the side bar
that we had last was? | ‘

MR. SWERLING: Judge, while Ms. Rowles was on the stand
I showed her a document which was the Assessment Resource
Center caregiver questionnaire for the forensic interview,
it was done on October 3rd of 2008. This is a'-- she said

she filled it out, I guess we ought to make this a Court

. Exhibit.
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' THE COURT: Okay. v = (
MR. SWERLING: So Judge, this is a document that is
used when someone goes for an ARC interview and Ms. Rowles
was the reporter,;filled it out in her -own handwriting. On
question number five it says, "Has there ever been a child
abuse investigation involving this child or family before?
If yes describe," and she answered ho,/ My intent at that
time was to go ahead and impeach her about the events that
we discussed yesterday that actually are not on the record
yet, but in -- and I don't know that there is a dispute
about what happened in 2004 but let me state what I think
would be an acceptable stipulation, if they would stipulate
rather than have Eo put up this testimony. But in April of
2004 there was a report_made to the sheriff's department ~--
Fairfield County Sheriff's Department through DSS-by Jeffrey.

Rowles, the father, that said that he had had a conversation

with a -- that his son, who is his son,

admitted to requiring or forcing QLR ' to have oral

 sex with him over a period of time. At that time she would

- have only been eight -- between the ages of eight and nine,

he would have been.I think 15. That matter was

 investigated, there is an incident report and I'll put that

in as an exhibit as well. Julian Hamilton was the one that

came from the Fairfield County Sheriff's Department, he

turned it over to Mary Anne Phillips and the family was
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spoken.to, there was no dispute as to whether or not the
actions happened, whether or not forced

to have oral sex with him over a period of time. The
matter was discussed with the family, the family said they
would handle the mattér internally, did not want to go
thrdugh the court system and as a result of that DSS did not
do an investigation nor did the Fairfield County Sheriff's

Department do anything further, they closed their file. And

it was -- it has been our contention that that conduct is
very relevant in this case because Sl at the age

of eight or nine was exposed herself to sexual abuse. We're

“certainly not offering it for -- to impugn her chastity

under the Rape Shield Statute but to be able to show that a
child at the age of eight or nine goes through incredible
psychosexual changes, psychological changes which could
affect her in her develgpment and would have an impact on
this case. Also it shows that she would have a source of
knowledge about sexual activity indepehdent completely of
whatever she alleges Mr. Williams did. We haven't gotten to

that point yet, I know about Groversteen and we've discussed

that case actually informally in chambers, but what I'm

seeking to do now is use that information for impeachment
purposes since the document was not answered truthfully
because there was, in fact, an investigation involving the

family before. Let me just add, does anybody have any
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dispute about what the facts were in 20047

MS. SUTTON: Judge, we don't dispute the facts. I
think they're as listed on the incident report concerning
the incident between and‘ the stepbrother,
I think that was also stated in chambers, that's not
something that we necessarily dispute. But there were other
reasons as far as the State objecting to that information
coming in. '

MR. SWERLING: I'm just at this point -—Ajust for the
offer of proof that we all accept that'é what happened. And
I will offer.a copy of the incident report as an accurate
report of what happened in 2004. So my purpose was -for
impeachment purposes that the questionnaire was not filled
out properly. ‘ |

TﬁE COURT: Right. And at the side bar the Court
sustained an objection'to that request finding that that was
not relevant at least at this time, that it would be a
collateralvimpeachment, that she did answer the question by
saying that how she had answered -- how she had answered
that questionnaire, and I think that whether or not it was

truthful or not has not been shown to be relevant at this

, stage. That was the ruling at the side bar and it continues

to be the ruling on the record.
MR. SWERLING: Your Honor, this is the 2004 incident

réport;
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THE COURT: Yes. You may still as I understand it make
another motion at the conclusion of the State's case
concerning the admissibility of that investigation separate
and apért from this; is that correct?

MR. SWERLING: Yes, sir. And I may depending upon
what's presented by the State in the case see if I can
establish the relevancy of it.

THE COURT: Right. Anything else?

MR..SWERLING: Not at this time.

THE COURT: Let's take our five minute break then.

(A recess was taken.)

THE COURT: State ready for the jury?

MS. MINGO: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Defense ready for the jury?

WR. SWERLING: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Let's bring our jury back in.

.(The jury returned to the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Welcome back, ladies and gentlemen. I
believe we are ready to resume with the examination of the
witness.

MS. MINGO: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MS. MINGO:
Q. I believe when you were last speaking you were
telling the jury about a time you were sitting on Mike's lap

in the computer room.
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A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And he touched you on your private part, is that what
you told us? | | |

A. Yeé, ma'am.

Q. And I can't remember exactly how far we got. Did you
indicate he touched you inside YOur private part or on top
of your private part, do you remember?

A. He mostly did it on top but sometimes on the inside.
Q. This particular day that you're telling me'abbut, was
that inside your privaté part or on top of your private

part?

- A. On top.

Q. After he did that, did you do anything?

A. Né. I just played on the computer;

Qv  So while he did it you were playihg on the computer?
A. (Nodé head yes.) '

Q. Was he saying anything while he did it?

A, No, ma'am.

'.Q. Did you attempt to tell Dot?

A. No. Because I didn't know what he was doing because I

was only little.

Q. This particular time?
A, Yes, ma'am.
Q. Were there other times he touched you in the computer

room?
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A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. - Well, let me ask you about this, I think you indicated
that he touched you in the bedroom before as well?

A. Yes, ma;am. |

Q. Whose bedroom was it?

A. It was Mike's and Dorothy's.

Q. Okay. What were you doing in the bedroom?

A. Me and this one girl, we werexlaying on the bed

watching TV and he was laying in the middle of us.

Q. Was this daytime, nighttime?

A. Daytime. ‘
Q. - Did Ms. Williams generally keep you in the daytime

while your parents worked?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Are you facing him or is your back to him?

'A. I was -- I was laying on the back and he was just
laying in the middle. |
Q. Were you under the covers?
A. No, I was laying on top.

Q. Was he on top as well?
Yes; ma'am. A
Q. And what did he do while you were lying in the bed with
him? | |
A;, He took his hand and put it down my pants.

Q. You were wearing pants?
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A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. And that time did he touch you -- was it on your skin
directly?

A. Yes, ma'am. | |

Q. Did he fouch you on top of your private part or inside
your privéte part that time?

A. On top. | | ‘

Q. Bny exchange of words between the two of you? Did he

say anything?

A. No, ma'am. _

(Q. BRbout how long did that go on, do you remember?
"An No, ma'ém. |

Q. Was it a short while or a long while?

A. I would have to say short.v

Q.  You described two specific incidents. Is there

anything else you remember about Mike touching yoﬁ? You
said it happened several times, where were these other
times?

A. zTheré wasn't any. »

Q. Did he just touch you.thoée two times?

MR. SWERLING: _Objectioh, she already said there's no

~other times.

MS. MINGO: Your Honor, I'm just asking her to clarify.
THE COURT: Overruled. Go. ahead. |

A. Like there was other times, I just -- I can't remember
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where.

Q. Yoq can't specifically recall the details?

.A; Yes, ma'am. |

Q. Do you even know where the other incidents took place?
A. They were either in the computer foom or the bedroom,
there was no other place.

Q. How often did it happen, do you remember that?

A. Every time he was there and she was babysitting us.

Q. Every time he did it was she there in the house?

A. Most of the time, yes. |

Q. What about other timeé?

A, Sometimes she would go to the store and if he was there
he would watch us and he would do it. | X

Q. Did you ever try to tell Ms. Williams or attempt to

tell her?
A. No, ma'am.
Q. I believe when I asked you about what was going on in

the computer room you said you went and sat on his lap.
While all of this was going on were you afraid of

Mr. Williams? What were your feelings towards him?

A. I don't remember. B

0. All right. That's fine. You indicated sometimes he
touched you'on top of your private part, sometimes inside of
your private part.’ Do you remember today any time he :

touched you inside of your private part?

47
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A. No, ma'am. |

Q. Did you ever tell anyone about what was going on?

A. No, ma'am. .
Q. You never spoke to a,nyone‘abOut this?

A. No, ma'am. |

Q. How did it all come out?

A. It came out -- one night my sister had asked me if he
had ever touched me and I had told her yes.

Q. . . So you told your sister?

'A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. What sister did you ‘tell?

a.

Q. Did you tell your mom or dad eventually?

A. No. She told them and then they had asked me and I had
told my mom that he had touched me in my pants. _

Q. - At the time that you told and told your parents,
do you remember how old you were at that time?

A. No; ma'am.

Q. Was it still go;Lng on at that time or had it stopped’>
A. It was still go:.ng on.

Q. = Well, let me ask you this,_ was there a reason
you didn't tell your mom sooner or when it first happened?
A. Because I was only like four and you don't really learn
about that stuff in school so you didn't know about it and I
didn't really know what the difference was.




\4

O W J o U W NN

S T N S N S N S N S T S O S o T T Tt
G o= W N R O L ® 9 o0 e W N B O

TESTIMONY OF ] v
Q. You didn't know it was wrong, is that what you're
saying? - |

MR. SWERLING: Objection, leading.

THE COURT: I will sustain the objection. Disregard
the last question of the attorney, order it to be stricken

from the record.

Q. QU lct me ask you a few more questions. When

. these incidents occurred, did they occur in the daytime or

nighttime?

A. Most of the time in the daytime.

Q. And you talked about times where Mr. Williams touched
you. Did you ever touch him anywhere?

A. No, ma'am. _

Q. Did you ever see his private parts at all?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Can you tell me about a time where you saw his private
part? '

A. We were in the computer room and he wore these really
short orange shorts, and I don't know if he did itrpurposely
but somehow his thing fell out of his pants and I saw it.
Q. You said these were short orange shorts?

A. Yes, ma'am. |

Q. Did he say anything?

A. No, ma'am. 1

Q. Was that the only-time you had seen it?

49
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A. No, ma'am.
Q. Can you tell me about another time?

Another time we were in the computer room and he told
né to get down on my knees and I was beside him on my knees
on the floor and he was in the chair and he was wéaring
those short orange shorts and it fell out and he told me to
stick it back into his shorts, but after that there was like
this stuff“thaf came out.

Q. _éame out of where?

A. Out of his private part. I guess it's like-whefe-he

pees out of, I'm not really sure about that!.
Q. All right. He had asked you to put his private back in |
his shorts? | ‘

A. Yes, ma'am. - -

Q. TWas that"before.—— did you do it?

A. No, ma'am.

Q. Did the liquid come out after he asked you that or
before, do you remember? 4

A. After.

Q. What was he doing in'the computer room that particulér
time? |

A. He was just on the computer.

Q. What were you doing? .

A. I was just in there with him, we were just playiné-

around.
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Q.
A.

Q.

A.

85

Until he told you to get on the floor; isvthat right?A
Yes.

MS. MINGO: Beg the Court's iﬁdulgence, Your Honor.
(Breék in proceedings.) |

What did Mike refer to you as, what did he call you?

He sometimes would call me Honey Bunny and SUGEAN and

girlfriend and that-was all.

Q.
A.

MR, SWERLING:

And you referredlto him as?

Mike Mike.

MS. MINGO: Answer anything Mr. Swerling has.

MR. SWERLING: Can we épproach,one second, Judge?
(Bench conferenée'was hela.)

CROSS EXAMINATION

Ms. Rowles, how are you doing?

Good.
Can I call you Child 2
Yes, sir.

How old are you now?
I'm1l. _

Where do you go to school?
Great Falls Elementary.
What grade are you:in?
Going in to six.

You do pretty good in school?

o1
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. ‘You were born in the year 200072

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. And so based upon what you've testifiéd'a few moments

ago this started when you were about three or four?

“A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you :emember things from being when you were three
or four?

Aa. Yes, sir. ‘

Q. Let me -- you actdally,went_to Mike and Dorothy's on
two different occasions; is that right?

A. | Yes, sir. |

Q. There was a period in the early 2000's after you were
two or three, four.yéars old after Ms. McManus died and you
went back to the Williams residence; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir. ' ’

Q. And my understanding -- well, you tell me actually -- I
understand you had a really close relationship with Mike and
Dorothy.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. It was very -- like family.

A. ‘Yes) sir.

Q. You looked forward to going over there;
A. Yes, sir. | |
Q. And so did and so did FRIEE
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Yes, sir.

Is that right?

Yes, sir.

It was funtthere.

Yes, sir.

You got to play and you got on the computer.

Yes, sir.

You used to like getting on the computer too, correct?
Yes, sir.

Did Everythihg Girls.com or something like that, it's
of like a game thing fbr girlé.

Yes, sir. |

In fact, you had your own password on the computer; is
right?

Yes, sir.

And my understanding is you were -- you and

and QUGN were very affectionate with Mike and Dorothy.

A.

Q.
A.

Yes, sir.
Treated them like family.

Yes, sir.

And reciprocally they would actually treat you the same

like grandchildren.
Yes, sir.
Right? Is that right?

Yes, sir.

53
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Q. When -- and I'm talking aﬁout both periods of time when
you were there you}spent_an anui lot of time at their house
when you were not in school. |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Sometimes all day.

A. Yes, sir. »

Q. And then sometimes in the evening when you had dinner.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Because your mom worked and there was a period of time

in there when you were in school and there was a period of
time when you were not in school.
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And is it true that Mike would come home, you and
and SHICEEN would just give him a big hug and say

hello.
A, Yes, sir.
Q. Because you were excited to see him. -

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that was the same with Dorothy as well; is that
correct? | | | '

A. Yes, sir. .

Q. .And they treated you like they were —- you were their
own I guess is what I was trying to gét-out; is that right?
A. Yes, sir. ' |

Q. And when Mike would be around y'all would play
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together, you -- and I say you and the other people the

other kids in the house and your sister and your brother.

..

Yes, sir,

Mike was a lot of fun to play with.

Yes, sir.

He would role around in the.floor Qith you.
Yes, sir. |

Take you outside in the yard.

Yes, sir,

'There was times in the pool.

Yes, sir.
Games.
Yes, sir.

All of that stuff, he would treat you like a grandchild

and you would treat him like a grandfather.

A.
Q.
A.
Q.

Yes, sir.
And the same thing would be. Dorothy.
Yes, sir.

But Mike was a little bit more playful, wasn't he? He

was the one that'actually interacted with the kids most.

A.
Q.

Yes, sir.

And not only people at the daycare but other kids you

saw him in a relationship with, everybody loved Mike, didn't

they?

A'

Yes, sir.
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Q. And you called him Mike Mike,
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you went to the school or daycare center for three

years during the early 2000 period, and that is when you

said all of this was going on.
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But it never seemed to have changed your attitude

towards Mike because you were always playing with Mike and
having fun with Mike and you and him and the other kids
around you; is that riéht?

A. Yes, sir. ‘

Q. And it nevef diswayed you from wanting to go to the
house and play at the house and be at theAhouse. You always

wanted to go there.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you didn't like to leave either I understand. When
time came to leave you wanted to continue ——.you and your
brother and all wanted to continue to stay and play.
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And there were times when your mom would come and she

would sit down after a hard day at work on the couch, plod

down and she and Dorothy would talk about all sorts of

things, right?
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A. Yes, sir,
Q. And you would still be doing your thing with the other
kids or with Mike having fun.
“A. | Yes, sir.
Q. is that righté
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Because it was all about -- when you were in a daycare
it was all about having fun, right? That's what you wanted
to do. | |
A. Yes, sir.
0. Right?
a. Yes, sir.
Q. But you had pretty much run of the house, did you not?

You could go anywhere in the house.

A. Yes, sir.
Q. It was a small house.

“A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you would Walk in the living rbom, and then from
the living room it was kind of small, you would walk into
the kitchen,fcorrect?

A. Yés, sir.

Q. Then you would make a left and you would go into the

hall and there would be a bedroom straight ahead, right?
A; Yes, sir. |
Q. Then there would be the master bedroom.

57
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. And across from the master bedroom when you made a left

-would be the computer room.

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. And that computer récm door -- when anything was going
on in the computer room the computer room door was open; is
that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Nobody ever locked the computer room door.

A. No, sir. _

Q. Nobody evef locked the bedroom door.

A. No, sir.

Q. Even the times when you said this was going on, these

things were going on —-

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -- the doors were open.
A. Yes, sir. 

Right? And Dorothy would be in the house.

©

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And she would be in the kitchen.
A. Yes, sir.

| Q. She would be in the bedroom.
A. Yes, sir.
Q. She would be in the living room.
A. Yes, sir.
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Q. But you say this. was all taking place either in the
computer room or the bedroom with the doors wide open and
Dorothy right in the house; is that right?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Mike and Dorothy were also good to you because I think
your rﬁom was going through some financial problems.

Yes, sir.

And so they bought you stuff.

A

Q

A. Yes, sir.
Q Bought you toys, presents.

A Yes, sir.

Q Took you shopping.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Not only you but and as well, right?
A. VYes, sir.

Q. Came out to the house and helped your mom fix things
for her at the house. -

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The heating, the air conditioning, the car, sidihg; is
that right?- |

A. Yes, sir..

Q. Brought you -- there was furniture brought to you as
well. |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So from what you are telling this jury here there was a
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really close‘relationship‘with the Williams family.

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. Right? When you -- there was a period of time when you

went back where you left the Williams family and you went

" over to the Ms. McManus' house for awhile. =

‘A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then I think Sherry Taylor fof a period of time.

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. There was somebody else in the interim.  And without
going back over what your mom had said about why, you didn't
want to leave the Williams house, did you?

A; No, sir.

Q. There was no reason to, you were having fun.

A. Yes, sir.

Q; It was a good place to be.

A, Yes, sir. '

Q. And. so that was a little bit of a separation anxiety on
your'part, you did not want to leave going to daycare over
there; is that true?

A. Yes, sir. » _ _

Q. Bnd neither did and SN

A. . No, sir. |

Q. So despite what everybody says was going on, none of-

- you wanted to leave and you were not happy about having to

leave and go over to Ms. McManus' house, correct?
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A. Yes, sir. :

Q. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, When YOu were going over to Ms. McManus' house
there was also a period of time where you would still come
back over there once in a while with your mom.

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And see the Williams folks.

A. Yes, sir.

0. Because they were like family.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And even when you were at this Sherry's house you would
go over to the Williams' house to see them because they were
like family.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And your reaction and Sierra's reaction and Nathaniel's
reaction was. the same as it always has been, you saw Mike
and got excited, didn't you?

Yes, sir.

You saw Mike and you smiled.

Yes, sir.

Yes, sir.

A,

Q.

A.

Q. You saw Mike'and Dordthy and you hugged them.
A. ‘ |

Q. You saw Mike and Dorothy and they hugged you.
A,

Yes, sir.




62

o ® =N oy L = W [NV =

RN N N NN R R R s B e
U & W N B O © ® 4 a & W N B o

TESTIMONY OF | e
Q. And and Euul correct?

A. Yes, sir. ‘

Q. And when you went back there you hadAthe same
relationship. ‘

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You went back there for about a year before these

events took place; is that correct?

A. | Yes, sir. |

Q. And when you went back the relationship hadn't changed
at all. J o |

A. Yes, sir. ‘

Q. It was still like grandparents and still like
grandchildren. |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, in fact, you went -- Mike worked for the EMS,
right, Chester County'EMS?\. ‘

A. Yes, sir. |

Q.  You would go over to the EMS'sometimes.with Dorbthy or
with your mom and stop in and see the ambulances and
everything, correct?. | |

A. Yes, sir.

Q.. Mike-was always wanting and willing to entertain you

and the other kids and play with them.
A.  Yes, sir, |

Q. And not inappropriately, just having fun.
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A.

Q.

Yes, sir.

Now, from what you were describing there was a period

of time when you in the early 2000's, were you aware -- not

you -- well, I guess you weren't, you weren't aware of

anything that was going on with 'is that right?

© P o P o p

some
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.

0.

Yes, sir.’

Were you?

Ch, no, sir.

She was there at the same time.

Yes, sir.’

This period of time when you were there and you said
things were going on, was also in the house.
Yes, sir.

And she's your'older sister?

Yes, sir.

How much older than you is she? |

Six years.

And I guess she would be in the house when any of this

stuff that you were describing to the jury was going on.’

A.

Yes, sir.

And other kids would be in the house.

Yes, sir. o ,

And you never saw Mike do anything to did you?
No, sir.

And you're not aware of whether or not SR -- you're
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not aware of it -- whether GUGEM cver saw anything happen

to you.

A. I don't think so.

Q. Yet everybody was in this very small house with just a
few rooms.with the doors.wide open and nobody saw anything;
is that right? :

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that correct?

A. Yes, sir. B

Q. And you said that -- I think the solicitor was asking
you a question about why didn't you tell anybodyf did you

‘say you didn't know whether it was appropriate or not?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Are you sure yoﬁ didn't know at that time it was hot
appropriaﬁe?
A. I'm positive.
Q. You may have never said in the past thaﬁ you knew it
was inappropriate.
A. No, sir. ‘
Q. Do you remember after'Septembér 8th when the thing was
reported that you had an interview by the ARCYpeqple, and do
you remember Heather Smith? ‘ |
A. Yes, sir.

.~ Back in October 3rd of 20087

Q
A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And you did an extensive interview with her; is that -
right? |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Let me ask you something, have you seen that interview?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was the last time you saw them?

A, I haven't.

Q. You've nevér-seen it since that time?

A. No, sir.

Q. Now, are you sure about that? Nobody has played you

the video in preparation for the case?

© PO PO PO P Oop

J
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No, sir.

Have you seen a transcript of it since then?
No, sir. |

So the solicitor has never played it for you?
No, sir. '

Kelly Melzer, do you remember her from PCASA?
Yes.

She never played it for you?

No, sir.

And nobody in law enforcement has ever played it for

No, sir.
Do you remember the interview?

Yes, sir.
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Q.

gone

Let me ask about, you have I am sure, have you not,

over your testimony with Ms. Melzer? Wasn't she

preparing you for court testimony for a long time? You know

who I'm talking about?

A.
Q.

used

No, sir, |

From the PCASA, Palmetto Alliance, you remember you
to go to her periodicaliy?

I don't know.

You don't remember her?

No.

Do you remember her telling you to keep a journal?
Yes.

You remember who I'm talking about now?

Yes, sir.

She would go over what to expect in court and how to

testify in court, correct?

A.
Q.

Yes, sir.

And she also asked you and your sister to keep a diary

of everything you thought about and everything you remember.

Yes, sir.

Did you do that? : '
Yes, sir. |
Do 'you have it with you?

No, sir. '

Do you remember I‘gave a subpoena yesterday for you to
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bring that journal with you? Where is the journal?

A. I stopped writing in it because my dad didn't want me
to because he thought I was writing negative things,
thinking it was all of my fault so he ripped out all of the
pages and threw them away. _

Q. Is that what you told the solicitor happened to it,
that your father threw iﬁ away or is that something -- you
told the solicitor something else, actually that you lost
it, didn't you?

A, No, sir.

Q. Pardon?

A. I didn't lose it, it's at my house, there's ndthing in

Q. It's still at your house but there's nothing in it.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you didn't bring it with you as yoéu were requested
in the subpoena.

A. No, sir.

Q. And Ms. Melzer was telling you to write it down as you
remembered the events.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And did you do that?

‘A. Can you rephrase that?

Q. Ms. Melzer was telling you to keep that journal in that

_ diary because it was important to record the events as you
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remember them, do you remember that?

A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.

A.
o

out.

_Like three times.

Yes, sir.

'And did you do that?

No, sir.

" You did keep a journal?

Yes, sir.
And you did keep comments about this case?
Yes, sir.

But you're saying your father took them and tore them

Yes, sir.

And what did he do with the pages?
He threw them away. h

What héppened.to Sierra's journal?
I don't know.

Well, in getting ready for the -case here have you met
the solicito:?

Yes; sir.

You've talked about the case..

Yes, sir.

Talked about your téstimony.

Yes,  sir.

e

How many times have y'all talked and sat down together?

/ . .

. Did you ever come in here on the stand and practice?
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A. No, sir.

Q. Did she ever tell you what it was going to be like to
be examined and cross examined?

A. No, sir.

Q. But they went over with you what.you contended happened
in the case. - | '

A. Yes; sir.

Q.- Is that right?

A. Yes, sir. _

Q. . And you had plenty of time with theﬁ to prepare to

testify as to what you recall happened in the case.

A. Yes, sir. ‘

Q. -When_they would prepare you they were -- weren't they
referring to things that you may have said on the video? .
A, No. |

Q. Asking you to refresh your memory about it?

.Ao NO, Sir.

Q. I'm not suggesting there's anything wrong with talking
to the solicitor, everybody -- lawyers talk to their
witnesses, okay? But you went over a list of questions I
would think about everything that happened to you.

A. Yes, sir. ' i

Q. Is that true? |

A. Yes,_sir.

Q. Now, let me go over that for a minute with you because

69
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I want to make sure I understand exactly'what you're saying.

You said that he touched you on your private parts.

A. Yes, sir..

Q. Mbre than ane time.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that happened in what fooms?

A. In the coﬁputer room and. their bedroom.

0. Bnd how did he do that?

A. He took his hand and he put it down my pants and
underwear and he started rubbing around.

Q. Now, were you standing up or sitting dowm?'
A. I was sitting down. |

Q. on his lap?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. In front of the computer?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that right?

~A. Yes, sir.

Q. And so what he was doing is he would -- you would be on
his lap and you're saying he would have his hand down the

front of your pants touching your private parts.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. - Is that right? What kind of pants did you have on?
Did you wear shorts or long pants?

A, Jeans,
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Q.

And when you were in the computer room and you were

sitting on his lap, was it always your back was toward

Mr. Williams, correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q.  And you were looking at the éomputer.

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. You initially said that you did not remember the age
bﬁt you now came back and you said a few minutes ago that it
was about four years old. | |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Three to four years old, is that about accurate?

A. No, sir. |

Q. Four?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Which is it, is it four?»

A. Yes, sir.

Q. By the way, speaking about that, when you went back

to -- when your mom wanted to take you back to the Williams,

on

A.

. you were more than happy to go, weren't you?

Yes, sir.

You wanted to have fun again over there.

Yes, sir. |

You never told your mom anything about what was going
and what you say is going on now.

No, sir.




3

V=T B N L I S I

N T N S N S S T T
G & W N P O © . ® .9 .66 O & W b F O

106
TESTIMONY OF [Sillsp

Q. Or what you're testifying to now, you never said

anything about that.

A. No, sir.

Q. And you never said anything to SULVREN about that.

A. Not until she asked me. '

Q. In September of '08, that was the last time you went to
the Williams'. |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. All of that time when you were at the place together

for those three years, 2003 to 2006, you and she never

discussed anything about what he might have been doing to

you or her?
No, sir.
You're sisters.

. Yes, sir.
. You are sisters, right?

A
Q
A
Q
A Yes, sir.

Q. And you're close.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You and she have talked about this thing an éwful_lot I
would think. | |

A. Not really.

Q. No? Back when it was first discussed I guess in
September of '08 you and she discussed it, didn't you?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. You talked to her and told her some things, she told
you some things.' No? She didn't tell yoﬁ anything?

A, No.

Q. :So you just told her -- you opened up to her?

A. Yes, sir.. -

Q. And from September of '08 when this thing came about
until your interview in October, did_tﬁe two of you talk
about the thing, about what happened?

A. Not really.

Q. Not really?

A. No, sir.

Q. No interest in what the other one was -- what they were
feeling or what happened or anything like that?

A. No, sir. '

Q. After your interview you both went to the same
counselor, Kelly --

A. Yes, sir.

Q. == for some period of time, correct? Obviously y'all
would discuss what was being talked about and what was
happening. |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And ybu and she would discuss the events. That was
back starting in late 2008 and it was fou: years later, you
all have talked about this thing a lot of times, haven't

you?

73
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A. No, sir. ‘ ‘
Q. You talked -to your mom a lot of times about it.
A. Yes, sir. | | /
'Q.  And you talked to your dad a lot of times about it.
A. Yes, Sir. '_
Q. ‘AndnKelly a lot of times ébout it.
A. Yes, sir. |
Q. And yoh told your mom what happened back then, didn't
Jou? _ _ : -
A. Yes, sir.

Q.  Your mom would have been curious as to what happened
and you told her.

A. Yes, sir. _ )

Q. I'm talking about after it all came out like when
brought it up; is that right?

A.A Yeé, sir.

Q. Now, one of the times you said -- and right now I'm

“just going over what you said before, you said there were

only a few times it happened. "Now, is that correct or not
correct?

A. Can you repeat that, please?

'Q. Well, I wrote down when the solicitor asked you a

question, you said it only happened a few times and I was
trying to determine what you were talking about.
A. What only happened a few times?
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0. I don't know. I guess the rubbing, is that what you
were referring to? Or did that happen more than a few
times? . |

A. That happened more than a few times.

Q. Do you know what you might have been referring to when
you said a few times?

A. When he went inéide my private part.

Q. So how many times did he do that?

A, Just a few, it wasn't very many.

Q. So he did do that a few times?

A Yes, sir.

Q. Is that right?

A. ‘Yes, sir.

Q. And where did he .do that?.

A. In the computer room.

Q. All of that happened in the computer room?

A. Yes, sir.

‘Q. And you were sitting on his lap?

A. Yes, sir. ‘

Q. And you were sitting on his lap as usual with your back
. to him looking at the computer;Ais that right?

A. - Yes, sir. i |

Q. Well, would you say it happened one time, five times,

ten times?

A.

More like five.
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Q.  Five times? And that's actually when he actually went
inside? . o

A. Yes, sir..

Q. - Is that right? Then you said it happened also in the
bedfoom, |

A. Yes, sir.

Q; Did that ever happen in the bedroom?

A. No, sir.

Q. Pardon?

A. No, sir.

0. The solicitor initially asked you if it happened any
other. times andlyou said initially no other times, but then
you said -- changed that and you said it happened other
times. |

A. . Yes, sir.

Q. Why is there a ghange in that? Why is there a
difference? -_ -

A. I didn't aCtually mean to say that it happened more, I
didn't, with the questions she was asking me. |

Q.. The solicitor asked you whefher or not you ever'touched}'
him,

A. Yes, sir.

Q. My.understanding is you said no; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. He.never asked you to touch him, well, except that time
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to put it back in his pants but you didn't do that.

A.
Q.

No.

Where did that happen when he said for you to put it

back in his pants?

A.
Q.
A.
0.

It was in the computer room.
Which was open and Dorothy was in the house.
Yes, sir. |

And that was the time that you said it just fell out of

his pants leg or something like that.

A.

© P o PO

Yes, sir.

It didn't touch you, did it?

No, sir.

So he never touched you with it.
No, sir.

When he said to do something like that you didn't do it

and he didn't pursuit that any further; is that right?

A.
Q.

Yes, sir.

When ydu went back to the Williams the second time

after Ms. McManus died Sierra never said anything about what

might have happened to her, did she?

No, sir.

You didn't have to go back, right?

Excuse me?

You did not have to go back to the Williams.
I think I had to. |
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Q. Well, yoﬁr mom could havelgottenvanother‘place if you
would have told her what was going on, correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And T think I asked you this but I want to make.sure,
even after -- when you went back with the second
time continued to come over, too, she didn't have to
come over either, did she? Nobody was making her come ovef,
were they?

A. I don't know. /
Q. When you were being first asked after Septembei 8th by
your mother or by anybody else until that October 3rd
interview, you never told anybody that he penetrated you
with his finger, did you?

A. No, sir.

Q. So between September 8th up until October 3rd that had
never been -- that s;atement had never been made by you; is
that right?

A. Yes, sir.

- Q. The only thing you had said at that point was about him

touching you, correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, let me ask you thié: What you're séying to the -
jury today was your recollection of everything that happened
back in -- from the first time you were there for that three

years and then for the year afterwards; is that éorrect?
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A. Yes, sir.

MR. SWERLING: Judge, subject to what they said about
if they play the CD I would like to go ahead and reserve
cross examination for then.

THE COURT: Okay. I understand. AnyAredirect,
Solicitor?

MS. MINGO: rBriefly, Your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. MINGO: A
Q. Mr. Swerling asked you about a journal. How
many times did you write in the journal?-
A. I only wrote like three -pages, I think.
Q. Do you remember how long ago that was?
A. It has been a coﬁple of years.
Q. Not recently?
A. No, ma'am.
Q. The times you were in the computer room on Mike's lap,
do you remember how long those incidents lasted? I know you
can't tell me exactly, was it seconds, minutes or longer?
A. It was minutes.
Q. Was Dorothy there? You said sometimes she was there
sometimes she.wasn't there, correct?

MR. SWERLING: Your Honor I object to the leading.

MS. MINGO: Your Honor, I believe she stated prior

sometimes her babysitter was there, sometimes she wasn't
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there, just getting clarification on that.

THE COURT: All right. Overruled, go ahead.
Q. The times she was there; what was.she doing?
A. When she was there she was watching TV.or she was
cooking or there was a little baby that was there and she
would be'taking care of her.
Q. So did she have those things going on at the time he
was touching you? '
A. Yes,:ma'am.
Q. There was a conversation about -- or between you and
Chﬁdl‘ about Mr. Williams; is that correct?
A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Do you remember how the conversation came up?

- A, She had come to the bedrodm and she asked me if Mike

had ever touched me and I said yes, and she went and told my
mom and --

0. All right. Mr. Swerling asked you did the two of you
talk about it,extensiﬁely, you're sisters, you're close. 1Is
there a reason the fwo of you didn't discuss it?

A. No, ma'am. |

Q.  You just didn't? A
-~ MR. SWERLING: She didn't say that, Judge, she didn't
say she didn't discuss it, that's the solicitor saying that.
MS. MINGO: . Your Honor, that‘was my memory 6f whét she

said.
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THE COURT: I'll let the jury decide what they recall
the evidence being. _
Q. Mr. Swerling also asked you about a video. Db you
remember what’that is or what was on it? You never saw the
video; is that correct? |
A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. You did not see it?

A. No, I did not see it.

Q. And you met with me and you>met with Ms. Sutton prior
to trial, did you tell us what to say -- or did ydu tell us
what happened or did we tell you what happened° |

A. I told you what happened

- Q. And you also indicated there were a few times where

Mr. Williams went inside your private part. If you can, can
you describe what it felt like? -

A. It hurt, that's all I want to say.

Q. Did you ever tell Mr. Williams it hurt?

A. That one fime when I threatened to go tell Dorothy but
that was only --

Qf Tell me about that.

A, That was one of the times when he went inside and I had

said it hurt and I said, "If you don't stop I'm going to
tell Dorothy,”™ and I got off his lap to go tell and he

‘pulled back at my shirt.

0. Did he say énything?
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He said don't go tell.

MS. MINGO: Beg the Court's indulgence.

(Break in proceedings.)

MS. MINGO: That's all, Your Honor. .

MR. SWERLING: Just one question.
RECROSS EXAMINATION

"'BY MR. SWERLING:

Q.

Where were you when you said you were going to tell

Dorothy and he pulled your shirt?

A.

We were in the computer room.
MR.. SWERLING: Thank you.

" THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am, you may step down and

return to your. seat. Call your next witness.

MS. MINGO: Your Honor, the State would call [SHEEE

The witness, SUIVRE was first duly

sworn and testified as follows, on:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. MINGO:

THE CLERK: State your name for the record.

THE WITNESS: My name is SRS
how old are you?

I;m217‘

And where do'you live? -

In Great Falls.
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Q. Do you have any siblings?

A. Yes, ma'am. I have a little brother and a little
sister. '

Q. Is your sister?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. You share both parents, or you're half siblings?

A. We are half siblings.

Q. Are you still in school?

A. Yes, ma'am.
.Q. What school do you attend?

A. 'Great Falls High School.

Q. What year are you going into? Will you be a’ senior
this year?

A. ers, ma'am.

Q. How do you know the defendant, Mike Williams?

A. I went to his daycare.

Q. And do youAremember how -0ld you were when -you began
going there? |
A. No, ma'am.

Q. Do you remember approximately how long you went?

A. No, ma'am. |

Q. ~Did your siblings go there as well?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Were there other children?

Yes, ma'am.
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Q. The other kids'that Ms. Williams -- and Mr. Williams
his wife, Dorothy Williams, she was your babysitter; is that
correct? |

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. ‘Did she keep other children that you remember?

A. Yes, ma'am. |

Q. Were théy older than you, younger than ydu?

A. They were younger.

Q. Was Mr. Williams there when you were being babysat by
Ms. Williams?

A. No, not all of the time.

Q.  Sometimes? |

A. Sometimes. o

Q. Was he working, do you remember; during that.time?
‘A. I don't remember. _

Q. Okay. That's fine. When she babysat you other than

Mr. Williams occasionally were other adults in the home or

was it just the two of them?

A.

Q.
A.

I think it was the two of them'if'IAfemember correctly.

And while she babysat you, where were your parents?

They were at work.

They were working. Did you like going there?

I liked being around Dorothy.

What about Mr. Williams?

I'm sorry, can you repeat the question?
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Q. Sure. I asked you if you liked being around the

‘Williams, you indicated you liked going around Dorothy, I'm

going to ask about Mr. Williams.

A. I didn't like being around him.

Q. Was there a reason why?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Can you tell me why?

A, Because when we would be alone he would touch me.
Q. Did that happen one time or more than one time?
A. More than one time. |

Q. Do you have any idea as to how frequent it was?
A. No.

Q. Do you remember the first time or how it started?
A. . No, ma‘am. -

Q. Where were you when he touched you, do you remember
that? |

" A. It was different places. I was in the pool, I was in

the computer room and I was in his bedroom.

Q. The pool, is that at his residence or somewhere else?

A. It was at their house.

Q. Let me ask YOu some questions specifically concerning

the location. The swimming pool, where did he touch you in
the swimming pool? | |

A. He touched down inside of my pants, I don't know what

" they referred to it as, my private area, is that --
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Q. Okay. ]
A. BAnd --

Q.' Go ahead, I'm sorry.

A. Go ahead.

Q. Were there other people in the pool?

A. The time I reﬁember we were alone but I really don't

know.

Q. Was it daytime or nighttime?

A. It was daytime. _ |

Q. And you don't remember if other people were in the pool
or not?

A. No, ma'am.

Q. - Was this avspecial occasion or was this just a reqular

' day that Ms. Williams babysat you?

A. It was a regular day.

Q. Do you remember what you had on in the pool?

. A, No, ma'am.

Q. Do you remember what Mr. Williams had on?

A,  No, ma'am. |

Q. - Can you tell the Court or kind of lead up to the events
of him touching you_whilé you were in the pool? What was
going on?

A. ALl I know -- all I remember is he was just kind of
holding me a little bit(and then he put his finger down in

my bikini, then he put his fihger inside me.

N




w O J o U1 e W NN

NN RN NN R R s S R s s
O & W N P O W ® a9 o U= W NN - o

- 87
121

TESTIMONY OF @il

Q. I asked you a littlé bit if you remembered what you
were wearing, was that what you were wearing? '

. Yes.

. Do you remember him saying anything?

I don't remember. .

Q.- Do you remember if that was the first time?

A
Q
A.
Q
A. No, ma'am.

Q. You don't remember or it wasn't the first time? What
kind of pool was this? Was it some type of kiddie wading
podl-or big pool?

A. It was big. - I guess it was e—-they had a patio that
was leading up to it, it was probably about 4 feet if I had
to guess. |
Q. What happened after he touched you?

A. After he stopped we just went on, nothing really
hgppened. '

Q. So you‘just went on in the house later on, nothing else
was said about that incident? |

A. No, ma'am.

Q. Were there other locations?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Tell me about another location.

A. The computer room. ’

Q. What happened in the computer room? Who was present in

the computer room when the incident occurred?
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Just me and him.
Can you tell us what happened in the computer room?

Yes, ma'am. I was sitting on his lap and I guess he

stopped doing something on the computer and then he put his

A.

'hand back down my pants.

Let's back up.‘ Did you say he was sitting?.

Q.
A, Yes, ma'am.
Q.' Sitting where?
A. \,On the computei chair,
Q. What were you doing?
A. I was sitting on his'lap looking at the computer
- screen. |
Q. Now, teil us what happened. I just want;to make sure I

- was clear.

He just stopped what he was doing on the computer I

guess, that's what I'm guessing, and he just put his hand

down my pants and started rubbing me and then he progressed

to start putting his finger inside me.

Q. Qkay. Are you aware of anyone else walkiﬁg in seeing
“this?

A, No, ma'am.

Q. Where were the others?

A. I don't know. |

Q; Do you rememberlif children were there that day?

A. No, ma'am.
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0. How about Ms. Williams, was she there during this time?
A. More than likely. if she was she was probably out in
the living room. |

Q. I believe you also indicated one time was in his room?
A. Yes, ma'am. |

Q. Did that occur at day or night?

A. It was daytime. It was when I spent the night with his
granddaughter, and him. I don't ‘lmow where .Dorothy
was, but I know that we were about to go to sleep and it was
oh his bed and there's me, Mike and on the other
side.

Q. Okay.

A. And then --

Q. So three of you were in the bed.

A. Yes, ma'am. | .

Q. And -- I'm sorry, who is I interrupted you.

A. It's his son's daughter? I'm not sure.

| Q. All right.

A. And when he thought I was asleep hé started going down
my pants or under what I was wearing and rubbing me and
fingering me.

Q. All right. Was this directly on your skin or on top of
your underwear?

A, Directly on my skin.

Q. Iet me make sure I understand, he was in the middle?

89
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A.
Q.

124

Yes, ma'am.

Did he ‘actually sleep in the bed all night with you and

Q.

‘bed?

A.

A. I think so, yes.
Q. So you were awake when this started héppen.ing?
A. Yes, ma'a:ﬁ.
Q. Did he ever éay anything?
A. No, ma'am.
Q Could you tell if was awake? -
. No, I couldn't tell. I think she was asleep.
Q. Do you know approximately how long that lasted?
A. No.
Q. When that incident occurred wére you still going there
on a regular basis?
A. No, ma'am, it was just me. And my mom had to work and
she didn't —- |
Q. But you had already stopped going at that point?
A. Yes.
Q. Prior to those incidents when were you in the computer
room or in the pool, were you: still regularly going at that
t:'.rﬁe?
A. Yes, ma'am.

Do you know how old you were when he touched you in the

No, ma'am.
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. Did you ever tell anybody?

No, ma'am.

Q
A
Q. Did you eventually tell anyone about it?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q

. Who did you tell initially?

'A. Well, I -- it happened after SHEF told me what

happened to her and then everything céme out and the
counselors —-

Q. " let me ask you this: Do you remember how old you were
when you disclosed this information? Who did you -- what’
adult did you tell first? -

A. It might be Kelly, my counselor, that helped me.
Because I wrote it on the statement when they came to the
school but I never fully told anybody else.

Q. You didn't tell your mother?

A. Not everything.

Q. So let me make sure I understand, when you finally
disclosed, were you.going to the Williams residence at that
time or had it stopped? | |
A. No. I was watching myself so it stopped.

Q. Was there a reason why you didn't tell while it was
going on?

A. I don't know, I just -- I really cared about those
people. '

Q. You felt close to them?
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A. I'm sorry. .

Q. That's okay. Did you want to say‘something? I didﬁ't
want tovcﬁt you off. |

A. I don't know why I didn't tell anybody.

Q. Let me just ask briefly about the incidents. You told

‘me about three times, were those the only times that it

happened?

A. That I remember.

Q. The .time that he touched you in thé swimming pool, do.
you remember what time of the year it Was?

A.‘ Sunmer.

Q. It was summer? Okay. How about when you were in the
bed? |
A. TI don't remember. -

Q. You don't remember the year exactly, do you?

A. No. ‘ ‘
Q. Cﬁ“dl I asked you a few minutes agQ'if you told your
mom and you said, "I didn't tell her everything." What led

up to you telling your mom? 4 _
A. I'm not sure. We picked up and taking hef to
daycare and I just started thinking about it, and I. just
thought if he did it to me why wouldn't he do it to her?
And so I got her alone in my room énd I asked hér if Mike
had ever touched her and she said no, and I.said, "You can

tell me, I ain't going to tell anybody;"’_And.she told me
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that he did and I went to my mom.
Q. 5o that's how it all came out?
A. Yes, ma'am. |
Q. Did you tell yoﬁr mom that same day?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Did you tell her on that day about you as well or just
| |
A. I said that he touched me and her.
MS. MINGO: Thank you, ma'am. One moment.
(Break in proceedings.)
MS. MINGO: No further questions, Your Honor.
| CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. SWERLING:
Ms. Linton, how are you? Can I call you

Q.

A. Sir?

Q. Can I call you
A. Yes, sir. »-

Q. you said -- you're telling the jury as I
underétand it now that there were at least three times that.
he actually inserted his finger in your vagina.

A. Yes, sir.

Were there more than that?

There could be but I don't remember.

You were asked to keep a journal.

» o PO

Yes, sir.

93
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Q. By Kelly. And she was the counselor for PCASA,
Palmetto Alliance. Where is the journal?

A. I don't know, sir. |

Q. You got a subpoena to bring it to court with. you
yesterday, where is it?

A. We moved and it must have got misplaced,  I'm not sure.

Q. Do you know where Aubré§'s is?

- A. No, sir.

Q. Was hers misplaced too?

I don't know.
Q. Y'all moved together, didn't you?
A. Yes, sir. |
Q. But'it was emphasized to you how important that journal
was and to keep that journal and record your events,

correct?

‘A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the journal was important and you were asked aboﬁt
it, whether you were keeping the.journal by Mr. Melzer, and
you —- when did you tell somebody that it was lost or
mlsplaced or whatever it is?

A, I didn't tell anybody. ,

Q. You told the solicitor last week, didn't you?

A. I didn't tell anybody whenever I lost it.

Q. But when you were asked to bring it at my request it

became lost, correct? It's just not random.
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A. It became lost before you asked.

Q. But in there it had a lot of the events or things that

you were describing recording your thoughts and memories,

‘correct? .

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you just can't explain to the jury where it is

right now.
A. No, sir.
Q. How old are you now?
A. Seventeen.
Q. You're at what school?
A. Great Falls High School.
Q. I-guess_in the last couple of years you have spent some
time with Kelly and with other people gettiné ready té
testify here in court, correct? |
A. Yes, sir.
Q. And you were given some ideas about what to expect when
you came to court.
A. Yes, sir.
0. You were even given a little bit by Kelly'with Palmetto
Alliance about how to testify in court. |
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Is that correct?
Yes, sir.

Q. Did you ever run through your testimony or practice
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your testimony with Ms. Melzer or with the solicitor's

- office?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever come in the courtroom to see what it was
like to sit in that chair?

A. We came in the courtroom and she showed us where we
were going to be sitting, but no, sir.

Q. Spent a lot of time with-the_solicitor getting ready.
for your testimony._‘ '

A, Yes, si;.

Q. Who.else did you sperid time with getting ready for your

testimony?

A Just my family, my mom, we talked about it, and Kelly

we have mentioned already.

Q. So you talked to -- you and SN have talked about

what happened over that period.

A. No, sir.

Q. You have not?

A. No, sir.

Q. So are.you saying since -- I guess since September 8th
you and ;have not discussed the case? |

A. Ever sincé -~ if we did it was vaguely. Ever since she
came out to me about it and'I went to my mom about it
afterwards we never just talked about it.

Q. Four years you never discussed it?
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A, Not in detail.-

Q. Well, detail or did you not discuss it?

A. Well, we would go visit whenever we have scheduled
appointments to get prepared for court We talk about it but
it was like afterwards we talk about. We don't talk about

‘what happened to us, I don't ask that about her, I don't

Want to know.

Q. Well, she's your sister, right?

A, Yes, sir, she's my sister.

Q. And as a sister y'all don't talk about the details?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you tell her what happenéd to you?

A, I didn't tell her but she has been around when I talked

‘about it with my mom.

Q. And you've been around when she's talked about it with

your mom?
A, Yes.
Q. And she and your mom have had a number of discussions

about this, right?

A. Yes. But even my mom didn't tell all.

Q. But she and your mom have had a number of discussions..
A. Yes, sir.

Q. When she first made this disclosuie to you she never
said anything about any kind of digital penetration, isn't
that true? When you first asked her it had nothing to do

97
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with digital penetration. Do you know what I'm talki'ng
about? | |

A, No.

Q. ° Digital penetratiéh?

A. Cah you repeat the question?' I'm sorry.

Q. When you and -= how old are you? .

A. Seventeen.

Q. When you and first talked about this thing

never told you anythmg about digital penetratlon
with a flnger in her vagina; isn't that true?

A. I don't remember.

Q. If you had your journal you would. Let me ask you
something, you were -- nobody ever- interviewed you, did
they? You never were brought in for a forensic interview on’

tape.-

'A. Not on tape. I don't remember if anybody came in and

interviewed me, DSS came and asked me questions but.

Q. Right. But did the police department asi{ you
questions? |

A. Not that I remember. L

Q. But you did speak with somebody at DSS but didh't give
a handwritten statement. |

A. Yeah. They asked me like what he did and I said it
vaguely and then.they aske_d me to write it. dovm.

Q. . And you wrote it down .in your own handwriting?
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A.  Yes, sir.

Q. We will go over that in a couple of minutes. Okay?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. So let me see, I don't remember if I actually got an
answer. When spoke with you she never mentioned to
you that:she was digitally penetrated in the vagina; is that
true?

A. I don't remember.

Q. You just don't remember that?

- A, I remember that he touched her. She might have, I'm

not saying- she didn't, but after that I just started going
to my mom.

Q. Now, she had an actual forensic interview. Have you

ever looked at the tape?

A. No, sir.

Q. Or heard the tape?

A. .No, sir.

Q. Ever looked at the transcript of the tape?

A, No, sir.

Q. Ever discussed what was on the tape with her or with
Kelly or with the solicitor's office or anybody else? You
know what I'm ‘talking about, the CD? |

A. I know what you'ré talking with the tape that she did
with we never talked about what was on it but we did
talk about the tape. |
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Q. Did either you or ever see the tape?

A. I'm not sure if she did but I didn't.

Q. How about yourvmqm, do you Know?

A. I don't know.

Q. The solicitor started off asking you questions about
did you like the Williams and you said —-- I wrote down --
you said you liked Dorothy. You were going -- or let's see,
you were born in 1995 and so yoﬁ started going there when

you were about eight years old, correct?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. What grade will you be in the eighth grade?
A. I'm sorry? | .

Q. What grade would you be in in the eight grade? I'm

- sorry, I can't remember it has been too long ago.

A. In eight grade?

Q. What grade would yoﬁ‘ be in when you are eight? I'm
sorry. | o |

A._‘ ~I'm not sure.

Q. - You and SN and -—‘ was probably not born

right away because he was born shortly after that you

‘started going to Ms. Williams and Mike Williams' house for

daycare; is that correct?
A. - Yes, sir.

Q. And when you were at their house you would get dropped‘

| off m the morning, you were old enough to go to school, who

\
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took
A,
Q.
A.-
Q.

you to school?
I don't remember.
Who picked you up from school?

I don't remember.

Were you -- did you go back -- did you go to the

Williams house before school?

A.

Q. When you started going there in the period of 2003 and

2006.
A,

Q.

A,

Q.
were
A.

Q.

Williams you would run up to him and hug him and you were

When I was little?

I don't remember.
Did you go back there after school?

Yes, after school.

And I mean, I'm not sure. you liked Mike Williams.

affectionate to Mike Williams weren't you?

Yes.

And Mike Williams was ~- well, when you would see Mike

affectionate to him, weren't you?

A.

Yes.

And he was affectionate to you as well.
Yes, sir.

So was Dorothy.

Yes, sir.

They treated you like grandchildren.

Yes, sir.
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Q. You treated them like'grandparents.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. He was fun to be around, wasn't he?

A. Most of the time, yes. ' -

Q. And Mike was the one that played with everybody, he was
the one that rolled around in the floor and played games,
went outside, went to the computer room, he was the one that
entertained you when he came home from work, correct?

A. Sure.

Q. Sure. 2And you looked forWard to seeing him, didn't
you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it would not be -- I wouldn't be stepping out of
line if I said when yéu saw Mike Williams you would run up
to him and say, “Mike Mike?"

A. I don't know if I have ever called him Mike Mike, but
yes, I did that. .

Q. You called him Mike?

A. I think a few times I would run up and hug him but it
is because you lock at him differently, to me he was like a

boyfriend and it's safe to say that and --

Q. At eight years old.
A, Yes. |
Q.  But that's not -- you just -- when I just asked you the

question until you said that you were saying it was like
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grandparents and grandchildren, that was your answer, I

didn't put those words in your mouth. I asked you were they

like grandparents and wefe you like their grandchildren?
. I understand what your'job is, sir.

Pardon? You understand what my job is?

A

Q

A. Yes, sir.
Q Who told you what my job is? The solicitor?

A. No.

Q. My job is to gef the truth.

A. Okay. 7

Q. And the first time you have ever said, ever said that
you looked at him like your boyfriend was just now on the
witness stand; isn't that true?

A. I told my mom me. And in mylhome we have had plenty
discussions of how you look at people differently whenever
they do that stuff to you. |

Q. I'm not trying to give you a hard time. You
never told anybody else other than your mom -- and now you
say your mom -- that you looked at him as your boyfriend
because of the situation ever, did you?

A. I don't think so.

Q. And you'fe saying that now because you know what my job
is as you just said, correct?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. BAll we're trying to do is get out the truth. Now, for
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| 1 three years you and the Williams went places, correct? |
2 A. Yes, sir. |
3 Q. And the children, your other brothers and sisters —--
4 your brother and sister - theyk bought you toys, correct?
5 A.V Yes,. sir. . | |
6 Q. They bought you presents, correct?
7 A. Yes, sir. | |
8 Q. You went places with them.
9 A. Yes, sir. |
10 Q. You spent the day with them.
11 _A. Yes, sir. _
12 Q. Went and saw their granddaughter fcorréct?
13 A. Sometimes she would be over there. |
14 Q. You would go over to where Mike was working and see the
15 ambulances, correct?
16 A. Yes, sir. |
17 Q. And Mike would come over to your house and help your
18 mother, isn't that true? Bought her furniture —-
.19 A. Yes, sir. . |
,'20 Q. -- when you didn't have ahy( fﬁrniture. Bought you
21 clothes .when you didn't have any clothes. |
22 A. I had clothés. | o
23 Q. When you didn't have any didn't he buy you clothes?
24 A. I always had clothes.
25 . Q.  Would you deny the fact that Mike and Doreothy bought
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“you clothes?
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A. VNo. |
Q. And came and repaired the house, the car, repaired the
heéting and air conditioning, put in a hot water heater.
Mike was very helpful to your mother during her time of
need; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. During that entire three year period you never shied
away from Mike; isn't that true? |

A, Yes, sir.

Q. - You never shied away from him, you were always happy to
see him.
A. Yes, sir.

Q. During that entire three year period'he was always
happy to-see you and the other siblings as well.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. During that entire three yeaf period from when you were
about eight until about 11 you never said anything to
anybody about what you're now contending he 'did to you.
A. No, sir. |

Q. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, the incident when you said that it was in the
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bedroom and you were spending the night there with
that was actually after that three year period;'wasn't it?
A. I don't remember. - u

Q. Well, wasn't it during the period of time when you were
no longer going there bﬁt you were continuing to stop going
over there with your mother?

A. That was my best guess, yes, éir.

Q. Well, I just want to make sure. So the night -- you
only spent the night one time or two times?

A; I don't rémember. t

Q. But that was the only night you spent the night where
something like that happened; is that right?

A. As far as I remember. |

Q. But you think that took place after you stopped going
and you just went back.periodically to see Mike and Dorothy

A, I think, I'm not sure.

Q. You're not sure because you didn't keep a journal.

Now, let me ask you this: At the time when you actually
left, or your mom left and took the kids and you to
Ms. McManus, do you recall that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. This is a small house, isn't it, where Mike Williams
lives? |
A. 'I guess it's how you iook_at houses, I supposé SO.
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Q. There's a living room, then there's a kitchen and you
go back, there's one bedroom and there's another bedroom and

then across from the other bedroom there's a computer room,

correct?

A. Yes.,

Q0. Do you remember that?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. The doors were never closed in that house, were they?
A. No, sir.

AQ. And the fact of the matter is that Dorothy was always

there when Mike was there; isn't that true?

A. As far as I remember.

Q. So all of this took place when Dorothy was around,
correct? | '

A, Like I said, as far as I remember.

Q. And she would be somewhere in the house, and what
you're contending is that Mike would do these things to YOu
while his wife was present in this small house.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that.right?

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. Well, where was -- where were the other kids when this

was going on? It wasn't that big of a place.

A, I don't know.

Q. So it never -- nobody -- you never saw anybody else in




108-

O O S o s W N

I I T T T N T S S R S R S T
O & W N P O WL ® oo s W N B O

' 142
TESTIMONY OF Sl _

the house while Mike wés doing. these things to you, is that
right, that you can recall? | | ‘

A. Other than that night with nb, I never saw
anybody else in the house. ‘
Q. Your sister was there; correct?
A.  Uh-huh.

Q. And your sister, as far as you know, contends that she
Was also being fooled around with or played with during that
period of time during thé 2003 to 2006 period, correct?

A. Yes, sir. |
Q. I'mijust trying to understand, how is it that you and
she -- and there was other kids there and Mrs. Williams was
there -- how is it that you and‘she.would absclutely never
see each other -- Mike doing something to eithef one of you
or Dorothy would never see either one of you getting .
something'done to you by Mike?

A, I don't know.

Q. I mean, the doors are open, they're not locked, Mike

didn't seek to lock the doors when you were in the room with
him, right? |

A. - Right.

Q. Other kids running around, you and your sister never
communicated about scmething happening to you or anything --
you never communicated what happened to you and she never

communicated with you about what was happening to her,
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correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That's a little amazing.

A. If you think so. |

Q. lIt's your sister.

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Well, at some point you left to go over to Ms. McManus'

but that's not what you wanted to do, you did not want to
leave the Williams residence. You wanted to stay there.
You were very happy there, weren't you?

A. No. | |

Q. Well, you never told your mother anything?

A. TIt's because I didn't -- why would I?

Q. Well, why wouldn't you?

A. I didn't want to hurt people.

Q; You didn't want to hurt people. They're hurting you
but you don't want to hurt anybody. When you -- go ahéad.
The incident with where you said something about Minor 2 you
slept over, aétually happened éccording to your statement to
the policé or DSS at eight or niné, sb that would have been
before you left, would that be right?

A. I don't know.

Q. When you left -- I'1ll ask you again, you were not
necessarily -- you did not want to leave.because you were

still having a great relationship with the Williams.

109
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1 A. I found out about Donna from one of my friends and T
2 convinced my mom it would be cheapef for her to go to her as
3 a way of getting out. I did not want to be there. - |

4 Q. You di.dn't want to? DR

5 A. No. -

6 Q. Then why did you go back periodically'to see the

7 Williams?

8 A. I went with my mom because the kids enjoyed him.

9 | Q. So you 'did 'go back?

10 A To visit him at the end, Yes.

11 Q And also at the house, you used to go back to the house
12  too.
13 A. | Not often.

i4 Q R But ydu did go back to the house.
15 | A. Yeé, sir.

16 Q. And you did go see you saw Mike and you saw
17 Y‘Dorothy, correct?’ ) |
18 A. Yes, sir.

19° Q. . And every time you went there you greeted Mike with a
20 hug and a kiss; isn't that true? | | |
21 A No, sir.
22 Q. You wé)uld deny that?
23 A. Yes. |
24 Q. BAnd he didn't greet you with a hug and a kiss?
25 A. I 'doAn't remember ever --
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Q. I'm talking about kissing on the cheek.
A. No, I'm talking about that too.

Q. Would you deny that when you were going back there
after Ms. McManus' during this period of time that you were
still having a good relatibnship with him and Dorothy? They
were still helping ydu.

A. Yeah, I understand that.

Q. Isn't that true?

A. Could you repeat that one more time?

Q. They were étill helping and you would have no problem .
going back over there when your mother went over there, |
going to the EMS, going over there for Christmas, getting 
presents, getting clothes and toys, .whatever that was,
because you still had a good relationship with the Williams
and it was still an affectionate relationship with the
williams; isn't that true?

A. - Yes, sir.

Q. you looked at them like your grandparents,
isn't that true? They were as good as anybody could bé to
you as a grandparent would, isn't that true? 1Is the answer
yes? |

A. Yeah, I Suppose s0.

Q; When you left to go Ms. McManus', didn't you tell your
mother as I understand it what happened -- what happened —-

something had said to you?
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A. That wasn't when we stopped going there, it was one day
when she picked me up from Mike and Dorothy's, it was one of
thé days he touched me. And I lied _about that, never
said ahything to me, and I told my mom that'she told me

-that ~-

Q. Wait a minute, let me follow this. What happened now?
A. ‘My mom picked me up from Mike and Dorothy's.

Q. When?

A. I don't remember. |

Q. Was this while you were-still going from 2003 to 20067? |

‘A. It might have been, I'm not sure.

Q. So you don't know whether or not you were still at the
daycare or not?

A. No, sir. . .

Q. And were you still -- Wére you at the daycare as
someone who is a —- I don't know if you would call it a
client or a child at the'daycare at that time or had you
already left? A

A, I'dqn't remember.

Q. You don't remember?

A, No. |

Q. And so you told your mom what?

A. I told my mom that Minor 2 [RESTEES that he touched her
butt because I wanted to see how my mom woﬁld act, because

he‘was really touching me and I didn't know what to do.
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Q. So this was-still at the time that -- obviously it must
have been at the time that you were still going to the
daycare.

A. I don't know.

Q. You don't remember, can't remember. So you made up
that whole. thing?

A. That one statement, yes.

Q. Why would you make that up? Why would you not tell
something that was tiue?

A. I wanted to tell my mom but I was scared.

Q. Well, what was her reaction when you told her what

A. She said, "I don't believe her."

Q. Doﬁ‘t believe who?

A,

Q. - Did you ever tell anybody?

A. What I'm telling you right now?

Q. Yeah.

A. I mean, I told the solicitor.

Q. Not in your statement.

A. Oh, no, I didn't tell DSS.

Q. You're supposed to tell them the truth.

A. I did tell them the truth. That was one of the |
incidents, i didn't record all three, I didn't record

everything.
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Q. Well, that's what I want to ask you.

A. And I talked to Kelly about it.

Q. Well, we'll getAto that in a minute. Because the truth
is the truth, you agree with that.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. There's only one way to tell the truth.

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. When you told your mom that she said, "I don't believe
her," and your mom toock your sister and your brother baék -
after Ms.‘MhManus died back to Dorothy and Mike after you
téld hér tﬁat, correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You never told her it wasn't the truth, correct?

A. Up until recently.

Q. Recently?

A. UhFhuh.

Q. So YOu know how to lie, correct?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. I'm curious about this. In 2003 to 2006 you're saying
that Mike Williams was molesting you, putting his finger in
your vagina, doing whatever else you said, right?

A. I don'tvkeep track of the dates when I was going there,
yes.

Q. It was when you were going there, we agree with that,

it was when yourwere going there. You didn't go back the
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second time when the other children,. NChild2 [

correct?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. When your mother was making the decision to take them

back to the Williams' residence for daycare, you never told

your mother or anyone else what you now say or contend Mike

Williams was doing to you; isn't that true?

A. Yes.

Q. =~ You knew)your sister was going back to the Williams'
residence, correct, -as a person in the daycare center?

A. Yes. And I have to live with that. I didn't think of
it like that.

Q.  Didn't think of it like what?

A. I didn't like that, I didn't overthink it and --

Q. Well, if he did it to you why did you think he wouldn't
do it to her?

A. It's not something I think about.

Q. You would not think about it. 2You look like a very
mature lady, don't you think it would be normal to disway
your mother from taking your sister back to the same place
where you had been sexually abused?

A, I think it would be normal for someone who understood
it, yes, I did. BAnd that's eventually what I did.

Q. In September of 2008, a year or so later.

A. It's better late than never.
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Q. Better late than never. Good answer. The fact of the
matter is, and you're telling this jury here that you said

you were sexually abused by Mike Williams, you continued to

~go back over there even after you didn't have to go back

there anymore, and when you found out your mother was-going

to take your sister over there you never said a .word; isn't

- that true?

A. Yes, sir.
You never said a word to your sister and you never said

word to your mother; isn't that true?

Certainly want to protect your own sister, don't you?

Yes, sir. ' .

MR. SWERLING: Judge, it's 1:00, I didn't know if you
wanted me to continue. I've got a little bit more, I am
ready to do it if you wanted to.

THE COURT: It's probably a good time for us to take a
break for lunch, ladies and gentlemen, it may be awhile.
Ladies and gentlemen, we have another matter we have to téke
up at 2:00 so let's try to be back in the jury room at 2:30.
We'll give you an hour and a half for lunch.

(The jury left the courtroom.)

THE COURT: State ready for the jury?

MS. MINGO: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Defendant?
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MR. SWERLING: Yes, sir.

(The jury returned to the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Welcome back, ladies and gentlemen. I
believe we are ready to resume with the examination of thev
witness. Mr. Swerling? |
BY MR. SWERLING:

Q. I wanted to gé ahead and I wanted to ask you something
when you —- after'the break when you went over. to McManus'
and then the other kids' came back, did you ever make a
comment to anyone that you remember that Mike and Dorothy
seemed different to you?

A. Can you repeat that one more time?

Q. Do you ever remember making a comment when the kids
went back to Ms. Williams and Mr. Williams' house at the
daycare that they seemed different to you, that they were
acting different to you?

A. I don't think éo, no, sir.

Q. You didn't feel that way?

No, sir. h

Q. You understand the question?

A. I think so. _

Q. I just want to make sure. So you never felt like they
were acting different toward you when you went back

periodically after the McManus break; is that right?

A. No, sir.
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Q. Now, a couple of questions'I wanted to ask you about.
You had said something about the one £ime when you were in
the pool that he put his finger down or his hand ddwn'your
bikini and inserted it into your vagina. Do you remember
that? |

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And I think previously you have described it some kind
of statement that you were wearing pants, never sayihg
anything about a bathing suit. Do you recall that when you
were in the pool? | |

A. I said I was wearing pants in the pool?

Q. Pants.

"A. I don't remember that but I'm saying I didn't.

Q. But today you were saying you remember it was a bikini.
A. Well, I figured that's what you wear in'a‘pool,
Q. I don't know. TI'll show you in a minute, that's what

"I'm showing. I don't wear a bikini, I don't think anybody

would want to see me in a bikini. But the time that you
were in the pool with Mike you don't remember ~— I think
your testimony was you don't remember anybody else being
around or if anybody else was around. |

A. No, sir.

Q. You're not saying there wasn't anybody else around, you

just don't recall anybody being around.
‘A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And was that the first time or the last time or in
between when he did that to-you?
A, I don't know.
Q. Let me ask you something,'this incident that you're
talking about in the pool that hé inserted his finger in
your vagiha, you've never said that before to anybody at DSS
or law enforcement; isn't that true?
A. I said that he touched me in the pool.

Q. Touched you. Well, there's a difference between

touching and also inserting the finger in the vagina.

Because you have said on another occasion he inserted his

- finger in his (sic) vagina -- and I'm not trying to be --

this is a trial and we have to use these kind Qf words -—-—
but my question is you never said before that he ihserted
his finger in your vagina while you were in thé pool; isn't
that true?

A. I don't know.

Q. You don't know whether you did or you didn't?

A. I don't remember what I said.

Q. You never reviewed what you said?

A. I locked over it,

Q. Well, sure you did, you looked over whatever you told

DSS, youllooked over whatever you told Mr. Bony, you looked
over whatever you told Shanay Moore.

A. I just thought that that went along with that, I didn't
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think I had to actually'say that.

0. But you did‘on another occasion or in another incident
actually describe him putting his hand in your vagina. So
my question is you did disfinguish between the two, on

certain occasions you said he touched you, on one occasion

" you said he put his handvor‘finger,in your vagina, you do

recall that.

A. I didn't go into detail about it because I remember
most about that one because it stood .out because was
there. ' "

Q. But the answer to my question is, "No, Mr. Swerling, I
never said before that he penetrated or put his finger in my
vagina in the pool." Would you agree that that's what the
conclusion of that question is? I'm not trying to give you

a hard time.

A. I said it but probably not to an official, though. I

have said it to my mom.

Q. You would concede in your statements you never made

that statement before, correct?

A. 1 suppose, yes.

Q. And you said that he did that. I believe you said he
did'it again, penetrated you with his finger whén you were
in the computer room sitting on his lap. Is what I wrote
down correct?

A, Yes, sir.
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Q. And sd when you're sitting on his lap your back is
toward him and you're facing the computer. Is that correct?
A. . Yes, sir.
Q. 2And on that particular occasion what did you have on?
A. I don't know.
Q. rBut you were sitting on his lap so you were faéing the
computer. | |

- A.  Uh-huh.
Q. -And your testimony is that he was able in that position

to go ahead and insert his finger into your vagina. You

must have been wearing pants obviously, correct?

A. Yes, sir, I guess.
Q. Well, were you in pants?

. Well, I don't remember.
Q. But you were wearing sdmething like pants.
A. I suppose so. |
Q. And so what your desqription is is that you're sitting
on his lap watching the computer and he is able to take his
finéer and penetrate you from that bdsition; is that
‘correct? |
A. fes, sir.
Q. And no one else was in the computer room at that time
as far as you know.
A. VNo, sir.
Q. So no one you could identify was in the pool with you,
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no one you could identify was in the computer room that saw.

© this, but there's a bunch of kids running around, correct?

A. I don't know what time of day it was, I really just

don't remember it. B S
Well, during the day there were kids there, correct?
Yes, sir. |

—~

Q.

A.

Q. And Dorothy was there, correct?
A. I suppose.

Q. And the door to the computer room was open.
A, Yes, sir.

Q. Not locked.

A. No, sir.

0. So while the kids are running around and Mrs. Williams

"is in the house he's doing that to you in the computér room.

A. ,Yes( sir.

Q. And you never said anything to anybody or anything like
that. | |
A. No, sir.

Q. And, of course, let me ask you about théjbedroom
situation, that was another time. |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. We, I think, established it was the first time that you

were there when you were still going to the daycare and you

spent the night there and you spent the night because

was there.
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A. I don't remember where I spent the night.
0. Well, MUNSPR a5 thére.
A. Yes, sir.
Q. And this was a periocd of time you were eight or nine

years old and you wanted to spend the night. No one made

'you spend the night, correct?

A. I don't remember.

Q. You don't remember somewhere somebody -- is that what
they told you to say when you don't know what the answér to
a question was is you don't remember? My question is this,

because you seem to have recollection of what you want to

- remember, that night you spent the night there, nobody

forced you to spend the night, that's my question.

A. I don't remember if my mother was away, I don-"t
remember if shé wanted me to spend the night and came
over, I don't know if I wanted to. I don't remember. ,
Q.. So you don't remember that, but you do remember that
Mike was in the bed. |
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what were you wearing?

'A. I don't remember. |

Q. What was Mike wearing?

A. I don't know.

Q. What was wearing?

I don't know.

123
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Q. Which bedroom was it? -

158

A. It was Mike and Dorothy's bedroom. -

Q. So Mike and you and were in-Mike and Dorothy's
bed.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that right?’

A. Yes, sir. |
Q. And would you tell the jury where Dorothy was?

A. I'm not sure. I think she fell asleep on the couch

. that night but that's a guess, I don't know.
Q. You just guess. That's a guess what you're saying, but
it'wéuld—be normmal in essence —-— that's the bedroom that
Mike and Dorothy slepf in; is that right?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. And so we don'ﬁ know where Dorothy was, we don't know
what you were wearing, we don't knéw what Mike was wearing.
A. No, sir.
Q. Were you in street clothes, do you remember that?
AJ' I don't know. | |
Q. Was Mike in pajamas or just in-street clothes as well?
A I don't know.
Q. We dbn'£ know that, we don't know that either; is that
right? | '
A. Yes, sir.
Q. What we do know is you said he slipped his hand down --
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by the way, his granddaughter is in the bed; is that right?

A.
Q.

Q.

Yes, sir.
And that is
Yes, sir.

And he is putting his hand down your pants and into
vagina while he's laying next to his'granddaughter.
Yes, sir.

Did he ever say anything?

No, sir.

Did you ever say anything?

No, sir.

Did you indicate to him that you were awake or asleep?
No. T just -- I acted like I was‘asleep. |

And basically what he did is he put his finger into
vagina at that time; is that correct?‘

Yes.

Didn't do anything else, correct?

Yes, sir. |

And do you remember, were all three of you sleeping

together in the same bed when you woke up that morning?

A.
Q.
A,
Q.

No, sir.
Do -you remember where Dorothy was when you woke up?
No, sir.

Do you remember if anybody else came in the house when

you woke up?
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A No,.sir.

Q. Did you tell MNIMMSR about it?

A No, sir. |

Q. Never told her anything?

A. That's right. -

Q. And, of course, you said that you told your mother --
didn't tell your mother the truth about whether or not

said something to you about being. touched on the butt
I think is what you said; is that right? |

A. I don't know how you phrased it, but yeah, I told my
mom a'lie about being touched on the butt.

Q. Let me ask you something, getting patted on the butt or
touched on the butt, you don't think that's inappropriate,
d_o you? |

A. Well., yeah.

Q. Well, if somebody got patted on the butt or touched on
the butt, grandfather/granddaughter, you wouldn't think
anything of that, woﬁld you?

A. I guess no. No.

Q. So I'm trying to figure out why would that be important
enough to have told your mother that her grandfather patted
her on the butt or touched her on the butt? |

A. I remember not wanting‘to tell my mom that she got
fingered or something because it's my mom,'I just wanted a

way of telling her without telling her.
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Q. But that's not really telling her anything.
A, I know. I was seeing how she would have reacted.

Q. Again, you would have agreed that didn't tell her
anything, isn't that true? Because if you were trying to
tell her sbmething you would tell her something that wbuld
make a difference, maybe would be inappropriate. A2And you
felt uncomfortable telling your mother anything Mike was.
doing. o

A. Yes. ‘

Q. But-you did it with being touched on the butt to
give it a test; is that right?

A. Yes, sir. ‘

Q.- Was there any times after that that he did éhything
iike that?

A. I don't remember. 7

Q. This incident that you're talking about with and
focusing on that a little bit, you felt that was important
enough to tell DSS, didn't you?

A. What about it?

Q. It wasn't a question of -- well, you didn't tell DSS
you lied to your mom, you told them in your statement that

you told your mom about what told you, correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So it wasn't only telling your mom, it was also telling -

DSS.
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A. . Yes, sir.
Q. ~ And so the same reason that you would have to tell'yoﬁr ’
mom to test her really would not be something that you would
be doing with DSS.

A, That's true, yes.'

' Q. But yet you told the same thing to DSS.

A. . Yes, sir.

Q.  What was your purpose in telling DSS?

A. I thought it was important. That was the point‘of
lying and telling them what I wanted to say, it was
something -- I thought it would make a difference. I don't
know, it was just important to me and-I think that alsoc on
my statement I might have said it was a lie but I said it to
see what she would say. _ _

Q. Okay. What was going on in 2008, in September of 2008?
You've alleged that this happened over a period of time from
2003 to 2006, and why was it important in September of 20087?
What went off in your uund° What bell went off or llght
went off that wanted you to ask (SULGPM about it? Because

'nothing had been said between the two of you as far as what

. went on.

A, We just went in the room together and she was upset
because she wasn't Mlke 5 glrlfrlend for the day and —- I
don't know.

Q. She wasn't what?
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A. She wasn't Mike's girlfriend for the day. He would
have --

Q. She wasn't his girlfriend for the day? What does that
mean? | |

A. That's -- we just -- my mom asked why was upset
and Mike is like, "She wasn't my girlfriend-for the day."
Q. Mike said that?

A. Yes.

Q. You've never said that to anybody either.

A. Yes, I have.

Q. Not in your statements. Not in your statements,
correct? | | |

A. I suppose. o

Q}' I've got your statements, that's th I'm asking these
questions. Okay. So that's the reason why you decided to
ask that statement is because Mike said she wasn't
his girlfriend that day?

A. I just started thinking about what he did to me.

Q. You just started thinking about it?

A. Well, it's not something you want to think about
everyday. »

Q. But if your sister is over there and you know the
possibility exists that he was moiésting or abusing your
sister like he was you, it mékes éense that you would say

something. I'm just trying to figure out other than this

129
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new revelation that Mike said she wasn't his girlfriend for
the day, what else was there that took you until September

of 2008 for you to make this statement?

- A. I wasn't scared anymore.

Q. When did you -- when did- that come about? Was is just
September 8th when you were grown up enough to make that
statement? | | | |

A. I guess. I don't really have a reason why, it just
came up.

Q. It happened one time in the computer room, one time in
the pool and one time in the bedroom.

A. I don't remember how many times it happered in each

room, I just remember one in each room.

Q. Did you ever write any of this down anywhere, like in
your journal?

A. No, sir.

Q. You did write it down in your journal I éuess?

A. I wrote them down what happened like once or twice.
Kelly said you didn't have to do it everyday, juet whenever,
ope or two of them. | ' |

Q. When did the journal disappear, last Week or week
before? |

A. I haven't'seen it since I talked to Kelly.

Q. You were asked to yriﬁe out a statement, correct?

A. Yes, sir. |
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Q. Nobody ever sat down and did what;we cail like a Q and
A, questions and answers, did they?

A. No, sir.

Q. And nobody in law enforcement did a question and
answer, question and answer, you just went ahead -- you were
left on your own. You were what, let's see, 13 years old at
that time, to go ahead and just reveal your story; is that
right? |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. There was law enforcement involved in it and there was

DSS involved and nobody sat down'and»questiohed you, do you

agree with that? |
(Break in proceedings.)

Q.‘ You were ésked to write out a statement.

A. Yes.

Q. Did you tell in that statement that this all started

when you were eight or nine?

A. Probably.

Q. Either yes or no, because I can show you a copy of it.
A. I can't say yes or no.

Q. Okay. Is that what you say in the first line?

A. Yes, |

Q. One night —-- did you tell them, "Once I spent the night
at his house with I slept in front of him and she
slept behind him." Do you remember that?
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A, Yes, sir.

Q. What does that'mean;’you slept in front of him and she
slept behind him?

A. He slept in the middle of us.

Q. He was. facing you, is that what you meant. by he was in
front?

A. Yes.

Q. And she was behind him.

A. Yes. _

Q. Did you tell them that, "I think he thought T was
asleep-and he slipped his hand down my pants and messed
around after that. And there were more occasions when he
messed with me, more than. five, and it happened on his day

off from work." Is that what you told them?

A. Yes. | |

Q. You don't say anything in this handwriﬁten statement
that you had an opportunity to tell them about any digital
presentation. Do you want to take a look? You did not —-
you agree that.you'did not mentiog iﬁ this handwritten
statement that you mention digital penetratiqn;'is that
correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. This was supposed to be your version of what happened
in your own handwriting, correct?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. "It usually happened in the computer room "-- this is
about messing around -- "usually happened in the computer

room from where he slid and did the same things over and
over and we stopped going there and went to Donna. McManus'
house.”" That's what you told them in your statement
correct? 7

A. Yes, sir.

Q. "I didn't tell anybody about it because I thought it
was over." That was your reason for not telling anybody
about it. Is that what you.told DSS or told law
enforcement, whoever let you Qrite this out?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, let me ask yoﬁ about this, did you tell them that,
"The last time he touched me," which is a question I.asked

you before we had lunch and you said it was well after. But

before the -- "Last time he touched me I told my mom

told me that he touched her -- touched on her." Is that

what you said?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So it was after the last time. - It wasn't some time
later as you said during your cross examination tﬁis
morning. |

A, I guess. A

Q. The answer this morning was it took place later than

that, not right afterward.
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" A, I don't remember.

Q. "T told my mom_‘toldy me that he touched on her."

- You don't mention anything in here about telling your mom

that he touched on the butt, you put in here that, "I
told my mom that told me he touched on her."
A. I thought that's what I told her but my mom said she

- remembered me Jjust saying that ‘I told her saying he

touched her on the butt. I thought I told her that he
touched her but I guess I didn't.
Q. Well, this was September 1l6th of 2008, when did your

mom tell you that?

A. Just like a few weeks ago when we were talking about
it. |

Q. - So which is more gaccurate, what you said then or what
your mother told you she said a couple of 'weeks ago? I
mean, here you indicate that there was something that
was saying that something inappropriate happened by her
grandfather, isn't that true? That's what you were
insinuatihg, not touching her on the butt but touching her.

A, Well, I f'ivgur_ed my mom probably remembers better than I
do. '
Q. Well, this was written just a week later and after you

made that al'legation, correct?

. A. Yes, sir.

Q. Four years.
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. "I basically told her everything he did to me." Do you
remember writing that?

A. I don't doubt that, no.

Q. Just take a look at it because I certainly wouldn't
want you to -- is that correct?

A. .Yes, sir.

Q. So do I understand that to mean that you told your mom
on that occasion everything that he did to you?

A. The word basically thefe is the key. I probably said
that, that he just touched her on the vagina.

Q. That's not what it says. It says, "I basically told

her everything that he did to me."
A. That's why I put the word basically because I told her
everything. I didn't tell the details, I didn't tell my mom

" that.

Q. But it's to you, not
A, I know.

Q. So what I'm asking you is do I understand that to mean
that "I basically told her everything, " you told your mom

‘everything -- "that he did to me;" is that correct?

A. As it was. As I told my mom everything he did to me
acting like it was QS that told her.
Q. So you told your mom everything that was happening to

you? I'm sorry, I just don't understand.

135
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1 A. Whenever I told my mom that -- he toﬁched her, I
2 told her -- I thought -- I was using as me and I told
3 her, that's the only reason I did it. I don't know how to
4 explain it, it's -- I told her said he touched on
5 her. | . |
6 Q. And I agree, we"ve already estéblished'that.v But T
7 went to the last line, it says, "I basically told her
8 everything that he did to me, " which means?
9 A. I didn't tell my mom anything he did to me.
10 Q. So what did you do, tell her what -- e%rerything that he
11‘ did to you through | |
12 A. Yeah. 'V
13 Q. Take a look at this. I'm not trying to confuse you,
14 I'm trying to figure out what you meant by, "I told her
15 everything he did to me." ' \
16 A. I know what I meant by that.
17 Q. Well, you're deécribing to the jury today that he was-
18 digitally penetrating you so that must be what you were
19 telling them. | |
20 A. That wasn't what I was telling my mom, that's why I
21 said basically -- I d:Ldn't tell her everything. I said I
22 - basicaliy told her everything, which means being touched
23 on - and I -- that means tduched' on. Isn't that bad
24 enough? Why do I have to go in detail? Do you really
25 expect thét?‘ ' '
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Q. See, I'm not the one who wrote this, you're the one who
wrote it.

A. . You're the one analyzing it.

Q. No. I'm just wanting to get it clear. And I'm going
to move on, because, in fact, I don't understand it. “I
basically told her everything he did to me, then Donna
died." 1Is that what you wrote?

A. Yes.

Q. But you're saying today the only thing you told your
mother is that said he touched her on the butt which
is not even on there. _

A. I said that I told her something told me right
before that. Can I hold it?

- Q. Sure.

A. "I told my mom told me he touched her, I
basically told her everything he did to me." I was using
that to tell my mom just to see what she would say acting
like it was’ in my position, acting like it wasn't me.
Q. And basically telling her everything he did to ﬁe means .
that you had to be telling her what he was doing to you. |
There;s no other interpretation.

A. I figured touched on means that.

Q. Pardon?

A. I didn't know I had to say digitally fingering.-

Q. Okay.. We're going to move on. But you did say, "I
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1 Dbasically told her everything he did to me."

2 MS. MINGO: Objection, Your Honor. This has been asked
3 and answered several times. |

4 THE COURT: Cverruled, go ahead.
5 Q. You can explain it any time you want to now, I'm asking
6 you what you wrote on September 16th of 2008 and did I read
7 it correct, "I basically told her everything he did to me,
8 then Donna died."
9 A. I read it correctly, you édded the last time.

10 Q. Well, just read it again.

11 A.  Okay.

12 Q.. "I told my mom »told me he touched on her. I

13 basically’told her everything he did to me, then Donna

14 died."

15 " A, Yes.

16 Q. So an intetpretation could be of this that you told

17 your mother everything you're telling the jury today, you

18 would agree with that. '

19 A. I agree.

20 Q. Now, you were also interviewed by Shanay Moore from

21 DSS, she came to the school and talked to you?

22 A. I don't remember it but ; don't deny it happened.

23 Q. And I'm going to ask you a couple of questions about

24 that. Okay. This was on September 16th as well. Okay.

25 Did you tell Mrs; Moore that Mr. Williams touched you on the
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vagina at least -- touched you on the vagina at least five

times from the age of eight or nine?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. On the vagina; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that it took place in the computer room, is that
what you told her?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you tell her that he went down your pants in the
pool? And I'll show you because you now are saying you were
wearing a bikini, but let me show you and see if you agree
that this is what &ou told Ms. Moore. Do you agree that is
what you told Ms. Moore, that he went down'the pants in the
pool? |

A. I agree.

-Q. And do you wear pants in the pool?

No, sir.
Q. That's what you told her.
A. Well, it was a guess.
Q. A guess?
A. I don't remember exactly what I was wearing, I remember
him going down my pants.
Q. Well, remember, this is not today, this is
September 16th of 2008. Okay? You never told Shanay Moore

that he inserted his hand in your vagina; isn't that true?
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1 A No, sir. 4

2 Q. You did tell her, or you said you tecld her that —- you(
3 disclosed you spent thé night in the Williams home and that
‘4  you, Mr. Williams and His grandmother, slept in the
5 same bed. | ..

6’ A. Yes, sir.

7 Q. ‘Did you tell her that 4 slept in the back of the
8 bed and you slept in the front of the bed?

9 A. No, sir.

10 Q. That's a little bit differe'nt. than what you put in your
11 written statement.

12 A. . It means the same thing.

13 Q. It does .to you?

14 A. Yeah, to me it does.

15 Q You said that Mr Williams tﬁought you were asleep and
16 rubbed your vagina sticking the tip of his finger inside of
17 you. | |

18 A. Yes, sir.

19 o. For at least an hour.

20. A. Yeé, sir.

21 Q. Do you'agree that that'é what you said?

22 A. Yes, sir.
23 Q. So you're. telling the jury that you laid in bed.and

24 Mr. Williams had his finger in your vagina with his
25 granddaughter in the bed with you and he had his finger in
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your vagina for over an hour; is that correct?

A. If that's what I wrote that's cdrrect. I don't know
how long . it was. I know that happened but I don't know how
long it was. _

Q. Well, I didn't write it. Did you say that he had his
finger- inside of you for at least an hour?

A. Yes.

Q. -And that was back in September of '08 when you made

that statement, corréct?

" A. Yes, sir.

Q. in the statement, a handwritten statement you
never mentioned digital penetration, number one; number two,
in this statement that yoﬁ made for -- in a face to face
statement with and -- I'm sorry, Shanay Moore, you
said he did it one time in the bedroom and'he kept it in |
there for over an hour. Do you agree that that's all you
ever told anybody back in September of 2006 -- 8?

A. It doesn't say I said one time?

Q. You look and you see if you can find any other.
referenée in doing that -- that he'did that or was it just
the.reference in him being in the bedrooﬁ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Where is the other time?

A, Theré is no oﬁher time.
Q.

That's what I'm saying.
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A. Okay.
Q. Isn't that true?
A. Can you repeat the whole entire question?
Q. In the handwritten statement you never mentioned
digital penétration, correct? We've already been through
this.
A. Yes.
Q. In the statement that you made, the wverbal statement to
Shanay Moore you only described one incident in the bedroom
where he had his hand in you for one hour; isn't that true?
A. Yes. |
Q. Your sister when she told you what happened never
mentioned to you anything about digital penetration either;
isn't that true? |
A. I don't remember. - |
Q. You didn't put it in any of the statements.
A. I guess it's true then.

_MR. SWERLING: dJudge, that's all IAhave. Thank you.

THE COURT: Any redirect, Solicitor?

MS. SUTTON: Briefly, Your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION-

BY MS. MINGO:
Q. Mr. Swerling asked you at length about a
statement you gave in September of 2008. '

A. Uh-huh.
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Q. Let me ask you this, I believe Mr. Swerling asked you,
it wasn't a question ana answer format, is that right? Did
you just give a summary?

A, Yes, ma'am. |
Q. September of 2008, I can't remember if you stated this
or not, how old would you have been in September of 2008?
A. Thirteen.
Q. Let me ask you about_something else. You indicated
that you periodically would visit the Williams.household
even after you were no longer beihg babysat by Ms. Williams?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Those times that you went back, were you going alone or:
were you going-with your'mothef? |

'AJ Going with my mom.
Q. The exception would be the night that you spent the
night.
A. Yeah

- Q.. Let me clarlfy something on the same -- your
handwritten statement. You indicated that you told your mom
he touched . is that right?

A. Yes, ma'am. '
Q. And you indicated you told your mom, was it basically
everything?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q.  Everything that happened -- just so we're clear,




O O N o O W N

I ST ST T T S T S o S S Gy P P o
QO = W N PO WL aOee s W N P O

145
178

TESTIMONY OF Stig o

everything that happened to you?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. With the substitution of Brandy's name; is that right?

A. Yes, mafam.

Q. And do you remember speaking with Shanay Moore from DSS

that -~ giving a verbal statement to her? I believe she

came to your Schobl.

A. I think I do a little bit.

Q. Did you talk to her about Mr; Williams touching you on

your private part, touching you in your vaginal area?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q Were you asked to specify whether inside or outside?

A, I don't remember.

Q But you gave it to her the best you could remember.
MR. SWERLING: Objection, Your Honor, that's leading.
THE COURT: Sustained. '

Q.- The other children that Ms. Williams babysat at the

time, do you remember what their ages were?

A. No, ma'am, not exactly. I know they were younger.

Q. They were younger. Were they little kids, toddlers or

middle schoolers or high schoolers? How would you
characteiize them? |

A. I guess pretty much toddlers or elementary school.
Q. Were you the oldest child there?

A. I think so, yes. | '
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Q. Were you and your sister, aroﬁnd each other
every minute all of the time while you are being babysat by
Ms. Williams? |
A. - No.
Q. Did you have your own friends there?
A. Not really.
Q. Okay. But nevertheless you weren't always in the
company of children.
A. No, ma'am.

MS. SUTTON: Thank you.

MR. SWERLING: Just briefly.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. SWERLING .
Q. I just want to clarify something that the SOllCltOr

brought up. . In the handwritten statement you made, why

© didn't ‘you tell DSS what you told your mom was about

and not you? Why didn't tell them you were using ULLEE

instead of your name when you re talklng to ycur mom?

A.. T guess that was —-

Y

Q. Whoever asked you to write thls, you said you explained
it to.your mom because you wanted her to think it was
haue] correct?

A, Not -- |

Q. You werev testing..

A. I was testing what she would do, Yeah.
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Q.  What her reaction would be about being touched,

correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Why didn't you tell that to DSS?

A. Why didn't I?

Q. Why didn't you? Because in your statement to DSS you
don't tell them that you told your mother about what was

. happening to you but using Brandy's name, why didn't you

tell that to DSS four years ago?

A. I wasn't looking at it the way, I knew it.

Q; Okay. But you knew it that way, but don't you think
DSS or whoever Was taking your statement or was going to use
the statement wanted to know what you told your mother?

A. I didn't think that.

Q. So you lied to them, too.

. A. I didn't lie to them.

Q. Well, you didn't tell them that you are now saying --
what you'fe'sayinc;/ now is that it really wasn't -
let me ask you something, you know doesn't agree with
you here, don't you?

A.  Okay.

Q. ' never told you that and you know that.

A. Okay.

Q. And you've found that out since you made this statement

that just says you never told her a thing.

147
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A, No.

Q. Nobodyl has ever told you that?
A. No, they haven't.

Q. So on that day your opportunity to -- except what you

said you told your mother because you were‘ testing her to
see What_her reaction was and you used Brandy's name, but
that doesn't explain why you would have told DSS that it was
B that told you that. |

A. I didn't say it Was. I told my mom it was

there's a difference.’

Q. . T know. Why don't you explain to them what you are
telling the jury now?

- A. I didn't think about it from other people reading it, I

just knew.
Q. You also know it didn't make any sense looklng back on

1t know, correct"

A. No, that's not correct.

Q. But one thing that's there that cannot be explained I
submit to you is, "I basically told her everything that he

~did to me." You don't use Brandy's name there?

A, is the prior sentence to that.
Q. is the prior sentence about being touched.
A. I ba31cally told her the being touched part. I'm

pretty sure there's not a perlod there. -

Q. well, EEEN told me that he touched on her. I
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basically told her everything he did to me," Then dots.
A. And basically I did tell them it was a lie, I wasn't

thiﬂking. I knew it was a lie, you can ask Kelly, I even

tol&ﬁher about it.

Q. So your mother knew everything based on this. Based on
this statement your mother knew everything. |
A. I said basically, so no, she didn't. Based on that the
word basically to me meant that I told her not exactly. I
didn't tell her the digital whatever you call that, I didn't
tell her like that.
Q. What did you tell her?
A. I just told her that he touched on
Q. That's all you told her. - |
A. Yeah. And basically that's what he did.
Q. I basically told her everything he did to me is the
same as just touching?
A. I'm sorry, I used the word basically incorrectly.

MR. SWERLING: That's all, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, ma'am, you may step
down. .

The witness, JEFFREY ROWLES, was first duly

sworn and testified as follows, on:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
THE CLERK: State your name for the record.
THE WITNESS: Jeffrey Rowles,

149
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BY MS. MINGO:

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Rowles?

A. Lancaster, South Caroclina.

Q. Are you married?

A. ﬁo, ma'am.

Q. Do you have any children?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. - How many children do you have?

A. I have five children.

Q. Is your daughter?

A. Yes, ma'am. :

Q. Were you at some point married to her mother, Susan
Rowles?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. How long have you been divorced approximately?

About seven years. _ ' .

are you related to hef in any way?
Not anymore. She was.my stepdaughter.

Do you work anywhere?

Yes, I do.

Where do you work?

I'm employed by P and G, Proctor and Gamble.
Where are you from originally? . |
Pennsylvania.

How long have you been in South Carolina?
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A, South Carolina since 1999.

Q. Since’your move to South Carolina, did you have an
occasion to meet Michael and Dorothy Williams?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. How did you come to know them?

A. Well, my ex-wife, Susan, had been looking for a daycare
for the children because she was going to start working
again and she's the one that found the daycare, and then
that was how I met them.

Q. Were you particularly close to them?

A. No, I wasn't.

Q. How often would you see them?

A. I would pick the childien up every week, at least once
a week. | |

Q. At the time the children were going to the Williams'
household, were you divorced at that poiht?

A. No. 1In the beginning, no, we were like a year or so --
we were still married.

Q. And how often did you pick the children up from the
residence?

A. Anywhere from one to maybe three or four times a week
depending on if I was on -- whaf days I worked,‘what days I
didn't according to my schedule.

Q. Did you pick up Nate and or just the

younger two?
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A. No. I nev‘er. picked up that just never
occurred, just and Nate.
Q. Did you go to the Fairfield County Sheriff's office to
file a report back on September 15, 20087?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. What was that in reference to?
A. Well, when I was informed that my daughter --
MR. SWERLING: Keép it to time and place, Your Honor.
MS. MINGO: Your Honor, I'm not asking it for its
truth, just why did he go to the sheriff's office.
MR. SWERLING: That's fine but it has to be limited to

time and place.

THE COURT: I agree. Go ahead and ask the question.
Q. You filed a report September 15th of 20082

A. 15th or 16th, it was a Monday.

Q. Don't tell me what anyone said, but why did you go to
the sheriff's office? | -
A. Because I was told that my --

MR. SWERLING: Objection.

MS. MINGO: I'11 find a way to ;ephrase it, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I think so. |

Q. ALl right, Do you remember what day of the week it was

‘that you filed this report?
A, Monday.

Q. Did you have a conversation with someone that led to

e
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you filing a report?

A. I received a phone call from my ex-wife, Susan.

Q. Based upon that conversation, don't tell me what the
conversation was, did you do anything as a result of having
a conversation with Susan?

A. Yes, I had a discussion wiAth

Q. Now, you indicated you filed the report on

September 14th which was a Monday, when did you have a
conversation with Ul

A. The prior Friday and Saturday.

Q. When you received this information from SUCEAN was she

still currently going to the Williams household?

A. She was until I received a phone call from Susan, which
was Wednesday of that same week, it was Wednesday night I
received the phone call from her.

Q. So.was the timeline Wednesdayvyou hear something from
Susan, Friday you have a conversation with your daughter

ONKPIN is that. correct, as best as you can remember?

A, Yes.

Q. And when you had your conversation with on that
Friday did she describe incidents to you?

A. Yes.

Q. Did she indicate where they occurred?
A. Yés.
Q.

Where did she say it occurred?

153
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A. At the Williams residence or daycare.
Q; And did she say specifically where in the Williams

household?

‘A. Yes. In the computer room, computer chair, bedroom,

bed, nap place, wherever.
Q. Between the day that -- well, what was your reaction to
that? .

MR. SWERLING: Your Honor, what he did is the question,
not what his reaction was.

THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. Did you dQ'anythingtimmediately in response to that,
receiving that information f;:om

A As far as contacting of law enforcement or anything

like that that night, no. I actually intentiocnally didn't
want to go into like everything for hours and hours on

Friday night, I intentionally took two nights to do that to

talk to her about that Friday and Saturday night.

Q. Between that Friday and the Monday, three days later
that you went to the sheriff's office, did the children gov
to the Williams hoﬁsehold at all?

A. No. I was -- can I élaborate?

Q.  Sure.

A. I was there personally to meet the bus 6m Thursday and
Friday and get them directly off of the bus. They nevér
entered the Williams household Thursday or Friday. o
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Q. So you have your conversation with Susan on Wednesday,

‘Thursday and Friday you get the children off the bus at the

Williams household?
A. On Park Avenue or Park Drive, whatever,it'is, yes. I-
never went to-their household, I was out on the street
waiting for the bus. »
Q. So as far as you knowvthey never reentered the home
after -- |
A. No, not to my knowledge. I wouldn't have allowed that.
Q. Did you at any time contact Mr. Williams about what you
had heard? |
A. No, ma‘am.

MS. MINGO: ‘Beg the Court's indulgence.

(Break in proceedings.)

Q. A few more questions. Do you know if your daughter,

GNP - T don't know why I keep saying SUlVPAN -- kept a
journal? ' '
A. Do I know why?

Q. Do you know if she kept one?

- A. She was instructed or told by her counselor that they

started going to try to‘keep -- to start some type of a
journal, yes.

Q. Do you know if she did that?

A. She had a journal, yes, that she took with her maybe

one or two visits to that counselor, yes.
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. Did you ever physically see the journal?

i Yes.

Q

A .

Q. Do you know where the journal is now?

A. Yeadh, at home in my dresser drawer.

Q. Okay. Did you ever read the journal?

A. | Yes, I did. |

Q. Did you do anything with the journal? |

A. Yeah. I‘broﬁght the journal out a few days ago, I

don't remember doing it, the-féw pages that she wrote were

" missing, I don't remember what I did with them or what

happened to them. But I personally have control of that
book so it had nothing to do with anybody but me.
Q. Is there a reason you did something?

A. Yes. Because I made the decision as her father and as

‘her parent that it was not to her benefit to keep that diary

because of the things that were written in it. They were
negative type things. I made a judgment call as a parent
that it was not to her benefit to do that. I wanted it --
and I stated it to her, her mother and when she told the

- counselor in no uncertain terms that I did not want the book

to be continued and I made that decision as her father and I

.do not regret it.

Q. I understand. )
MS. MINGO: Thank you. Answer anything Mr. Swerling

may have.
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THE COURT: Cross examination, Mr..Swerling.
.CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. SWERLING:
Q. Mr. Rowles, just a.couple of:questions to follow-up.
You said you got the call on a Wednesday?
A. Yes, sir. |
Q. From your wife? -
A, Ex-wife. ,
Q. And so on Thursday and Friday you picked the children
up.
A. Yes, I did.
Q. But took no further action on Thursday or Friday.
A. No, I didn't. '
Q. And what was -- do you remember what date it was? Was
that the 7th or the 8th of September?
A. Thursday was the 12th and Friday the 13th.
Q. And-sb you waited until the 15th, I think, to go ahead
and make the report; is that right?
A.  Yes, I did. '
Q. You never called the Williams, right?
A. No, sir.
Q. But you did -- you said you picked up the children
yourself. |
. Yes, I did.
Q. And nobody ever questioned where were the kids dropped

157
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~off those twoadaYS?

A. Well, on Park Avenue or Park Street, wherever that‘is
on the street, I picked them up directly off the bus.

Q. No.  I'm not asking you about being picked up, I'm
talking about they Weﬁt to the Williams in the morning on
both days. | | |

A. Right. Susan -- that was arrangements that she made
with whoever, I don't know, I didn't -- I live in Lancaster,

she lived in Great Falls, the children went to school in

- Great Falls, exactly what the arrangements were on a daily

basis I don't know.
Q. Well, you know that she-Would take the kids in the

morning and,drop»themvoff you, do know that?

“A.  Susan did.

Q. '~ Right.

A, Yeah..

Q. And so the report is made to you on Wednesday but yet
she drops the kids off on Thursday and Friday and you just
picked them up, correct?

A. - Right. | '

Q. Let me ask YOu about this journal. You're aware that I
subpoenaed the journal, are you not? . . |

A. No, I wasn't aware.

Q. Nobody told you that? -

A. I didn't know that the journal was subpoenaed.
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Q. Did you speak with -~ which journal was it'that you

were talking about, or Sierra's.

A. Aubrey's. I have no knowledge of anything with
Sierra's.

'Q. So you don't know what happened with Sierra's.

A. No, I dqn't.

Q. But the only pages that she wrote in connection with
this case were pages that are now missing from thaﬁ journal.
A, Yes. , ,

0. Yoﬁ know that she was told by the people involved in
the case that it was important for her to keep a journal,-
yQu're-aWare of what the instructions were.

A. The exact wording of the instructions, no, I wasn't.

And that it was important? No, I don't even remember the

word important being used. - We were told -- I was told by

Rl is the only way that I even know this because she was

the one that was going to the counselor, that they were
going to keep,‘or try to keep a journal or start a journal,
that is how I was told about it.

Q. And they would take the journal to the coﬁnselor._

A. Yes. |

Q. And go over what they wrote in the journal with the

counselor.

A. I can't even answer that question whether they did or

didn't. I never ever went to any of their appointments with.

159
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that counselor with them.
Q. You didn't go to any?
A. No.

_Q. You didn't go to the ARC interview.

A. . No, I didn't.

Q. | You didn't go to-any of the interviews that anybody
had.

A, No, I didn't. Her mother took care of that.

Q. And they were living with their mother; is that
correct? |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that was where? In Great Falls?

A} In Great Falls.

Q; How did you get the journél?

A. Apparently she bréught it to my house on one of the
times that I had the children. And. obviously that would
have,béen the only way for it to get there, she would have
had‘to have brought it with her.

Q. .And did she give you permission to read the journal or
did you just fead it YOurself?

A. No. She handed it to me and said, "Daddy, here is what
they want‘us ﬁo do," or what they're trying to get us to
start doing or whatever to the best of my --

0. I understand what you just -- I know the reaSons you

gave the solicitor. But people who are a lot more
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knowledgeable than you in this kind of situation were

telling her to go ahead and memorialize these things in --

" writing in a journal so that journal would be available

later to review, correct?

A. That's your statement; not mine.

Q. Well, you know -

A. I have a different opinion on that journal than you do
apparently.

Q. I don't have any opinion.

A. Okay. .Well, that's not my opinion.

Q. I just know it's just missing. |

A. Aboutvtwo_or three pages that she had written
sporadically, yéah, they.are missing.

Q. The rest of the journal is there but not those pages.

~A. The first few pages, yes.

Q. What I said is -- you said my assessment, it's not my
assessment, these people who she was going to told her to

keep the.journal, not me.

A. Okay. Fine.

Q. Is that right?

A. I hear you. I don't know. Like I said, all I know is
she brought the journal home and just made the statement
that they were going to start to try to keep this journal.
What they were supposed to write in it, what itAwas supposed

to do to help that, none of that was ever stated to me so 1
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don't even know what other than to start to keep a journal.
Q. And do you know that she was taking it to the

counselor? Did yoﬁ testify to that?

A. Yes.
Q. So obviously the counselor was asking her to keep the
journal.

A. Okay. Yeah, I can agree with that.

Q. And you went ahead and made the decision on your own to
go ahead and just remove those pages despite what the
counselor said.

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. Correct?

A. Yes, I did.

0. So no one,really'knows_whét was written in those
journal pages except you, correct?

A. That would have to be a correct statement, yes.

\ Q. And I was trying to understand at the beginning of your

testimony what you said that you don't remember what
happened to it, the paper, the pages or -—-—

A. My statement was, okay; I knew whefe the book was in my
nightstand and it has been there since the day that I put it
there whenever this all occurred. I don't‘reaall'tearing
the pages out of the book, apparently I did because nobody
else had access to the book. I don't recall tearing them

out. I went to look at the book a few days ago because




O O N oy ol W N

O ST S T T T = S e R O T N S T R
G &= W N P O W O =2 &6 s W N BB O

196 163

TESTIMONY OF JEFFREY ROWLES

did mention it to me, I got the book out with her
standing there, I opened it up, the pages that she had
written on were gone. Apparently I had then and still have

a problem with the fact that I felt that it was not to the

benefit of my then eight or nine year old daughter, and it

was a parental decision. Like I said, I don't regret it and
wouldn't take it back if I had the chance.

Q. My understanding is you don't remember doing it.

A. Tearing pages out? No, I don't. Because it was

probably four years ago now and tearing those few pages out,

- I don't remember.

Q. So could have done it or somebody else éould
have done it.

A. No. I live my myself, nobody was in my bedroom and it
was put away. |

Q. But your daughter comes to your house.

A. Yeah. But she doesn't go through my dresser drawers
and my personal belongings.

Q. Well, let}me ask you something, did she ever ask about
the journal again? '

A. ,No. Because when I told her I didn't approve of it and
didn't want it to continue she never-questioned it again.
She knew that I meant what I said.

Q. Just for my information and the jury's information,

when did we discover that those pages were missing?
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1 A. Just about three days ago when mentipned thét
2 she wanted the book of was supposed to bring\it; something
3 to that affect, so I went to the book to get it and thatis
4 when I realized that the pages were gone.
5 MR. SWERLING: Thank you.
6 MS. MINGO: Nothing else, Your Honor.
7. THE COURT: Thank you, sir, you may step down. You may
8 call your next witness. | |
9 MS. SUTTON: Judge, we call Investigator Greg Bony to
10 the stand.
11 The witness,.GREG BONY was first duly sworn
412 and testified as follows, on: |
13 DIRECT EXAMINATION
14 THE CLERK: State your name for the record.
15 THE WITNESS: Greg Bony.
16 BY MS. SUTTON:
17 Q. Investigator -- Mr, Bony, are you currently working
18 now?
19 A, No, I'm not.
20 -Q. Where did you used to work? _
21 A, I was employed by the Fairfield County Sheriff's
22 Office. _
23 Q. How long did you work at the Fairfield County Sheriff's
24 Office? _ |
25 A.. Right at 16 years, I believe.
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Q. When was the last time you worked at the .Fairfield

County Sheriff's Office?

A. Actually physically worked was January of 2009.

Q. So after January of 2009 you never physically workéd at
the Fairfield Sheriff's Office?"

A. No. I officially retired in June.of that year.

Q. So between January of 2009 and June of 2009 physically
where were you?

A. I was unable to work due to an injury. .
Q. While you were worklng at the sheriff's department what
capacity did you work there? |
A. At the time I retired?

Q. Yes, sif.-

A. At the time I retired I was liéutenant in charge of
criminal investigation.

Q. So in 2008 you were also in that capacity, correct, a

~ lieutenant in charge of investigations?

A, Yes, I was.

Q. In 2008 did you conduct an investigation concerning
Mike Williams? | |

A. Yes, I did.

Q. let me back up. Do you know where Dorothy and Mike
Williams resided, or at least where they resided in 20087

A, Yes, I do. It was 46 Park Drive I believe in Great

'Falls which is in Fairfield County, a section of Fairfield.

165
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Q. And for what reason -- generally what reason were you
investigating Mike Williams? -
A. It Was;alleged that he had --

MR. SWERLING: Objection, Your Honor, that would be
hearsay. |
Q0. What type of investigation.

THE COURT: Sustained.
A. A child sexual assault.
Q. What did you do during the course of your investigation
for that type of incident? ' '
A. Contacted DSS so they could do a joint investigation at
the samé time since it involved a home based daycare which
is DSS's jurisdiction over. So I Contacted‘bSS, the reports
corresponding with the sheriff's office on the 15th and

16th, myself along with DSS worker Shanay Moore went to the

‘Williams residence. She informed Ms. Williams of the -

allegations, I briefly spoke with Mr. Williams at that time.
We interviewed -- went to the Great Falls Middle School, I
believe it was, and interviewed SHENN Actually Ms. Moore
did the interview with [QHCEN and obtained a written
statement from her at that time. |

Q. So let me clarify this, you never did aﬁ official
interview of SN |

A, No, not at that time. I planned_to do another

interview but I left work before it was evér done.
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Q. Is it common practice during this type of investigation
to interview a child victim? Is it normal practice to talk
to a child'concerning things that happéhed?
A. It depends on their age, if they were able to
articulate certain matters. Like in Sierra's case she was
13 years old -- |

MR. SWERLING: Objection, Your Honor. Can we approach
a side bar?

(A break was taken.)

THE COURT: Let's bring the jury in.

(The jury'returned to the courtroom.)

THE COURT: I believe we are ready to resume the

_examination of the witness. Solicitor?

BY MS. SUTTON:

Q.. Mr. Bony, I was asking you concerning things that are
normally involved in these types of cases in sexual
assaults. In this case you were dealing with two victims,
A, Correct. .

Q. And you never really did any type of interviewing
correct?

A. No, I did not.

Q. And where was she interviewed?

A. The Assessment Resource Center in Columbia.

Q. And was that your recommendation that she go down there
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to be --

A. Yes, it was.

Q. In terms of;Aubrey's sister, did she go to the
ARC as well?

A. No, she did not.

Q. And was that your decision to not have her to go to the

_BRC? -

A. At that time, yes; it was.

Q. She did give a statement to the DSS worker in your
presence, correct? |

A. In my presence, no.

Q. Were you with Mrs. Moore when she went to-the school
and you didn't do any follow-up?

A. No, I did not. |

Q. Was it your ihtentioﬁ to do the follow-up statement? 7
A. Yes, it was. |

Q. About the time that incident was reported it was

' September 15th of 2008 and September 16th of 20087,

A. Yes. ' _

Q. And by your earlier testimony yoﬁ stated that in
January of 2009 I guess two or three months later you went
out I guess on medical leave disability.

A. Correct. |

Q. . To your knowledge no one else from the sheriff's

department did any type of statement with (SUICKEM right?
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A, Not to my ‘knowledge.

Q. Do you know to your knowledge who if anybody else from
the sheriff's department would have handled this case once
you went out in June of 20097

A. I'm not sure.

Q. But from January until June I guess you were

unofficially there but not really there.

A. Right, I was on leave.

MS. SUTTON: No further questions.

MR. SWERLING: I just have a couple.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. SWERLING:
Q. We've known each other a ldng time, right? Let me just
ask a éouple of questions. I think the solicitor brought
out the fact that normally there would be somebody taking a
statement from them, a real statement, correct?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Either you do the ARC interview Which is question and
answer or you take a statement from somebody.
A. That's correct.

0. And no one in the sheriff's department to your

'knowlédge ever sat down and -- she spoke with Ms. Moore,

spoke with you and did some sort of handwritten statement
but that's not what we are talking about as far as law

enforcement?

169
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A. No. I was reading her statement and everything, I had

 questions I wanted to ask her, .I wanted to read her but it

never did happen.

Q. And that's qormal, right?

A. Yes. |

Q. lAnd nobody from the sheriff's department ever pickéd‘up
on it as far as you know.

A. ‘As far as I know, no. ‘
Q. Let me ask you,‘you did write some type éf report, T
guess, iﬁ the first couple of days; is that right?

A. Yes, sir. '

Q. Do you recognize that?

A, 'What I understbod:the case to be about and certain
people accepted it, correct.

0. And basically its what you understood the case to be

‘about‘and what certain people involved in the case were

saying.

A.  Yes, sir.

Q. And I can show you this, but do you recall making a
recording that was interviewed at the Great
Falls Middle School, and you said you did go thére, right?
A. Yes, sir, I did. |

-.Q. Do you have that report right in front of you?

Q
A. I do. )
Q. If not I've got it.
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. In the middle of the page and'the middle of that
paragraph ébout the only 'thing that she -
disclosed to law enforcement at all was that one time while

sleeping over at the Williams house, Mr. Williams inserted

- his finger in her vagina. That was the only disclosure that

was madeAby her at all, isn't that true, as far as you know?
A. Would you repeat that, please? A

Q. That as far as you know the only disclosure she had
made about penetration was one time in the bedroom when she
was sleeping --

A;. Yes, sir, that's correct.

ey |

A, One time.

Q. One time. And that's the only time you're aware of any

disclosure that she has ever made.
A. Yes, sir.

MR. SWERLING: Thank you.

MS. SUTTON: Brief question concerning that.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. SUTTON:
Q. Just for clarity sake, in reference to your synopsis
Mr. Swerling was asking you concerning disclosures that
GHENM rade.  You indicated she disclosed one time

coﬁcerning penetration in the bedroom, I think that's the

171
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question he asked.

~A. At the time I wrote the réport, yes.

Q. .In your report, though, do you reference there that
whether or not she said there were other instances where
there was so'm}e type of inappropriate touching?
A. Yes, on several occasions.
Q. And you placed that in the copy of your case synopsis;
is that correct? |
A. Yes, I did.

MR. SWERLING: Just follow-up on that.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. SWERLING: |
Q. Well, that he touched her but it was only one‘
disclosure of any digital penetration. '
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Let me ask you something, did you ever go talk to
the granddaughter?

A. No.

Q. And you were aware -- you know her father, right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Brent,. he's a deputy in Lancaster.

A, Yes, sir. _

Q. And they offexfed tp have you talk to about _wha1;

OBENR| had said, correct?
A. I don't remember that. I do remember talking to them
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and letting them know if anything came up'that I néedgd.
Q. Well, what I'm saying is nobody ever followed up to go
talk to about what said happened.
A. Not to my knowledge,Ano.
Q. And there was no -- she was available?
A. Yes, sir.

MR. SWERLING: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir, you may step down. Ladies
and gentlemen, we're going to call it a wrap for the day.
of course, there are more witnesses that are expected to
testify. I actually have not talked to the,aftorneys about
how much longer the case is expected to last but I feel sure
at least through tomorrow if not the next day. In other
words, we won't be finished tomorrow unless I'm badly
mistaken. I'm getting ready to let you know you need to be
back at 9:30 in the morning. What I want you to do when you
come back in the morning, first thing I would like for you

to try to do is see if the 12 of you can select a foreperson

to serve as spokesperson for the jury or foreperson to.

represent the jury. It can be any of the one of you, it

" can't be our alternates, at least not yet.' Anybody going to

have a problem with 9:30 in the morning? Remind you, don't
let anybody talk to you about the case, you don't talk to
anybody about the case. See you back at 9:30 in the

morning, ladies and gentlemen.
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(The jury left the courtroom.)

THE COURT: It is my understandings that y}all are
going to work on the tape. Court is in recess until 9:30 in
the morning. |

(Court adjourned for the evening and resumed at

9:30 a.m., on July 11, 2012.)

THE COURT: Let me ask this: Have both attorneys had
an opportuﬁity, first of all, to review the videotape
interview of the child that we have been discussing, most of
which haé beeh discussed in chambers? Have y'all had an
opportunity to review it?

MS. SUTTON: The State, has, yes, sir, we have, Your
Honozx. |

. THE COURT: And the defense has?

MR. SWERLING: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: There was some iésue about redacting part
of it or ending part of it soon, has that been accompiished?

MS. SUITON: Yes, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It's my understanding that the State wishes
to in a few minutes or later on this morning offer the tape
into evidence; is that correct, Solicitor?

- MS. SUTTON: That is correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I still think we probably should have the

individual who is going to testify about this give us some

testimony in-camera about the procedure that was_used. Is
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that person available?

| MS. SUTTON: Actually that's something that I juét
instructed Mr. Swerling, Ms. Smith was here yesterday
afternoon and she was supposed to be back this morning, as
of yet she has not arrived and so I hope nothing has |
happened to her.

THE COURT: Do we have any other witnesses we could
call to mo&e this case forward?

MS. SUTTON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: When it gets to a point, what I think --
and I will be glad to hear anybody else's opinion on the
matter —- IAwould like to have a few moments of in-camera to
determine at least based on that individuai’s testimony
whether the criteria can be met and whether the Court.is
satisfied and then we will hear argument.

(The jury returned to the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen, welcome
béck. Did the jury have an opportunity to select a
foreperson this morning? ’

THE JUROCR: We did.

THE COURT: And who would that be?

THE JUROR: Juror 130, Mark Taylor.

THE COURT: Mr. Taylor. A.%ery wise decision the jury
has made, I affirm that appointment. Would ask you to serve

as foreperson for the jury and occupy that chair for the
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remainder of the trial.
THE JUROR: Yes, sir.
THE COURT: Solicitorf are we ready to call additional
witnesses in the cése?
MR. SWERLING: Yes,«sir.  Your Honor, the State calls
Shanay Moore to the stand.
| The witness, SHANAY MOORE, was first duly sworn
and testified as follows, on: |
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. SUTTON:
THE CLERK: State your name for the record.
THE WITNESS: Shanay Moore. _
Q. Ms. Moore, where are you cufrently empioyed?,
A. South Carolina Department of Social Services.
Q. How loﬁg have you worked at the South Caxrolina
Department Qf Social Services, better known as DSS?

A. Since 2005.

- Q. And what is your job title right now at DSS?

A. Investigator with the abuse and neglect unit.

Q. And were you working at DSS in this capacity in 20087
A. Yes. _

Q. I know you said it so fast, what is that title?

A. It's Out of the Home Abuse and Neglect, better know as
OHAN, O-h-a-n. o

Q. And whaﬁ do you do in that capacity?
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A. We investigate allegations of abuse and neglect in
foster homes, group homes and daycares.

Q. Are those entities particularly those that are licensed
through DSS? | |

A, Yes, licensed and registered.

Q. To yout knowledge through DSS, was the daycare of

Dorothy Williams licensed through DSS?

A. Yes, it was.

Q. And in 2008 did you conduct an investigation on that
daycare?

A. Yes, we did.

Q. Where_is the daycare located?

A. Can I refer to my notes?

Q; -Yes.

A. Okay. The daycare is located at 46 Park Drive, Great
Falls, South Carolina, Fairfield County, 29055.

Q. And during the course of your investigation -- let me
esk you this: How did you come to be involved in
investigating the daycare?

A. We received an aiiegation.

Q. Okay. And once you received that allegation, what did
you do immediately once it was received by your office?

A. This case is established by the supervisor to be
accepted or screened out, the department choée to accept the

case for investigation and because of the allegations we had
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to contact law enforcement within 24 hours.

Q. So did you‘contact law enforcement?

A. Yes.

Q. And who did you contact in referehce'to these
allegations? | '

A. The referral was sent to -- basically a referral -- the

paperwork was sent to Lieutenant Bony.

Where was he?

Fairfield County Sheriff's Department.

When did you receive the allegations?

We received this report on September 15th of 2008.
And when was law enforcement contacted or referred?
Referral was sent on September 15th of 2008.

The same day?

Yes.

© PO PO PO PO

And during the course of your investigation immediately
after receiving the referral, did you have an opportunity --
let me back up. What was your first -- after you got —-
accepted referral to law enforcement, what was the next

thing that you did after that?

A, I contacted the victim's father to get porm1531on to

see the children at school, and then according to what they
had T conferred with daycare llcen31ng and went out to the
daycare the next day so we could make an initial contact.

Q. So you coordinated with daycare licensing to go out to
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the daycare which is the residence of Dorothy and Mike
Williams.

A. Yes.

Q. When did you go out there?

A. - We went out on September 16, 2008. _
Q. And when you went té the daycare of the home, did you -
have the oprrtunity to speak to Mike Williams?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. And who was with you when you went out there to the
daycare? |

A. Investigator Bony as well as Brian Harris with
childcare licensing.

Q. And upon arriv;ng at that locatidn or at the daycare,
what did you do once you encountered Mike Williams?

A. Our procedure is we have to give them brochures
regarding the child protective process and also a brochure-
regarding discrimination. The OHAN process, which is Out of
home Abuse and Negleét Process, was explained to them in
regards to the parts of the investigation, what would happen
once the détermination is made and basically their rights.
Q. And based upon yod -- after you informed him of all of
that, did Mike Williams make any type of statement to yoﬁ at
that time? |

A. . Yes, he did.

Q. And what did he say to you at that time?
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A. I was told by Mr. Williams who reported to me that
loved the computer, that the child did sit on his lap-
whiie she played the Barbie game. He also denied that he
touched the child under her underwear or on her vagina or
buttocks. He did inform me that he watched the children by
himself'for no more than 30 minutes while his wife ran

errands. He also reported that SULUPAN said -- made the

allegation that he placed his penis in between her legs

- before, and he also reported that he tickled and pinched the

children on the inside of their ﬁhigh area for fun as they
did the same with their children, and then he would no
longer answer any quéstions. Our ~--

MR. SWERLING: Objection Your Honor.

(Bench conference was held;5
Q. Ms. Mbofe, that is the éxtent of the statement that he
gave to you?
A, Yes, ma'am.
Q. But just to clarify, the essence, of céurse, is that he
denied he touched the children under their -- that he
touched the child undef her underwear or vagina or buttocks;
is that correct? ‘
A. Yeé, ma'am. _
Q. You also stated that he watched the children by himself
but for no more than about 30 minutes.

A, Yes, ma'am.




o O @)} (8] > w N [ aaed

NN NN DR R s s s
G s W N P O W N s W NN RO

' 214
TESTIMONY OF SHANAY MOCRE:

Q. And that he, in fact, did tickle the child on the
inside of the thigh area but he did the same thing to his
children.

A, Yes.

Q. After you left the Williams residence, where did you
proceed next?

A. To go to Great Falls Middle School to see SR

Linton.

Q. So prior to going to the residence of the Williams you
hadn't spoken with is that correct?

A, No. '

Q. I meanA——

A. That'sAcorfect, I hadn't spoken to the child.

Q. And upon you arriving at Great Falls Middle School you
had the opportunity to see'

A. Yes. ’ |

Q. Basically you took a statement from her?

A; Yes.

Q. Is it normal procedure for you to provide a statement
or for you to let the child write the statement? How did
that play out?

A. When we interviewed the child I am writing down
verbatim what the child is safing.on the note pad and I
allow her to write a statement after we finished.

Q. 'And‘in reviewing her statement just in general was it

181
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clear to you —— how was the grammar I guess and punctuation
of the statement?
A. Well —- .

lMR. SWERLING: Your Honor, I object to that. That's
just soﬁe sort of way trying to vouch for or -- the jury can
make thaﬁ determination if she>just reads the statement and
describes it.. I.withdraw the objection.

THE COURT: Withdrawn, go ahead.
Q. I'm sorry, you can go ahead and answer the questibn;
A. I'msorry, what was the question?
Q. I was juSt asking how was the grammar and punctUation.'
A. Let me see. There's not a lot of punctuation. You
know,,there'sjsome gfammatical errors in the report, in hér
statement. ‘
Q. Was the étatgment\—— did you rely upon that‘in your
investigation or did you supplement her statement with
anything else in your investigation?
A. No. I just didn't rely on this alone, I did speak with
the child's mother. . - '
Q. BAnd after you spoke with and obtained a

. statement, did you have opportunityyto speak with SHIUAN o g

well?
A. Yes.
Q. But ypu'didn't take any type of statement from her,

‘correct?
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A. No. I just introduced myself and I took a picture of
the child.

MS. SUTTON: No further questions.

"CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. SWERLING:

Good morning, Ms._Moore. How are you?J

Good morning.

Q
A
Q. Did you have an opportuﬁity to visit the house?
A. Yes. |

Q

. Just for the jury's edification, it's a fairly small

house, is it not?

A. It is small.

Q; Do you remember you enter in, you're kind of in the
living room area, then you go to a kitchen?

A. I remember the living room once you enterAthe front
door, and I couldn't tell you where the:kitchen was exactly.
‘Q. Do you remember there was a couple of bedrooms in
there, the computer room that you go in to?

A. I kﬁow it was a small computer room.

Q. But basically it is a very small house.
A. Yes.
Q. And you said you got the report or the sheriff's

~ department get the report? Who got the actual report first?

A. We received a report.

Q. Okay.



184

O 0O g9 o U oe W N

NN NN N R R R B s B s
G & W N B O © ® 4 oo 0 & W N P o

' : 217
TESTIMONY OF SHANAY MOORE

A. I can't release the report.

Q. No. I'm not asking you, we'ré trying to find out was
it the sheriff's department first or was it DSS first?

A. .I'm.thinkingrit came to the sheriff's department first.
Q. All right. That's fine. Let me -- now, what

Mr. Williams had told you was that there had been some
allegation in the past about some conduct with

A. Yes, sir. ‘

Q. But ndbody ever did anything about that, nobody ever
said anything more about it, nobody ever indicated'anything
about it; isn't that true? | |

A. Not from this statement.

Q. Well, not only him, but nobody else that you
interviewed -- Mrs. Rowles never ﬁegtioned anything about
that.

A, No.

. Q. So there was never any allegation made about it, it was

just something that had been.said, correct, as far as you
understood?

A. As far as I understood that's what Mr. Williams told
me. | | |

Q. Right. No investigation as far as you were able to
determine.

A. None that_I know of.,

Q. Did you try and find out who actually had made that
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allegation to Mr. Williams?

A. I'm sorry?

Q. Did you try to find out who actually had said that to
Mr. Williams?

A. His statement was to me, he said reported that
he placed his penis in between her legs, so I'm thinking it
came from the child.

Q. And obviously the children were still in the daycare so
it had been some point in the past, or it was a present
situation. _

A. The children stopped attending daycare --

Q. Just a few days before actually, this is what, the 16th
and ——

A. I think the last day was the 12th which would have been
a Friday so they had attended up until when the allegations
were made.

Q.  So the vagueness of it is that it could have been -- it

could ha&e been the actual report that was being made that

.she was making that allegation now, that Mr. Williams was

saying that she made the allegation he had placed his penis
between the legs.

A. No. I initially read the allegations to him, what we
received from the department so I had no knowledge about the
penis.

Q. But was the sheriff's department there as well?

185
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A. Yes.

Q. So he -- I guess what I'm understanding you to say is
he said she had made that allegation.

A. Yes.

Q. And you don't know the source of where he got that

information.

A, . No, I don't.

Q. Okay. Now, so .you talked with a few other people in
the case. I know you spoke with Ms. Rowles, correct?

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. And Mrs. Rowles told yoﬁ that at some pecint in the past
whex-m CUEEN vas about nine years old didn't she tell you
that made a comment about JIUSEAN the Williams
granddaughter, not. liking tc') go see Mike because he touches
her? That would be --

A. Yeah, I found it. ,

Q. Isn't that what she told you, that S il made the
allegations that had made the allegation that she
didn't like going to Mike because he touches her?.

A. (Yes.

Q. Not touchers her on }»the butt but touches her indicating
an inappropriate way? |

A. Yeah.
Q. Didn't Mrs. Rowles tell you at that time that Sl

‘was actually transposing Brandy's name for her name to see
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whether or noﬁ she céuld -- I guess as I understand it she
was using -- according to her she was using Brandy's name
but it was really her that was making that allegation. She
didn't tell you that, did she?

A. No.
Q. Now, are you familiar -- obviously you are with the
different intake forms — the ARC intake form, are you

familiar with that? Is that part of your process?

A. That's not the forms I complete so I don't know
procedurally what they have to complete on the forms. I've
seen forms before but I don't —-

Q. The intake central registry sheet form is something
that you're familiar with; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And that's actually your signature; is that correct?
A, Yes.

Q. This form has asked for little bit of a history about
the family; isn't that correct?

A. Yes;

Q. And it asks about whether there Were any ieported -
any reports in the past, internal, in the family, of sexual
abuse.

A. I'm sorry?

Q. Doesn't it say on the form -- you're asking whether or

not -- let me just get the question. I'm looking on page 52
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onhbate(stamped, you don't have tbe bate stamped?

A. I have the original file.

Q. Well, let me see if I can just point to it.. Where it
says parent factors and it says behavior, willingness to
protect, substance abuse, custody action, incarceration,

mental/physicalness, spousal.abuse, parental skills or prior

CPS reports. What does that mean?

A. For OHAN because we are an individual unit from the
reqular child protective services; parent factor for us
means the}childca&e provider or group home provider or a
foster parent. So our parent provideis -- Or our |
perpetrator is not the parent. So our parent factors are |
totally different from -- we are looking at the caregiver
factors. h

Q. But would it be important from a DSS investigative
standpoint that if there had been prior abuse by some other
individual in the home then that would be a factor that DSS

would want to know.

A, Yes. But at the time of intake we don't always receive

that informatioﬁ.

Q. That's fine. But that is an important factor for you

to know.

A. If it was a child protective services investigation.
MS. SUTTON: Your Honor,}I object; Can we approach?

(Bench conference was held.)
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(The jury left the courtroom.)
| 4THE COURT': We have an objectidn from the State, let's
go ahead and flesh it out. Solicitor? '

MS. SUTTON: Your Honor, the State objects. I think
Mister -~ I would like to assume - I think Mr. Swerling was
trying to go through the path of gétting through this
witness the fact of a prior allegation of sexual abuse’
primarily, which I think we put on the record yesterdéy --
primarily with the stepbrother and one of the victims,

Ms. At this point rather than introduce it
through -- I think this just is a backdoor way to try to get
that information in. We feel like’it is not relevant, it's
not  admissible at this poiﬁt as fér as -- particularly
through this witness, or not relevant at this point in the
trial, Your Honor. In Mrs. Moore's testimony -- and the
purpose of Mrs. Moore being here, she's basically testifying
as far as procedurally what she has done, information that
she has collected. Now, I think if we get into the point of
whether or not this was important and relevant as far as
prior sexual abuse we're actually getting into a -- for
purposes of what she does which‘is investigate out of home
abuse, make the determination, shut down déycares and things
of that nature, we're not here for that type of issue. I
think that issue would be more relevant in terms of whenever

they do their final heéring and things for DSS as far as the
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daycare operation is concerned. But as far as the criminal
procedure that we're here for today I don't believe this
information is relevant.

THE COURT: Well, let's go ahead and while the jury is
out and’gé down that road with the.questions and let's see
what the answers would be.

BY MR. SWERLING: | |

Q. Ms. Moore, for DSS purposes, is it important to know
about.other~ailegations or other situations of abuse, sexual
abuse within the family with the victims in the case?

A. Yes., -

Q. - And that is something that-you -- basically I've looked
at ——_mostfof the forms that have been sent over to me are
from DSS, but they all in somévway or another refer to has
there been‘anyvother sexual abuse of that.particular person
or in the family. The forms have questions on them for --
let me just -- I'm summarizing what they basically say, but
what ﬁhey basically Saylis has there been any prior
allegations of abuse with respect to a child or somebody in
the family. |

A. What form are you referring to? A summary of all of
forms or -- | |

Q. Just in general. For example in the form that we were
just referring to.

A, The intake?
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’Q.' Yeah. Where it says -- I just had it, did I leave it
up there? ' |
A. - No.
Q. We were referring I think when we cutoff where it says
- parent factors, correct, on that form?
MS. SUTTON: Judge, I'm just not certain what forms he
is referring to.
MR. SWERLING: The child welfare,éervices intake and
central registry sheet.
MS. SUTTON: Okay.
Q. Yoﬁ know which one I'm talking about, right?
A. Yes. |
Q.‘ And on there where it says parent factors it asks
whether there have been prior CPS reports.
A. Our parent factors ére not parent factors, we use the
forms interchangeably in DSS. Because we are a specialized
unit of child protective services, if the alleged
perpetrator is a parent you would get that information from
the reporter, basically this information is just coming from
the reporter. But for the purposes'of Out of Home Abuse and'
Neglect, because our alleged perpetrator is a caregiver
that's what that means to us. So I'm looking for if there
was any previous CPS reports by Mr. and Mrs. Williams in our
system.
Q. Or about Mr. and Mrs. Williams.

191
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A. Yes, sir, and not the parent. Because the‘parents'are
not our perpetrators in this report. |
Q. No. But my question is if when you are investigating

alleged abuée of children,'DSS is interested in other

allegations that have been made about abuse to those

children as part of your investigation.

A. -Yes. .If we do find that information out it can come |
out initially, it can come out during the investigations.

Q. I'm not being critical at all. But what I'm saying is
it is not only relevant about what the allegations are in
the incident case, the one you are investigating, but when
you're looking at the family and when you're looking at the
victims it's important to know whether there have been other
situations of sexual abuse inside of that faﬁily.

A. Yes, it's important to know.

0. Bnd why?

A.. Well, you want to assess —- make sure that it has been -
assessed properly and it --.it is just importan£ infbrmation
to know, sometimes it has been handled a different way. So |

you can just find out that information.

Q. And it's relevant to your investigation in the incident

case when you ask those questions. You're not just asking

- because you want to invade the family's privacy.

A. No. You want to get a history of people.

Q. It's important to get a history.
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A. Yes.

Q. So that assessment can be made or you can make an
assessment and recommendation based not only on what the
incident case is but whatever prior situations are; is that
correct?

A, I don't know how you want me to -- I can't really —
what we do is a little bit different from the regular family
court, so I — ‘

Q. I think you answered the qﬁestion. It's relevant
because it gives you part of the social history of the
family and it tells you a little bit about the family so you
can pursue that in your investigation. - ‘

A. Well, T wouldn't necessarily presume that in my
investigation. | |

Q. Not in the investigation.-

A. Yes, in the investigation.

Q. And in actuality, Jeffrey Rowles told you during -- in

your case -- or your OHAN, is that how you say it?

A. OHAN, '

Q. -- investigative summary that said he is the stepfather
y@Child1l and he disclosed that she had a previous

_History'of sexual abuse by a family member, the incident was

handled by law enforcement, this was a child on child
incident.

A. Yes, sir.

193
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Q. He tolq you that.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That's an important factor, is it not?

A. It is important.

Q. Somethihg DSS wants to know.

A.  Yes, that's something we want to know.

Q. Let me ask you, when someone goes in for an ARC

interview, do you convey the history that you have to the

ARC interviewer?

~A. I can't remember the whole process. I think they're

given -~ I think they basically get the information from the

law enforcement referral or the incident report that is sent

in to them. I can't recall if it was an initial interview

prior to but I do remember having a summarization of it
after -—- | _ .
>MR. SWERLING: Judge, that's all I would ésk.,

THE COURT: All right. Let me hear what the solicitor
says. |

MS. SUTTON: Judge,. just a few questions I think to ask

" Mrs., Moore.

 BY MS. SUTTON:

Q. Ms. Moore, and I know we have had questions directed

towards you about the 1mportance of having knowledge of

‘prlor sexual abuse 'in the home and whether or not that's

. important to the agency, but would that be important to DSS
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as a whole or would that be important to what you do in
particular? |

MR. SWERLING: I don't understand the question, that's
why I object. | '
Q. I guess it gets back to what exactly do you do within
the agency at DSS? o

A. In parﬁicular we investigate allegations of abuse and

. neglect in a foster hdme, group home, residential treatment

facility or a daycare facility. And within those

allegations -- within that iﬁvestigation we make referrals

. to law enforcement, we'make‘collateral contacts, or contacts

with doctors, with attorneys, with teachers, whoever we have
to make contacts with, and then we make a determination
based upon what we received during an investigation, either
we can unfound the'case_because we don't have a
prepondérance of the evidence or we can.indicate the case.
And once we indicate because —- we are a liﬁtle bit
different from family court,_onceiOHAN indigates the éaée

the name automatically goes for central registry for child

. abuse and neglect;"Wé go through a fair hearing process, we

don't go through the family court.

Q. When you go through your process once you get called
in, what is the end result of your process? |

A. To make a determination.

Q. A determination as to what?
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A. If the allegation is -- if we believe that they are
true or untrue. |

Q. Sovthis information is iﬁportant for you to make a
determination about allegations.

A. Yes.

Q. And based upon what you determine about the allegations
what ends up happening?

A. We make a finding.-

Q. I guess what I'm getting to is you get called in
concerning daycéreé; nursing homes and things of that nature
that are licensed in DSS.

A.. Yeah. Not necessarily nursing homes, we are the child
protective services.

Q. And once you make a determination of-the allegations
and findlthat they are founded, at that point is the daycare
or the home shut down and the license is withdrawn, is

that -- |

A.. And that goes to the -- it does happen but it doesn't
happen through my division. We have a child care licensing
division as well as a foster care licensing division and a
group home division. So once we do our findings we do
communicate with those separate entities and they can make a
determination as to whether they're going to shut the
daycare down -- énd they have to go by a statute as well --

if they are going to shut the daycare down or put them on a
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corrective action plan or they're going to shut the foster
home down because it is an'iﬁdicated case. But particularly
with indicated cases they:will ask them to cease and desist
with operating or they will take their license.

Q. So your investigation basically is important to I guess
at some point be passed on to that other part of DSS, the
licensing part as far as whether or not they're géing to do
something with the licenses of these entities.

A. Yes, very important. _

Q. And I guess -- and that's a process that y'all handled,
‘that whole process of as far as being passed on and
licensing and stuff, that's handled separately and subject
through DSS and that's a separé%e hearing process..

A. And throughout the inveStigation we will, talk to these
entities as well to let them know ——»because'Mré. Rhonda
Harris was with me during the initial face to face with

Mr. Williams so she was initially there with me and we

communicate through staffings gaining information, we

‘receive letters of what théy had plannedyto>do. So we are

- communicating throughout the case and after the case.

Q. The initial staffing sheet that was completed, that was
information that was'given to Ms. Rowles or by law
enforcement, the one that Mr. Swerling was referencing,

intake sheet.

A. I'm sorry, what was the question?
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Q. Was that information that's on that sheet given to you

Ms. Rowles or by the sheriff's department?
A. I can't release the name of the reporter.
Q. That information was given to you by the reporter.
A. Yes.

MS. SUTTON: I don't think i have any further
questions.

MR. SWERLING: Just one fbllowup.
BY MR. SWERLING:
Q. Let me just show you these questions, workers safety
assessment.
A. - Uh-huh.
Q. A2 and A7, they both also ask for information about
prior sexual assaults within the family and prior DSS
involvement. AZ2.
A. Right.
Q. And A7.
A. Again because we're looking at the daycare that's what
we are looking at so it's ﬁot talking about the family in
our instance. If it was a regular CPS report we will be
talking about the family but in this instance we would be
talking abbut Mr. and Mrs. Williams.
Q. So that's what that means?
A. Yeah.
Q. Is there a previous history of law enforcement

199
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1 involvement, family violence or spousal battering? And the
2 answer is no. It doesn't —-- it seems like if it was in the
3 family that would be relevant even if it didn't involve the °
4 daycare center.
5 A. I don't know how to explain it to you. r
6 Q. Well, it's a DSS form.
7 A. It is a DSS form but we have to use it towards OHAN, so
8 some things we do we have to look at a little bit
9 differently because we're not actually talking about the
10 family. Say if I did receive the information on the initial
11  report that.came out théy had had a previous investigatibh
12 or they had a previous -- I would check yes for the daycare
13 and not for, you know --
14 - Q. I see what you're saying. -
15 A.  Okay.
16 MR. SWERLING: Judge, that's all I have on that
17 particular issue. |
18 THE COURT: Based on what I have heard I would sustain
19 the objection to anymore questions along this line.
20. MR. SWERLING: Yes, sir,‘
21 THE COURT: I find that it's not relevant, the issue
22 that is trying to be elicited, and would not be relevant and
23 would be for prejudicial than proﬁative._
24 MR. SWERLING: And Judge, just so you know I was laying
25 a predicate for possibly later.

(e
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THE COURT: I understood.

MR. SWERLING: And I was not going to go further than
what I asked. |
| THE COURT: Are we ready for theljury to come_back?

(The jury returned to the courtroom.) |

THE'COURT: Welcome back, ladiés-and gentlémen. I
believe we are ready to iesume examination of the witness.
BY MR. SWERLING:
Q. Ms. Moore, actually just a couple of more areas. You
had an interview, a faée to face interview with
A. Yes, sir. .‘
Q. And that was over at the Great Falls Middle School.
A. Yes, sir.
Q. My understanding is she described an incident with you
where she was in the pool and as I understand whaﬁ she told
you he put his hand down her pants, not a bathing suit or
bikini but down her pants, correct?
A. Yes, that's what I wrote.
Q. And rubbed her vagina.

‘A, Yes.

Q. She didn't say anything at all about him inserting his

finger into her vagina in the pool.

A. I just have rubbing vagina.

Q. And then she also disclosed a night where she spent the
night at the Williams home with Mr. Williams and and
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that they slept in the same bed.

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And in that incident what she described.to you, and
correct me if I'm wrong for the jury's information, ﬁhat
while Mr. Williams may have thought she was asleep he stuck
his finger into her vagina and let it sit there for over aﬁ
hour, or at least an hour.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That's what she told you.

- A. Yes, sir.

Q. And also importantly she told you tha£ at the time
Mrs., Williams was home.

A. Yes, she did. ‘
Q. With any of these incidents.

A. I know of the f—Alet me see.--

Q. She only reported to you one incident of where he did

~put his finger into her vagina?
- A. That's what T have, yes, that's what she said.

" Q. And that particular incident she said he had his finger

in there for an hour.

A. Yes.

Q. And then you ihterviewed,—— or as I understand you let
her write out this other statement.

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And you have that in front of‘you? ‘ g
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'_A-. Yes.

Q. And actually in this particular statementvthat she
wrote it out there's no mention of digital penetration, is
there?

A. No, I don't see any mention.

Q. And also what I would like to ask you is that in that
handwritten statement that you give you she said after the
last time he touched her, and followed out the end -- that's
on the bottom one-fourth of the statement. What she wrote
there was, "I told my mom told me that he touched on
her. -I basically told‘everything he did to me," then dot,
dot, dot. Is that the way it's exactly written?

A. That's the way it's written.

Q. So she told her mom told me that he touched on

her. She did not -- let me ask you it this way, did
ever tell you that she was using -- that that information
was not true about but that she was using that
information to see how her mother would react?

A. No. I would have not told her that.

Q. And from what this says here I basically told her
everything he did to me; is that correct?

A.> That's what is written.

Q.  And it's in the same sehtencé, or it's actually in the
fbll'owing sentence where he said I told her —- I told my mom

told me he touched on her.

203
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A. That's what that says. |
Q. It's all part of that same thing, "I've then basically

told her everything he did to me," correct?

'A. That's what the statement was saying.

Q. Did anybody ever interview to find out the
validity of that or whether or not that was even true?
A. No, I did not.
Q. BAnd Mr. Williams denied the allegations that were being
made against him, the sexual allegations.
A. Yes, he did.

MR. SWERLING: That's all I have.

THE COURT: Any redirect, Solicitor?

MS. SUTTON: Just .a couple.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. SUTTON: |
Q. .Back to the time that you were in_the'Williams home and
talking to Mr. Williams. I know you wére asked by defense
counsel, Mike Williams stated that‘Aubréy had made an
allegation concerning him putting his penis between her
legs. | |
A, Yes. “ .
Q. And you ——.justlfor clarificatidn, at the time that

that was stated was that information that you had obtained

previously as.far as allegations against the daycare?

A. No. I hadn't had that information.
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J

Q. And at the time that that was made you hadn't spoken

with SN or @UNPAN is that correct?

A. No.
MR. SWERLING: I'm sorry, I couldn't hear the question.

'Q. You hadn't spoken with SSliEEN or @UEPEE that occurred

after you went to the Williams home; is that correct?
A. I went to the Williams home first, then I saw the
children in school.
MS. SUTTON: That's all of the questions I have.
RECROSS EXAMINATTION
BY MR. SWERLING:
Q; This was on the 16th, seven days after the kids stopped
coming to the daycare.
A. I don't have a calendar in front of me.
Q. But it was the 16.
A. Yeah. We received a report on the 15th and I made
initial contact on September 16th.
'~ MR. SWERLING: That's all. '
THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am, you may step down.
MS. SUTTON: Judge, can this witness be excused?
THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am, you may be excused from
your subpoena. ' | |
The witness, HEATHER MARIE SMITH, was first
duly sworn and testified as follows, on:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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- BY MS. SUTTON:
THE CLERK: State your name for the recofd.
THE WITNESS: My name is Heather Marie Smith.
Q. Good morning, Ms.:Smith. How are you doing?
A. Very well. | '
Q, Can you tell us where you are currently working?
A. I work for the Assessment Resource Center in Columbia}

South Carolina, it is the children's advocacy center.

Q. Bnd what do you do at this Assessment Resource Center
in Columbia, better known:as ARC? .

A, I coﬁduct.forensic eval;aﬁions'at'the request of law
enforcement and the department of social services to assess
for possible_child.maltreatment. |

. And how long have you worked with ARC?

I've been theré nine years.

And what is your job tiﬁie?

Forensic evaluator and-clinical services supervisor.

What does your job entail?

PO ¥ o PO

I conduct forensic interviews at the request of law
enforcement and depaitment of social .services, énd I also
coordinate treatment servicés for children and families that |
may need ciinical intervention. And I also provide training
for the state in forensic interview protocol, the training
is known as Child First.

Q. And in doing your job, what kind of educational
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background do you have?
A. I graduated with a masters degree in rehabilitation

counseling from the University of South Carolina through the
School of Medicine. I also have a certificate in graduate
studics in psychiatric rehabilitation, and I'm alco a
licensed‘professional counselor in the State of South
Carolina.

Q. And have you had courses in the field I guess of say a
forensic interviewer or a forensic evaluator?

A. I have. I have specialized traihing in forensic
interviewing protocol, that's nationally recognized and used
in our state known as RATAC. And I have also had extensiVe
training in using the protocol and child development and |
psychological dynamics of children, and I am now training in
that protocol for the state.-

Q. Are you a member of any professional affiliations?

A. I'm actually working with the national -- with a

| federal agency, National Center for Missing and Exploited

Children to develop a forensic interviewing protocol for

children who are victims of child trafficking.

Q. And how many intefviews have you conducted with

* children?

A. I don't know the exact number but it's over l 000.
Q. . Have you ever come to court to testify?

A. Yes, T have.-

207
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Q. Did you have an opportunity to do an interview with Ms.

in 20082

A. Yes, I did.. '

Q. When and where was that interview.conducted?

A, That forensic interview was conducted at the Assessment
and Resource Center, ARC, at the Children's Advocacy Center
on October the 3rd of 2008.

Q. . What type of questioning.techniques did you use to
interview By that I mean did you ask open-ended
questions, leading, what type of questioning?

A. Bs part of the forensic interviewing protocol that we
ére»traihing in and I now have trained other investigators
and interviewers to interview with, the protocol is designed

to reinforce and to have the importance of asking open-ended

‘questions and not asking leading or suggestive questions.

The purpose of a forensic interview is for fact finding and
so it's to gather information from investigators, for law
enforcement and for the department of social services to
conduct their investigation. And s0 it's very important
'that when we ask questions we try to ésk the most opeh—ended
questioné.that we can to just get the child to respond in a
narfati&e fashion. So we try not to use protocol, very
directive questions, but sometimes we have to for more

information. But we definitely stay away from leading or

~ suggestive questions because that WOuldn't'get us very
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accurate -- we want the most accurate information we can
get.

Q. When you interviewed on October 3rd of 2008, was
that interview recorded?

A. Yes, it was.

Q. And how was it recorded?

A. We record all of our forensic interviews onto a
computer and then we dub it onto a DVD, so it is video
recorded.

Q. And per a subpoena you previously supplied our office
with a copy of the recorded interview; 'is that cbrrect?

A. I did. ‘

MS. SUTTON: Judge, I don't know if you want to --

THE COURT: Once again, ladies and gentlemen, I need to
ask you to step back in tﬁe jury room, shouldn't be but
about five minutes, maybe six.

(The jury left the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Now then, Solicitor, it's my understanding

- you wish to offer the videotape as evidence.

MS. SUTTON: That's correct, Your Honor. At this time

the State would move to offer this videotape into evidence.

Judge, I think per the statute concerning the admissibility
of the out-of-court statements, that the statement -- she
testified that she took the statement and it was given in

response to an investigative interview of the child and that

209
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it was recorded audio and visually. The child in question,

Ms. SR is present and has already testified to

" some extent so sheé's available at the proceeding to be cross

examined by the defense counsel.

THE COURT: Did you ask the witness --and I don't
recall whether or not the account given by the child
contained a detailed account of the alleged offense -- did
you ask the witness that on the stand? I can't remember.

MS. SUTTON: Judge, I actﬁally_have not. T did not.

THE COURT: Wbuld you like to?

MR. SWERLING: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MS. SUTTON:

Q. Mrs. Smith, was the account tha£ was giveﬁ by '
Rowles in YOur interview that was taken, is that a detailed
account of the alleged offense that occurred against her?

A. Yes, it was.

Q. Approximately how long was the interview?

A. I want to say the running time was over -- a little bit
. over an hour but I did take a break during that time for |
approximately ten minutes.

Q. So she was able to specify in detail based -- upon your
knowledge and expertise she was able to specify in detail
the account of the sex -- the allegations that happened
against her. _ |

A. JShe did, she gave a detailed account.
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Q. Did you have any problems following her statement? Was
it coherent? A

A. She appeared to be developmentally on target for her
age, which is seven. I did not have any trouble
understanding her language. She was able to answer my
questions aﬁd appeared to comprehend them and I was able to
understand her answers.

Q. And her age at the time of the recdrding?

A. Was seven years old.

THE COURT: Mr. Swerling, did you wish to ask the
witness any questions concerning the issues related to the
admissibility of the tape? I call it a tape, it's not a
tape, is it? |

MS. SUTTON: I know, DVD/CD.

MR. SWERLING: Judge, it's a =-- nothing any more on

-this issue, Your Honor. I would after the issue here is

determined while the jury is out to save time I would like
to ask Ms. Smith some questions about the other issues that
I think I can raise.

THE COURT: 'Okay. I agree that we ought to do that
that‘wayi Now, let me ask you this: Do you have any
objections -- I understood you didn't have any questions but
do you have any objection to the State's motion to introduce

the DVD?
MR. SWERLING: Your Honor, I have thoroughly discussed
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this with Mr. Williams. It's obviously one of the strategic
decisions you make during a trial. I've explained to him
the pros and the cons of it and my theories and my thoughts,
and based on that we are not going to object to the video
being played. I did, as I said, communicate all of those
issues with Mr. Williams, I think he's prepared to tell the
Court that he concurs in that decision and so I think that's
where we are.

THE COURT: Thank.you, I understand. I have COnsidered.
the factors set forth.in section 17—234175 and find that
this meets the criteria set forth therein and find that it

also contains particularized guarantees of trustworthiness

‘and I'1l find it is admissible. Now, outside the presence

of the jury I'm going to permit defense counsel to ask
questions of this witness rélating to I suspect the other
incideht -

MR. SWERLING: That's correct.

THE COURT: -- that we've been ;eferring to. Do‘you

.haée.ahy specific objection to that, Solicitor?

MS. SUTTON: No objection, Your Honor. Well, let me
just put this on there -- and at this poiﬁt because I know
that defense counsel and I have talked about it and we 've
been back to talk to you briefly in chambers concerning it,
the State hasn't asked to have Mrs. Smith qualified as an
expert. I don't know.if,his questions are going to be
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related of her giving any type of opinion concerning the
type of interview that she gave. If notAwé would ask that
she be qualified before he --

MR. SWERLING: Well, first of all I think under the
Keller case there's no need to qualify her as ah expert and
I think that is what the Court was trying to say there is
maybe qualified too many people as experts. But the

‘questions I have really do not require an expertise, it

requiresrwhat she does and that's what it is, dr goes to
what she does.

THE COURT: In other words, if‘he doesn't ask her an
opinion she doesn't have to be an expert so I.guess we're
going to have to see where it goes.

BY MR. SWERLING:

Hey Ms. Smith.

Hi.

How are you doing?

Doing well.

. And this is going to be fairly brief, but prior to your
doing an interview you have, and I think in this case it was

Susan Rowles, fill out an ARC assessment form; is that

‘correct?

A. A caregiver —-

Q. A caregiver questionnaire, right. And the purpose of

that, I guess, is to give you enough information about the
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family unit of the child and so- that you can conduct an

interview and have that information in an interview.:

A. That's correct. It's to gather information about the

child’s family, their development; whether there are any
developmental issues or mental health issues that we may
need to take into consideration for the interview. We used
to conduct interviews of caregivers themselves and we tried
actually to streamline it so we could do more intérviewé;
This is kind of what we came back to just to gather some
background information.

Q. You said you have done like 1,000 interviews; is that
right? | 4

A. Yeah. _
Q. So you need as much information as you cén’get about
the child and the family so that you can conduct an

appropriatelinterview; is that correct?

A. Yes. So that we .can gather -- just in case there are

any rocks or barriers that we may need to address during an
interview,. _‘ |

Q. - Like social history of the family}

A, Yeah, educational history.

Q. BAny kind of sexual issues going on that would affect
the child. |

{

A. I'm not sure, I can't remember if it was on this

- particular form. But we do -- if there are any sexual .




W O J o U = W N =

NN N RN R R R R R R e s
O w® W N R O LW ® Yo W N B O

- 247
TESTIMONY OF HEATHER MARIE SMITH

acting out behaviors or any behaviors that a pafent or
caregiver might see that we're not going to see in an hour
or two hours.

Q. Right. And I notice on the form it asks has there ever
been -- it is question five and I'll show it to you ——-"Has
there ever been a child abuse investigation involving this
child or family before?“

A. Yes. We always -- we put that on the form so that in
case there have been past investigations we: can either
gather'the history on that, we may need to get incident
reports or we may'need fo get social summaries from the
department of social services. And then as far as being an

interviewer I'm going to want to know that in case the child

" has had a past history of abuse or any type of disclosure of

abuse so that I can then -- I would want to ask about that
in an interview.

Q. Okay. But I guess the way that the answer -- the way
the question is, "Has there ever been a child abuse
investigation "-- and by the way, that mean sexual abuse as
well. Child abuse means sexual abuse. .

A, All types.

Q. -- involving the child or the family.  So on the one

hand you're asking about the child but you also want to know

‘about the family unit as well.

A, That's correct.

215
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. And I notice that the answer was no, was checked no.

1 Q

2 A. Yes. . .

3 Q. And that was filled out by the mother of |
4 A, It was. |

5 Q. Susan Rowles.‘

6. A, Yes.,

7 Q. » Were you made aware of the fact that in 2004 Aubrey's

8 'sistér, was sexually abuéed in the home and
9 forced to give oral sex to her stepbrother, ?
10 A. I did not know the details until yesterday when

e
'—-\

Ms. Hickman asked me about that question, but I didn't know

12 any of the details at the time of my interview.
13 Q. Ms. Hickman asked you the question yesterday?
14 A. Yes. She just asked me about this particular number
15 five, the question, why did we ask it on the form, and I
i6 didn't know any details about any past abuse.
17 Q. Let me show you this incident report which is dated
18 April 12, 2004. Would you lock at it?
19 A. Certainly. -
201 (Break in proceedings.)
21 Q. Now, you've never seen that before; is. that correct?
- 22 A. . I have 'not. , |
23 MR. SWERLING: Your Honor, for"the .record it's Court's
24 Exhibit Number 2. |

N
o1

Q. . That report is inconsistent with the answer on number
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five, correct?

A. That's correct, involving the family.

Q. And with that_information you said that you had used
that -- or to the extent that you needed to you would use it
in the interview and also investigate possibilities, get
incident reports such as that before you dd the ARC |
interview. ' |

A. Particularly if it involved the child that I was
interviewing. In this case having -- even I h;dAkn0wn about
and seen that %t would not have changed any of my interview
techniques for my particular child that I was interviewing,
simply because it didn't involve her.

Q. Well, are you telling the Judge that if -- you were
aware of the fact that her sister who you also knew was
making a report in this case,

A. Yes. I had knowledge that She had talked to someone.
Q. Right. You're telling the Court that the fact that

SR who is just a few years older than SUIUPEE had been

forced to perform oral sex for an extended pericd of time on

her stépbrother, during the same period of time that the
allegations are being made here in the 2003 to 2004 period,
that that would not have been something you would want to
have pursued in the interview?

A. I would not have singled out that particular person to

ask about. In the forensic interviewing we also ask about
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alternative hypothesis so I would have, and did, ask [StE
has someone else ever done ahything to you in the same
manner that you are reporting someone else did of that type

of questidﬁs; So we always ask about‘other possible people,

- it would not have caused me to single out that, I think his

name was Brother 3 .

Q. Not to single that individual out, but also to point
out to the incident, that did she observe it, that would be
1mportant for you. _ |

A. I would have asked that. She would: have went —- I Qant
to make sure I'm getting the years correct, but ehe would

have been two or three at the time.

Q. Three to four years old.

A. Okay;

Q. Which is when the allegations started here according to

. the interview she said it was at three or four.

A. I may have added that question.

:Q.~' Because that would have been important to as far as

your interview as to whether or not the child saw other
sexual activity.
A. I would most likely have asked had she witnessed

something.

~ Q. The other pos31blllty that you would want to know I am

sure since you are in this field is whether or not she and

her sister ever discussed that earlier incident where she
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would have gotten some knowledge of sexual activity and
terminology from her sister regarding that incident.

A. Again,. it's a possibility. Because she would have been
three or four during that time. You have to be very careful
because a child encodes_memory at the age‘it happens, so for

me to ask a question of her, something she would have seen

at ége three or four she may not even have understood, you

know. So I would -~ and again, we're limited to time in an
interview so ,that would'han been something I would have"
asked at the very end if I had the time.

Q. Well, I'm talking‘about two different issues, one is

whether or not she observed scmething. Because actually you

‘want to know whether or not she has a history of sexual --

or knowledge of sexual activity apart from what she's
describing; isn't £hat true? ' |

A. Tha£ is a part of forensic interviews.

Q. And so if she observed sexual activity or -- if she
observed sexual activity that wbuld be important to go in -
to. |

A. Yes, it would. ‘

Q. Also what would have been important is if it happened
to her, because if it is happening to one of the other
siblings in the house it would have been important to know
whether or not it happened to her.

A, Correct, which is why we'always ask for someone else.
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We don't want to just focus on the allegation that we get

‘from the incident report or from the referring agency,

" that's why we always want to do it. We definitely want to

ask about peripherals and has.something else happened to you

and have you ever seen something happen to someone else.

'Q.  But you didn't have that information to go ahead and

develop those questions.

A. No, I did not. -

Q. And at the end of the interview you asked her whether
or not she has béen'touched}by anybody else, but if you
would have had information that there waé a perpetrator in

the house who had knowingly. -- we know sexually assaulted

JChild I | R her sister, who is also making the report you

could havé'probed that a little bit further.

A. I could have, yes.

Q. Definitely pfobed that a little bit further. And had
you known about that information in the third part of what I
was asking you before is whether or not she and her sister

had discussed or the family had discussed

sexual activity with [SHICEEN and whether or not it happened
to (HEFEN o5 well.

A. I would have followed-up on. that.

Q. But not having that information you could not do that.

A, Correct.

0. Nobody is faulting you, you just didn't have the
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information.

MR. SWERLING: Your Honor, that would be all that I
would --

THE COURT: All right. Any other questions you wish to
ask in this regard?

MS. SUTTON: Yes, sir, Your Honor.
BY MS. SUTTON:
Q. In determining what things you're going to ask a
child -- let me back up. I know you stated earlier ﬁhat
your interviewing techniques are those of leading questions
because you want to get a narrative from the child; is that
correct?
A. Open-ended questions, non-leading. »
Q. And one thing about the interview is it's important to
not be suggestive.
A. That's correct.
Q. - And even if you had knowledge that there may have been
some other sexual activities that have occurred in the home
involving a sibling of the child that you are interviewing,
would you have asked anything specific concerning that?

A. I would not have asked specifically whether she had

\been touched by a specific person. I may have asked just a

general question about whether she has witnessed anyone in

- her family being touched inappropriately, I may have asked a

question such as that. But again, that's why we ask -- we
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often don't have all of the information on.the child or a
family when we do our interviews, we often don't get all of
the information from the past history. So that is why we
include questions about other people, other acts that may
have happened to them that don't inVolve the particular
allegation that we are dealing with when the child comes to
us. So we always do include have you seen something
inappropriate happen to someone in a general way, that's‘why
we include that because we often don't get the background
history. v
Q. And in your questioning of this child, and I think\I
answered this question for Mr. Swerling, you stated you
asked has anybody else touched_ her inappropriately?
A. Yes, I did. ¢
Q. And you felt that that type of questioning would
encompass or include --

MR. SWERLING: .Objeétion, Your Honor. The solicitor is
actually telling her what the answer would be, leading.

THE COURT: All right. Sustained.
Q. What was the purpose of you asking that open-ended
question to her? | _
A. Just again; we want to ask the child whether or not
something else may have happened to them that we would then
explore if they said yes. I mean, if Sl had answered

yes to_that question I would have followed up with -- I may
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have even had her back for another forensic interview if
needed. Again, children can only be interviewed for so long
before they get tired, but if she had confirmed or answered
in the affirmative I would have done another evaluation just
about that affirmation if she would have said yes.

Q. And because this is in-camera, and I know this issue is
not before the Court, did -- in your interview with her did
she indicate how she had any type of sexual knowledge of how
things happened sexually, I guess? I know that sounds kind
of crazy, but what was the source of her -~ in her interview
from what she told you in response to your questioning, what
was the source of her sexual knowledge?

A. I want to make sure I'm not —— I want to make sure I
answer that correctly. She -- the details and the
description of what she told me about incidents that
occurred to her body she told me in -- with idiosyncratic
detail, she was very consistent with it all had to do with
one person. She did not'have other people that she named or
described do things to her, it all centered around one
person. It was based in sensofy details, she was able to
give a sequential narrative account-of what happened. Did
that ahswer what you were asking? |

Q. Yes, ma'am. Just clarifying what you said, basically
what you asked her all centered around one person.

A. Yes, it did.

223
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Q. And in response to your open-ended question about

whether anybody else, it was no, I guess.
A. She denied it.

MS. SUTTON: That's all of the questions.

THE COURT: Any follow-up? '
BY MR. SWERLING:
Q. Ms. Smith, I guess the answérs to my questions are
still the same; though, had you had that information you
would have been able to develop some questions that you were
not able to develop that you would have wanted to deveiop to
find out that information.
A, I would have developed and explored that fufther if I
had known or —-
Q. Whether she saw anything -- without specific names but
situations, whether she saw something, whether anything was
done to her and whether or not she talked about it with her
sister or anybody in the family.
A. I would have asked her the questions.

MR. SWERLING: That's what I have, Judge.

THE COURT: And so where are we?

MR. SWERLING: Well, Judge, I think at this point T
submit that the issue is relevant, that the.fbrm was not

answered accurately. There's no information on the form

that gives Ms. Smith, who is trying to conduct an interview

of the child, gives her any information about any other
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family issues. And fhe form clearly_says has there e?er
been child abuse investigationé involving this child or
family before. We know from the incident report and the
offer of proof that clearly they have, and the information

would have been important for Ms. Smith because it could

have —- and she would have -- said she would have develbped .

questions ébout whether the child ever observed anything in
2003, 2004, whether ever done anything to her,
and whether or not there had been any discussions about that
kind of sexual activity. The critical issue here, Judge, is
that ‘is the same period she describes as you heafd‘on the
stand that this started wheh she was three or four years
old, that'svalsd in the interview.' That is the same period
of time tﬁat the ailegation was made on April 14th-of 2004,
that is when the kids were at the Williams daycare center,
she was born in the year 2000 sb it overlaps completely the
situation that is in that incident report. And so therefore
I do think it becomés relevant as far as impeachment and
what this youﬁg lady could have been able to use in that
particular interview to develop particularly -- well, a lot
of things, but one of the things is the source of knowledge
of her -- any knowledge she may have had as to sexual
activity, and this young lady here, Ms. Smith, was never
given that opportunity to go ahead and develop those

questions. So I believe it becomes relevant and it is

225
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relevant now and we should be allowed to -- and Judge, I
will juét tell you what I propose, what I would propose is
try to —% the State and I —-- it would be a stipulation.
There was a réport made inv2004, it was investigated, it was
determined to be accurate and we don't have £6 go into any

great détail, it is just and the case was closed because the

. family was going to handle it. I'm not intending to go into

the facts,'the gory details, it‘s'just the event itsélf.

THE COURT: Solicitor?

MS. SUTTCN: Your Honor, I think in response to-
Mr. Swerling's_questions.and argumenﬁs he's putting forth is
getting around and trying to circumvent the Rape Shield
Statute éhd gettiﬁg_into'whether or noﬁ this particular

child, which is SHGPAN had any type of sexual knowledge. I

think we're kind of just trying to overlap and -- trying to

say that may have vicariously gotten some information
from -- or sexual knc;wledge information from maybe.

I think in response to .the questions that I've asked

Ms. Smith - let me back up. First of all in developing the
quéstions just by nature of what she's testified'to she
can't ask spécific leading questions. So the information

concerning [SaMUloK would have never came out, I

~think, even in the development of her questions in

particular because then that would have been suggestive and

would have tainted the interview process. She's already
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stated -- Mrs. Smith already stated that she's asked the --
whether or not anybody else had touched you
inappropriately and that question was asked and answered by
She also -- Ms. Smith also stated that based upon
what she did ask SRR which is basically the open—enaed
questions to get a narrative, that she stated all of her --
based upon what she was stating that ali of her sexual
knowledge came from one person and -~ that came from one
person. Even iﬁ the development of questions I don't think
it would have gotten into anything specific because that
would have tainted the whole interview process, and then
even by Ms. Smith's festimony she stated -- at oné point she
stated she may have developed questions -- that even if she
developed questions she didn't know if she would have gotten
to them because of the length of the interview. Judge, the
State believes and the State submits that this information
coming in is actually once again just a back door way to get
around the ‘Rape Shield issue, and also to -- in all of this
I think the jury would be more confused about the issues
that are being put forth because we're actually talking
about two different children. We're not talking about

who was actually the person that was sexually
assaulted, she was not interviewed by Mrs. Smith, we're
talking about I think the defense counsel wants to

get that in as far as where she got her sexual knowledge,
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and based upon the responses that was given by Ms. Smith en
the stand she basically said elaborated ‘that she got
all of her sexual knowledge from. that one person about these
events.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, Solicitor.

MS. SUTTON: So the State will object to that line of
questiening,'that even if it's relevant'that it would be
highly prejudicial and that it would be confusing to the
jury. ‘ ‘

MR. SWERLING: Judge, I think -- here is what I think,
I think the Rape Shield Statute protects questions

concerning chastity, we're not going into that. It's

clearly -- we are not tryihg to impugh‘the character in the
chastity of Child | What we' re trying to do is what

the cases have said we can do is use it for 1mpeachment
purposes, or to show source of knowledge. And it's not just

limited to those things, if it's for a:purpose other than

- attacking the character of that particular victim then it is

admissible. And so what I'm saying here is -~ and I think
Ms. Smith was very candid about it -- this information would .

have been important to her, she would have developed

questions about it even though it happened to [QECENN it

happened in the family unit, that's what the purpose of that
question is on the form, it can't be any other reason. It

gives this person here an opportunity to know about the
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child and about the family, so it is relevant. I believe it
is not a violation of the Rape Shield Statute, I think it

falls within the exclusion or the exception to the Rape

Shield Statute and it should be admitted. ©2And it's

‘certainly -- the way I propose to-do it under 403, the

prejudicial affect would not outweigh the probative value.
The whole purpose of it}wéuld be to show that Ms. Smith
could have more information where‘she could have pursued
whether she heard or saw anything in‘conversatioh or more
focused on whether or not -- instead of just a denial on her
part that nobody else touched her, with that information she
would have been able to say, "What about in your home, for
-example, what about several years ago?" So I don't see the
prejudice outweighs the probative value and I would suggest
to the Courﬁ it should be admitted.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Swerling, I have reviewed

229

Groversteen once again and I disagree with you. I find that

the probative would be outweighed by the prejudicial affect.
The primary reason is that as I read Groversteen the
exception to the Rape Shield'Statute has to do with a.

similar conduct'anditherefore'be the basis for knowledge for

"a child explaining something that they might not otherwise

be able to discuss and I don't see that this is sufficiently
close enough for the Court to permit it so I'll deny your

motion.
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MR. SWERLING: Judge, if I can -- under the McElroy
case, a lot of these questions about consistency and whether
or not about the child telling the truth and other pbssible
reasons and what we're looking to see and we're looking to

see if it adds up, all of those have been banned_by MCElroy.

.I think she can get up here and say this is what the

interview was and go ahead and play the video and that's it.
I don't think she can be askéd»any questions about whether
the child was consistent or gave a compelling disclosure or
what she was looking for isﬂﬁust to. tell whether the child
was telling the truth or not and»the‘case says thétr

MS. SUTTON: ©Oh Judge -- and the State doesn't disagree

_with Mr. Swerling.

THE COURT: So we're good.

(A break was taken.)‘ ' _

THE COURT: Solicitor, are we ready for the jury?

MS. SUTTON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: . And Mr. Swerling?v

MR. SWERLiNG: Ready. .

THE COURT:. All right. Let's bring the jury in.

MS. SUTTON: Judge, Ms. is in the
courtroom and I think Mr. Swerling has some objection to
that.

MR. SWERLING: - I do, she is sequestered.

(The jury returned to the courtroom.)
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THE COURT: I believe we are ready to resume with the
examination of the witness. Solicitor?

MS. SUTTON: Yes, sir, Your Honor.
BY MS. SUTTON: | |
Q. Just a couple of more qﬁestions,~Ms. Smith. I think I
was previously asking you whether or not you had an
opportunity to interview Ms.
A, I did.
Q. And that your interview'was recorded.
A. It was video recorded.
Q. And during the course of your interview with Mrs. (sic)
Rowles did the ~- was the -- did give you details
of == a detail account of what had happened to her?

A. She did.

Q. ~ Were you able to understand, I guess, what she said
happened to her?

A. Yes.

-Q. And I'm going to show you a copy of a DVD that I'

going to mark as State s Exhibit Number 1 rlght now. And.
ask if you recognize it.
. A. Yes, I do.

Q.  And what is this State's Exhibit Number 1?

A. It's the copy of thé video of the forensic interview of
|

0. From October 3rd of 2008?
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A. Uh-huh. |
MS. SUTTON: - Your Homor, at this time the State moves

: to have this video introduced into evidence.

THE COURT: All right. You may proceed.

MS. SUTTON: Judge, at this time wenwish to ﬁublish or
pléy the taped interview. ' |

MR. SWERLING: Can we just have a side bar for just one

second?

(A bench conference was held.)

(The DVD was marked as State's 1.)

THE COURT: As you probably gathered yoﬁ;re getting
ready to watch the video that we have been referring to,

it's about 40 minutes.  They told me at some point in time

it will be stopped and festarted which means there are

portions of the tape that won't be shown.to you and I will
tell you that that portion of the tape is unrelated and has
nothing to do with this case. o

(At this time the DVD was played.)

'MS.TSUTTON: Judge, I don't have any other questidns.

THE COURT: Thank you. Cross examination?

MR. SWERLING: No questions, Your Honor.

- THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am, you may step down. And

Solicitor, do you have another witness before lunch?

(A bench conference was held.)

' THE COURT: Solicitor, did you indicate you have no
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‘more witnesses?

MS. SUTTON: Your Henor, that is correct, we have no
other witnesses and at this point the State rests.

THE COURT: Which brings us a good time to take a
lunch, ladies and gentlemen, ask you to come back at 2:00.
We have some work to do here. Don't talk to anybody about
the case, don't let anybody talk to you about the case.
Hopefully we will be feady to go at 2:00, or y'all gather in
the jury room at 2:00. See you then.

(The jury left the courtroom.)- |

THE COURT: Why don't we go to lunch, ladies and
gentlemen, and hear motions when we come back, ten after
1:007

(A lunch break was taken.)

THE COURT: State rests. Does the defense have any

motions?

MR. SWERLING: Yes, sir. Judge, as I understand it we -

have -— I guess I'll just read them into the record, the
indictment numbers. 2008-GS-20-500 is an indictment for
criminal séxual conduct with a minor First degree. We would
move for a directed verdict on the grounds that the State
has failed‘to prove sufficient eVidence to establish beyond
a reasonable doubt that Mr. Williams committed that offense
during the time period alleged on the victim alleged. And

2008-GS-20~501, same charge with respect to

233.
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1 it would be the same position we would have with respect for ‘,
2 that and just to .incorporate that. 2008-GS-20-502,
3 indictment for committing a lewd act upon a child during the
.4 time frame alleged, this is with regards to .
5 And lewd act -- this is 2008-GS-20-503, another i_ndictmeﬁt
6 for committing a lewd act on a child, that would be
B B 2008-GS-20-504, committing a lewd act upon a child,
s SEEENIIE 2008-Gs-20-505, committing a lewd act on a
9 child, that would be again during the time
10 period alleged. And the 2008-GS-20-506 -- these are all
11 amended indictments, Your Honor -- this would be a lewd act
12 on ~during the time period alleged. As to all
13 of the lewd act charges we would ask the Court to direct a
14 wverdict of acquittal. The State has failed to offer
15 evidence beyond a reasonable doubt -- that the jury could
16 find beyond a reésonable doubt that the defendant committed
17 the crime, or failed to offer sufficient evidence as to each
18 and every element of the crimes. That would be it, Your
19 Honor. I think that's all of the indictments, I just wanted
20 to mﬁake- sure I didn't miss one, but I believe that is all of
21 them.
22 THE COURT: Seven indictments? Five of lewd and two
23_ criminal sexual conduct first?
24 MR. SWERLING: That is correct.
25 - THE COURT: And I think: you mentioned each one.
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. MR. SWERLING: I think I did, Judge.
" THE COURT: Anything else regarding the motions?

MR. SWERLING: No. I just ask you to direct a verdict
of acquittal as to each one of those indictments.

THE COURT: . I understand the motions. I think there is
sufficient evidence for the jury to conclude beyond a
reasonable doubt that the defendant is guilty of each of the
charges. TIt's up to the jury to determine whether they
believe the testimony of the witnesses that have been
offeréd, so I'l1 deny the motions. Any other motions?

MR. SWERLING: Not at this time, Your Honor.

(Break in proceedings.)

(The defendant was sworn.)

THE COURT: You are Mr. Michael D. Williams?

THE DEFENDANT: ‘I am, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Williams, at this time I'm going to
explain to‘you certain of your rights and I need to tell you
that if at anytime you don't understand anything I'm saying
or need further explanation, please stop me, interrupt me
and let me know. As.you know I'm sure we have now reached
the stage in the trial where you ﬁave the right to pfesent
your defense, and I need to tell you also you have the right

to claim the protections given to you by the 5th Amendment

" to the Constitution of the United States of America which

states in part as follows: No person shall be compelled in

235
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State ready to receive the jury (sic)?
MS. SUTTON:  Yes, sir, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Defense? |
MR. SWERLING: Yes, sir.

" THE COURT: Let me make~juét a statement to the entire
courtroom. Of oourse, nobody knows,what the verdict is
going to be in a moment, but apparently the jury has reached
a verdict. There is people in the:courtroom.that could be

very unhappy, I just want to make sure there are no

outbursts. Everybody control your emotions and let's just

hear what the jury has to say.

(The jury returned to the courtroom )

THE COURT: Welcome back, ladles and gentlemen. Let me
ask our foreperson, the bailiff 1ndlcates she believes that
the jury has reached a verdict in the case; is that correct?

THE JUROR: It is, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: Is there a -- were there verdicts reached
on each of the indictments?

THE JUROR: Yes, sir, there was. 4

THE COURT: Were the verdicts on each of the
indictments a unanimous verdict, meaning all 12 of you
agréed? |

THE JUROR: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Did you on behalf of the jury circle the

appfopriate verdicts on each of the indictments?
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THE JUROR: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And sign your name?

THE JUROR: Yes, sir. |

THE COURT: Would you please pass the verdict forms

forward? And I will ask our clerk if she will please

pubiish the verdict forms. Madam Clerk?

THE CLERK: State of South Carolina versus Michael D.
Williams, 2008-GS-20-501. We, the jury, as to indictment
2008-GS-20-501, criminal sexual conduct with a minor first

degree regarding the victim Sl , unanimously find

_the defendant, Michael D. Williams, guilty. 2008-GS-20-503,

State vs. Michael D. Williams, we the jury as to indictment

'2008-GS-20-503, regarding the victimSUCNENEEE -

unanimously find the defendant, Michael D. Williams, guilty.
2008-GS-20-502, State of-Soﬁth Carolina versus Michael D.
Williams, we the jury as to indictment 2008-GS-20-502

‘regarding the victim, [GHEE unanimously find the
defendant, Michael D. Williams, quilty. State of South-

Carolina vs. Michael D. Williams, 2008-GS-20-500, we the
jury as to indictment 2008-GS-20-500 for criminal séxual
conduct with a minor degree (sic) regarding victim
Rowies unanimously find the defendant, Michael Williams,
guilty. State of South Carolina vs. Michaél Williams,
2008-GS-20-504, we the jury as to indictment 2008-GS-20-504

regarding the victim SHEE unanimously £ind the
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defendant, Michael Williams, guilty. 2008-GS-20-505, State
of South Carolina vs. Michael D. Wiliiams, we the jury as to
indictment 2008-GS-20-505 regarding the victim .
Rowles, unanimously find the defendant, Michael D. Williams,
guilty. 2008-GS-20-506, State of South Carolina vs. Michael
D. Williams, we the jury as to indictment 2008-GS-20-506
regarding the victim, unanimously find the
defendant, Michael D. Williams, guilty. These wefe all
signed by the foreperson Mark Taylor, and it was dated
Ju1y'11; 2012. Ladies and gentlemen, if this was your

verdict and still now your verdict please signify by raising

your right hand. Let the record reflect that all jurors
raised their right hand, the verdict stands as read.

THE COURT: Thank you, Madam Clerk. Anything from the

defense?

MR. SWERLING: Your Honor, we would request polling.

THE. CLERK: Ruchelle Gee, if this was your verdict and
still now your verdict please signify by saying yes.

THE JURCR: Yes. | R

THE CLERK: Linda McCants, Was-thisAyour verdict and
still now your verdict?

THE JUROR: Yes.

THE CLERK: Lisa Hollis, was'this your verdict and
still now your verdict? |

THE JUROR: Yes.
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- THE JUROR: Yes,
THE CLERK: And still now your verdict.
THE JUROR: Yes.
THE CLERK: Joéeph Benjamin, was this -your verdict?
THE JURCR:.- Yes.
THE CLERK: And still now your verdict?
THE JUROR: Yes.
THE CLERK: Lawrenée Boyd, was this your verdict?
THE JUROR: Yes. | |
THE CLERK: And‘sﬁill now your verdict?
THE JUROR: Yes.
THE CLERK: Thank you. Let the record reflect all
jurors still have the same verdict.
THE COURT: Anything else before the jury is
dischargéd?
MR. SWERLING: No, Your Honor. A
MS. SUTTON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.
(The jury was dismissed.)
THE COURT: Any other matters for the Court to
consider, any other motions? )

- MR. SWERLING: Judge, we would, of course, move for a
new trial based on the arguments'that were made at the end
of the Stéte's case and at the end of the defense case,
renewing all of those issues. And also my objections that

were'made during the course of the trial that were ruled
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1 adversely to us, we wOuld renew those and the motions for a
2 new trial. A
3 THE COURT: I understand the motions but I can't find
4 any reason to set aside the verdict of the jury and would
5 deny the motions.
6 MR. SWERLING: Judge, in addition so I know -- one of
7 the things that concerns me is there were seven indictments
8 and they were out I think about an hour and 15 minutes |
9 approximately, I just say there seems to be no way that the
10 jury could have adequately thoroughly covered all seven
11 indictmenté’within that one hour and 15 minute period, so I
12 do move for a new trial based on that as well. It was
13 not -- or the:e could not have been careful deliberations
14 given to each and every one of those charges.
15 THE COURT: I also understand that motion and will deny
16 that. Any other motions? | |
17 MR SWERLING: Not at this time.
18 THE COURT: Anything from the State?
19 MS. SUTTON: Nothing at this time from the State, Your
20 Honor. |
21 THE COURT: And is there any reason that the Court
22 canﬁot go ahead with the sentencing in the case?
23 MR. SWERLING:l Can I --
24 THE COURT: Sure. _
25 (Break in prbceedings.)
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SENTENCING HEARING |

Squad, medic of tﬁe year in 1997. He was on the National
Registry for Paramedics in the South Carolina registry as
well. Judge, he has had obviously an exemplary‘background.
And I know the allégations arevbbviously serious, the jury
Vhas spoken, I as a lawyer must accept the verdict as it is
for right now and Ilknow-Your Honor has to accept the
verdict as it is for right now. But I would ask Your Honor
in light of this man's background; I would ask you to
consider the minimum sentence in the case as being -- a
sentence greater than that would not be appropriate.

THE COURTE As I understand it as we said a moment ago,
it's a mandatory minimum of 25 yéars at 85 percent, so
whatever séntence he received he wbuld be required to serve
at least 85 percent befofe he would be eligible'fof parole?

MR. SWERLING: Or released.

THE COURT: Or released on supervision. Mr. Williams,

anything you wanted to say?

THE DEFENDANT: No,vsir. My life is over with as it
is, my concern right ndw is my wife. She has a bad‘heaft
conditidn, she's a bad diabetic, she's going blind{ she
needs surgery but we don't have‘the funds to éet that.

THE COURT: Mr. Williams, as you heard your attorney
say the jury has spoken in this case, the law does not

permit me to comment on my personal opinion about the

. verdict of the jury.
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SENTENCING HEARING

'THE DEFENDANT: I understand.
~ THE COURT: I'm not permitted to say whether I'agree:or
diéagree with thé jury's verdict. The legislature has '
determined that I cannot sentence you to any less than 25

years on the criminal sexual conduct first degree cases,

- which T am going to do. I'mlgding to sentence you on each

of those charges to 25 years:. On the other remaining five
charges, lewd abt, sentence you to 15 years on each of
those. All sentences will be concurrent, credit for any
time served that you might héve had.

MR. SWERLING:" He was in jail approximately four

months, Your Honor, we -- obviously those dates would be

recorded at the jail.

THE COURT: .The sex offender registry I think is
mandatory.

MR. SWERLING: Yes.

THE COURT: Doesn't have anything to do with this

. Court. Central registry of child abuse and neglect is also

mandatory. Anything else from the State? Anything else
from the defense? L |
MS. SUTTON: . Noﬁhing else froﬁ the State; Your Honor;
MR. SWERLING: No, sir.

(End of trial proceedings.)
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. > AMENDED .
== — DOCKET NO. 2008-GS-20-500
WITNESSES
Boney - FCSO '
o The State of South Carolina
o\
County of Fairfield
.COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
» MAY TERM 2012
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA \,
K310479 (DOA-10-09-08) :
‘ : THE STATE
vs.
ACTION OF GRAND JURY

Michael D. Williams

Foreperson of Grand J

VERDICT
Indictment for
Criminal Sexual Conduct with a Minor.
_ : First Degree
Foreperson of Petit Jury ‘
Date: ’

SC Code: § 16-3-655(A) (1), (C) (1)
~ CDR Code: 0385
Class: Felony Exempt
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'STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) FS INDICTMENT
!

w-/'

: )
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )

At a Court of GeneraI}Sessions, convened ‘tﬁ May 29, 2012, the Grand Jurors of

Fairfield County present upon their oath:

CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT WITH'A MINOR FIRST DEGREE
That Mlchael D. Wllllams did in Fairfield Colnty, between 2004 - 2008, éngage in
sexual battery with SR 2 minor less than 11 years of age, in violation of
Section 16-3—655(A)(1), (C)(1) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina.

-

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary’ té' the statute in such case

made and provided. : ‘bh - E :-\_

Douglas A. Barfield, Jr., SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES
Boney - FCSO

>ave.,

AMENDED
DOCKET NO. 2008-GS-20-501

The State of South Carolina

County of Fairfield

st

eem—

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

MAY TERM 2012
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA
K310480 (DOA-10-09-08)
THE STATE
—e. VS.
ACTION OF GRAND JURY . I
Michael D. Williams
Foreperson of Grand Jury, T
Date: a /
VERDICT
"Indictment for
Criminal Sexual Conduct with a Minor
Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

First Degree

SC Code: § 16-3-655(A) (1), (C) (1)
CDR Code: 0386
Class: Felony Exempt
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) . ] . INDICTMENT

COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )

i

At.a Court of General Sessnons convened o? May 29 2012 the Grand Jurors of

Fa:rf' eld County present upon thexr oath:

CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT WlTl-i ﬁ* MINOR FIRST DEGREE
That Michael D. Williams did in Fairfield County, between 2004 - 2007, engage in
sexual battery with a minor less than 11 years of age, in violation of
Section 16-3-655(A)(1), (C)X1) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina.

Against the peace and dignity of the Stégé,.._,ahc_i' contrafy to the statute in such case

made and provided. - @.%

Douglas A. Barfieid, Jr,, SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES
Boney-FCSO

Die,

AMENDED
DOCKET NO. 2008-GS-20-502

The State of South Carolina
County of Fairfield

e —pmtrass

e ——————

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

MAY TERM 2012

K310481 (DOA-10-09-08)

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

Foreperson of Grand Ju
Date:

VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

THE STATE
vs.

Michael D. Williams

Indictment for
Committing a Lewd Act Upon a Child
SC Code: § 16-15-140

CDR Cade: 2468
Class: Felony, D

er—————r
e —_

ht 2 d bl AvH U0




:...g-'c

A
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) | Fﬁ INDICTMENT
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD ) -

.At a Court of General Sessions, conveﬁed o May 29, 2012, the Grand Jurors of

Falrﬂeld County present upon thelr oath: 4 1 |
COMMITTING A A LEWD ACT%JPON A CHILD

That Michael D. Williams, a person over the age of fourteen (14) did in Fairfield

County between 2004-2008, willfully and unlawfully commit a lewd- or lascivious act
upon or with thé body, or any part or member theréof, of a child under the age of sixteen
(16) years, to wit: did touch the victim, on her vagina under her clothing,
with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust or passions or sexual
desire. of himself or of said child, in violation of §16-15-140, Code of Laws of South
Carolina, (1976), as amended. ‘

LR

Against the peace and dignity of the St'_.a:fé}-"éihg‘qdnt'r;ary to the statute in such case

made and provided.

Douglas A. Barfield, Jr., SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES
Boney-FCSO

| Douc.

AMENDED
DOCKET NO. 2008-GS-20-503

The State of South Carolina
County of Fairfield

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

MAY TERM 2012 °
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA __ —
K310482 (DOA-10-09-08) :
' THE STATE
i . \,sT v
CTION OF .
ACTION OF GRAND JURY Michae! D. Williams

Aledp By

Foreparson of Grand Jury .
Date: '

'VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

Indictment for

Committing a Lewd Act Upon a Child

SC Code: § 18-16-140
CDR Code: 2468 -
Class: Felony, D

|

hE 2 d bT W TN
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- B
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 3 INDICTMENT

)
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD - - )

ki

ottt P

: » . i
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on May 28, 2012, the Grand Jurors of
. .[- .
Fairfield County present upon their oath: o

COMMITTING A LEWD ACT UPON A CHILD
That Michael D. Wiliiams, a person over the age of fourteen (14) did in Fairfield
County between 2004-2008, willfully and unlawfully commit a lewd or lascivious act

upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, of a child under the age of sixteen
(16) years, to wit: while in the swimming pool, the defendant did touch the victim, Bkl

" on her vagina under her clothing, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or

gratifying the lust or passions or sexual desire of himself or of said child, in violation of
§16-15-140, Code of Laws of South Carolina, (1976), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of iﬁé‘ZS’.tate.' and contrary to the ‘statute in such case

Douglas A. Barfield, Jr., SOLICITOR

made and provided,
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' AMENDED
DOCKET'NO. 2008-GS-20-504
- WITNESSES .
Boney-FCSO
Dot ~ The State of South Carolina
: ) Coeer .

County of Fairfield

- COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

MAY TERM 2012
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA
_K310483(DOA-10-09-08)
: THE STATE
—— vs.

ACTION OF GRAND JURY
_ ' Michael D. Williams

Foreperson of Grand Jury / /’
Date:

i|

VERDICT

Indictment for

Committing a Lewd Act Upon a Child

Foreperson of Petit Jury

Date:

SC Code: § 16-15-140
CDR Code: 2468
Class: Felony, D

%

e
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

INDICTMENT

. ..‘..-_/.‘
- oE T

COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )
At a Court of General Sessions, convened’:dn May 29, 2012, the Grand Jurors of

Fairfleld County present upon their oath: i
1

COMMITTING A LEWD ACT:UPON A CHILD
That Michael D. V\ﬁlhams a person over the age of fourteen (14) did in Falrfeld
County between 2004 and 2008, willfuily and unlawfully commit a lewd or lascivious act
. upon or with the body, or any paft or member thereof, of a child under the age of sixteen
(16) years, to wit: did place his penis on the leg of the victim, with the
intent of arousmg, appealing to, or gratifying the lust or passions or sexual desire of

himself or of said child, in vnolatlon of §16-15-140, Code of Laws of South Carolina,
{19786), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and coﬁtr'a':ry to .ghe.é't'a_itﬁf‘e-in such case

rorgeny

Douglas A. Barfield, Jr., SOLICITOR

made and provided.
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==

WITNESSES
Boney-FCSO '

Duue.

AMENDED
DOCKET NO. -2008-GS-20-505

The State of South Carolina
" County of Fairfield

e

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS -

MAY TERM 2012

K310484 (DOA-10-09-08)

—

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

Foreperson of Grand JuryWJ
Date: :

VERDICT

e a—————pe

THE STATE
vs. .

Michael D. Williams

(l

—

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

Indictment for

Committing a Lewd Act Upon a Child

SC Code: § 16-15-140
CDR Code: 2468
Class: Felony, D

ngdd bl ue -
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made and provided.

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

"‘i, INDICTMENT
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD ) *
, | 3
¥

At a Court of General Sessions, convened [ - May 29, .2012. the Grand Jurors of

Fairfield County present upon their oath: _ :%

' COMMITTING A LEWD ACT UPON A CHILD
" That Michael D. Williams, a person over tﬁe‘_age of fourteen (14) did in Fairfield
County between 2004 and 2008, willfully and unla\ﬁfully commit a lewd or IaAscivious,act
upon or with the body, or any ;;art or member théreof, of a child under the age of sixteen

(18) years, to wit: did touch the victim, [@H{{sg on her vagina under her clothing,

with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust or passions or sexual

. desire of himself or of said chﬂd in wolatlon of §16-15-140, Code of Laws of South

Carolina, (1976) as amended.

=,

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and confréry- tﬁf the statute- in such case

Douglas A. Barfield, Jr., SOLICITOR
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o : . AMENDED
: DOCKET NO. 2008-GS-20-506
. WITNESSES : ‘
Boney-FCSO : _
S The State of South Carolina

County of Fairfleld

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

MAY TERM 2012
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA —
K310485(DOA-10-09-08)
- THE STATE
. == , vs.

ACTION OF GRAND JURY ‘ | m

' . Michael D. Williams wRE

. 2o

LA

omD

‘, 28
Foreperson of Grand Jury, ‘R oo
Date: w P2

e e— WS S .
—— e ——————————

VERDICT

S

|

Indictment for

Committing a Lewd Act Upon a Child

Foreperson of Petit Jury :

Date: ~ SC Code: § 16-15-140
CDR Code: 2468
Class: Felony, D

hE <l d bl AWK ML -
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

INDICTMENT
. ' )
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD ")

At a Court of General Sessions, convened May 2§, 2012, the Grand Jurors of |

Fairfield County present upoh their cath:

That Michael D. Williams, a person over the} age of fourteen (14) did in Fairfield
County between 2004 and 2008, willfully and unlawfully commit a lewd or lascivious act
upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, of a child under the age of sixteen
(16) years, to wit: did force the victim, ST to p'ace both her hands on his
penis with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gfatifying the lust or passions or
sexual desire of himself or of said child, in violation of §16-15-140, Code of Laws of
South Caralina, (1976), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the :State, and contraty to the statute in such case

made and provided. - _ SRR

TS~ 25y

Douglas A. Barfield, Jr., SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES
Boney-FCSO # 08-7553

TS‘O\%CL

DOCKET NO. 2009-GS-20- J3Y

The State of South Carolina
County of Fairfield

e err——

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
MARCH TERM 2009

K310579 (DOA-12-3-08)

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

oue py 2-2Y 20 0%

——

Foreperson of Grand Jury
Date:

e —

VERDICT

THE STATE
VS.

Michael D. Williams

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

f

Indictment for
Committing a Lewd Act Upon a Chiid

SC Cade: § 16-15-140
CDR Code: 2468
Class: Felony, D

2008 FEB 2 P I*O'i

FAIRFIELD COUNTY

CLERK
BETTY J

I
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT
: ) :
CO{UN Y OF FAIRFIELD )

Ata Court of General Sessions, convened on February 24, 2009 the Grand Jurors of

Fatrf eld County present upon their oath:

My S0 COMMITTING A LEWD ACT UPON A CHILD

- That Micatel D. Williams, a person over the age of fourteen (1 4) did in Fairfield
County on or about January 1, 2009, willfully and unlawfully commit-a lewd or lascivious
act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, of a child under the age of
sixteen (16) years, to wit: did touch the victim, Jazmine Maraya Hinton, 6, on the vagina
under her clothing, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust or
passions or sexual desire of himself or of said child, Jazmine Maraya Hinton in violation
of §16-15-140, Code of Laws of South Carolina, (1976), as amended. ‘

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to >the statute in such case .

oS D

Douglas A. Barfield, Jr., SOLICITCR

made and provided.
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DOCKET NO. 2009-GS-20- |3

N
|

WITNESSES
Boney-FCSO # 08-7553
‘ The State of South Carolina
'?;ﬁﬁTA. . '
FAIRFIELD GOUNTY
,c'u»:R OF COUR
. . BETTY JO BECKHAM
COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
MARCH TERM 2009
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA _
K310580 (DOA 12-3-08)
. THE STATE
— U VS.

ACTION OF GRAND JURY . .
Michael D. Williams

CYRUE BILL__2-2Y 005

= .

Foreperson of Grand Jury

Date:
VERDICT
Indictment for
Exposure of Private Parts in Lewd Manner
Foreperson of Pelit Jury
Date: : SC Code: §16-15-0365

CDR Code:0377
Class:
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) - INDICTMENT
' ) : _
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on February 24, 2009, the Grand Jurors of

Fairfield County present upon their cath:

Exposure of Private Parts in Lewd Manner
That Michael D. Williams did in Fairfield County on or about January 1, 2006 and

May 28, 20'08, willingly and knowingly expose the private, parts of his person in a lewd
and lascivious manner and in the presence of any other person, to wit: defendant did
expose his penis in the presence of Jazmine Maraya Hinton, did commit a pattern of in
violation of Section 16-3-1710(B) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina.

Against the peacé and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case

O~

Dougtlas A. Barfield, Jr., SOLICITCR ,

made and provided.

e



’f ™~ ASSESSMENT & RESOURCE CENTER
CAREGIVER QUESTIONNAIRE

FOR THE FORENSIC INTERVIEW

cmvssaer: N s _F
,‘1

DATE OF BIRTH: I 11-01-00 AGE:

RACE: Qouconian

Who is filling out this form? Name (Please print) S 4 580 Y oLkl S

Your signature and date: %U/Q O\ &Mﬁ Leso ] O[ 63 'j o0&
glegal Parent [JGAL / CASA ] CPS Caseworker

Relationship to child: Foster Parent [[] Therapist [} DSS Treatment Worker

[] Other legal guardian [ ] Law Enforcement [C] DSS Foster Care Worker
1. Who lives with the child now?

Name Age Gender Relationship
(Male or Female)
QUusan Powles 3Y M @ /" o
TN D s
i 7 M @& (L
(s M ¥ Ay otie
M F
‘M F
, M F |
" Has the child recently moved? [ ] Yes &NO If YES, Who lived with the child before?
Name Age Gender Relationship
(Male or Female)

Visrt wi@ || unel  open htedie

XXX R R R
o m| | m| m

ARC Caregiver Questionnaire { 1/07
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2. Does the child have any medical, developmental or leaming problems? If YES, - : O o
O

. ' ( ﬁ\ ( -
YES

please check the appropriate boxes below and explain.
‘ IDON’T KNOW

{T] Medical disorder:
D Mental health disorder:

(] Speech/Language problem:

[] Other: |
3. Has the child experienced any difficulties at school? ;

If YES, describe: | CJYEs |

| ‘ - E % IDON'T KNOW

4 Nameofchild’s school: (>veat Falls Elemz ~Aon ~

Current grade: 2"‘0\
5. .Has there ever been a child abuse investigation involving this child or famify before?

If YES, describe: : ' [JYEs
' NO

1DON'T KNOW

6 Who is suspected of harming the child? (Give name, age)
/Mfo“&i.( o [lrams | SO C

7. How does the child know this person or persons?
- VBCL\D\,\%M{(S hushand
8. How often did the child see this person or persons, and when was the last contact? f(\s
’ ' ' JZ_VS s @

Qwals Q3P (haleoer
> By Sat from 15 yeurs ko 4 — ¢ = N

9. Tell us how ybu came to know there might be a problem. If the child said something to you, tell us what the

child said, as close to the exact words as you can remember.

She 4o Id er Sinker Yhal ke Meke Somebmes lo ke
vale ores , DOF I ledl because She wasnf to kty

ey R lhe cause e ded oF o mavrahes oo

L owas Ok ‘ ’ s
_W\a/: ;/l}\et/wwe{.a his %N(g?“/f’ﬂ'ds - Sl ofdnt ke 1
N : /. ' | .
aa,us{ Sone h /S "(—. hu;

ARC Caregiver Questionnaire 11/07




9. (Continued, if needed):

10. What does the child know about coming to the ARC today? What was the child told? .
Se waes &g to hauvt an exam  and Oskecl Soma
@U{%\/KO'Y\S AW She nacked to de s el wHu drutds -

11. Have previous interviews been conducted? - ' lO L
If YES, describe: Dés wend SCV\Cd VI . DYI(E)S
id  Wor Qs @va!”O\“S | g:_DON’TKNow
12. Do you have concerns about how the child is doing? |
If YES, describe: ' [C]YES
[INo

[JIDON'T KNOW

‘3. Is the chjla receiving counseling or mental health services right now?

If YES, describe with whom and for what. [IYES

AdNo

[ ]1DON’T KNOW

14.. ‘What else would you like us to know about the child or the situation?

Thank you for answering this questionnaire. The professional who interviews the child will use this information to
further guide the process. Do you have questions? Please write them below.

Bock Sincs April 2657 |
boby ~age S, Donpa for ovm o Lock (liamo

3

4RC Caregiver Questionnaire 11/07
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®

AGENCY LD. INCILENT REPORT 7 _casENumBER MNG':N =

P . N . . h

SC0200000 Fairfield County Sheriffs Office 04-001893

UNITS | TYPEVICTIM
INCIDENT TYPE COMPLETED { FORCED ENTRY PREMISE TYPE ENTERED | W indivicual
20(Roaldonco/Homo) Business
1. 11B - FORCIBLE SODOMY B YES [ nol [1YES CINO g gxm ’m:
. - O Rellg, Orgn.
Ja - O vyes gINo| QO ves O KO 3 Saa/Public
] Other

s Q1 ¥Es O Ko| b ves o __|B ke,

E INCTOENT LOCATION (BUBDIVIBION, APARTMENT AND NUMBER, STRIET NAME AND NUMDER} - Zip CODE " WERPON TYPR _

b o g : 40-Personal Weapons (Hands, Fists,
INCIDENTY DAYR ROk TG ] . oATH 24 hr. cLOCK onqm‘(»:;l-mm M B, CLOGK m LOCATION NO,
12/01/2003 0:00 12/0172003 0:00 . 10:20 ' .

COMPLAINANTT NAME (LAGT, FIRBT, MIDOLE) RUBMANT | RACT| aEX | AGH S| HOME PnONT EMPLOYER PrONE
n ” [ . [ ]
WIGGINS, PAIGE @sovjwl|F 25 c. ]
ADOREDS CREE sTATR| 2P cong LOCATION NO,
WINNSBORO SC | 29180~
r— VICTIW'D NANE (LASSY, FIRAT, MIDOLE) RUBIOENT |[RAGE| 8EX | ADE ETH. HOMEB PHONE 0 BUPLOYER PHONI
‘@sou|wl|rF 08 | N i803) 482-6516 ¢ 8

.| HuoNT | weioHT HAIX EYED FACIAL HAIR, BCARD, TATOOS, GLABSTE, CLOTHING, PHYRICAL PECULIANTIZS, LCT,

2 4'02" 80 BLN - Blondo or | GRN - Greon ’ )

_E_ AOORzan oY SYATH P coon LOCATION NG,

ol 12ELM ST GREAT FALLS sC 29055~

5[ Vel iury MCT.1) O yes vo M Bxhimn. . COUPLAIN' OF NONIRIBLE INJUNES: [ YEB B NO

MICTIM (MO. YUpiNg: ALEoMOL D ves N0 00 Wk B prucs: Clves NO O UNK TYPL ) ) B
TwoaaNvar [3  ongtaanvad, £1. pETecTivVEmPLASMY, I3 otigr O | atone 03 anmavep OJ * J o« Thia Jurfediction 8 ~Buats O « Qut of State U - Unknown
[J suBPOCY | NAME, (LAST, FIRBT, MibiLt) ] racz| mex [ aan o, [DATZ OF iRTH | HUGHT [ WRIGNT TR — EYBS

ot [ LN I B rother 3 [ wim 15 | N |06/20/1988] 6'02" | 270 | BLN -~ Blon | GRN - Gree

[=] . FACIAL HAIR, BCARS, TAYTOOS, GLASINS, GLOTHING, PRYBICAL PICULARTIES, BCT, . :

= | [ wanrmo . ;

= ; . .

8 a WARR:T AoERISE oY BTATR| TP CODE LOCATION NO,

] : ROAD GREAT FALLS SC | 29055-

:3’ 0 BUBJECT (NO, THUINGr ALEOHOL [T ¥E0 N0 - unx BB | ARREATED NRAROPPUNSE neeNa L] YEs No IE DATZ/TIME OF OPFENSE DATE/TIUE OF ARREST

D) SUMMONE | payan; (Jves no [3 ek M YOTAL 8 AnmoTEs O 12/01/2003 0:00

ON. THE ABOVE DATE -AND TIME--COMPLAINANT STATED TO ‘R/0 THAT SHE GOT A REPORT FROM THE CHESTER DSS .

SHE SAID THAT THE FATHER CALLED AND REPORTED THAT HIS SON DISCLOSED TO DR. BRIDGEWATER THAT HE

ASKED HIS SISTER WHO iS 8 YEARS OLD TO HAVE ORAL SEX WITH HIM AND SHE AGREED., COMPLAINANT STATES

THAT THIS WAS ALL THE INFORMATION SHE HAD AT THE TIME R/O CONTACTED INVESTIGATOR MARY ANN
PHILLIPS. NO OTHER INFORMATION COULD BE OBTAINED AT THIS TIME. .

4/23/04 SUBJECT DID COERCE THE VICTIM INTO GIVING HIM ORAL SEX IN DECEMBER OF 2003. AFTER SPEAKING

NARRATIVE

WITH BOTH SIDES OF THE FAMILY THEY WILL BOTH SEEK COUNSELING. THE SUBJECT HAS ALREADY STATED THEY

WANT TO HANDLE THIS WITHIN THEIR FAMILY AND NOT THROUGH THE COURT SYSTEM. DS$ WILL NOT BE

INVESTIGATING. THE INCIDENT ACTUALLY OCCURRED AT

IN BLACKSTOCK. THIS

INVESTIGATION IS CLOSED, =141

e ————  ——— A — e
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

Counsel for appellant certifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed to
be included by any of the parties and not any other material and that this Record on Appeal
complies to the best of my ability, with the August 13, 2007, order from the South Carolina
Supreme Court entitled “Interim Guidance Regarding Personal Data Identifiers and Other
Sensitive Information in Appellate Court Filings.”

September 26th, 2013

David Alexander
Appellate Defender

South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
Division of Appellate Defense

PO Box 11589

Columbia, S. C. 29211-1589

(803) 734-1330

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT



V-
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA T}' L

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

Appeal from Fairfield County

Brooks P. Goldsmith, Circuit Court Judge

THE STATE,

RESPONDENT,

MICHAEL D. WILLIAMS,

APPELLANT

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2012-212501

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that a true copy of the Record on Appeal in the above referenced case has been

served upon Julie Kate Keeney, Esquire, at the Rembert Dennis Building, 1000 Assembly Street,

Room 519, Columbia, SC 29201 this 26th day of September, 2013.

Brandon Hall _ N
Administrative Specialist

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me

//ﬂ:i;&?h :a[/ of September, 2013.
= R
[VW (L.S) SR

RPN TS -
Notary Public for S8uth Carolina SEP © 6 2 g
My Commission Expires: July 24, 2022. R




